
*non voting advisory member 
 
 
 

 
Agenda compiled by: 
Governance Services 
Civic Hall 
 

 
Ian Walton 
247 4350 

 
 

  Produced on Recycled Paper 

A 

 

 
 
 

 

EXECUTIVE BOARD 
 

 
Meeting to be held in Civic Hall, Leeds on 
Wednesday, 12th March, 2008 at 1.00 pm 

 
 

 
MEMBERSHIP 

Councillors 
 

A Carter (Chair) 
R Brett 
J L Carter 
S Golton 
R Harker 
P Harrand 
J Procter 
S Smith 
 

K Wakefield 
*J Blake 
 

R Finnigan 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Public Document Pack



B 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT ITEMS 
 

The reason for confidentiality or exemption is stated on the agenda and on each of the reports in 
terms of Access to Information Procedure Rules 9.2 or 10.4(1) to (7). The number or numbers 
stated in the agenda and reports correspond to the reasons for exemption / confidentiality below: 
 
9.0  Confidential information – requirement to exclude public access 
9.1 The public must be excluded from meetings whenever it is likely in view of the nature of 

the business to be transacted or the nature of the proceedings that confidential 
information would be disclosed. Likewise, public access to reports, background papers, 
and minutes will also be excluded. 

 

9.2 Confidential information means 
(a)  information given to the Council by a Government Department on terms which 

forbid its public disclosure or  
(b)  information the disclosure of which to the public is prohibited by or under another 

Act or by Court Order. Generally personal information which identifies an 
individual, must not be disclosed under the data protection and human rights 
rules.  

 

10.0 Exempt information – discretion to exclude public access 
10. 1 The public may be excluded from meetings whenever it is likely in view of the nature of 

the business to be transacted or the nature of the proceedings that exempt information 
would be disclosed provided: 
(a) the meeting resolves so to exclude the public, and that resolution identifies the 

proceedings or part of the proceedings to which it applies, and 
(b) that resolution states by reference to the descriptions in Schedule 12A to the 

Local Government Act 1972 (paragraph 10.4 below) the description of the 
exempt information giving rise to the exclusion of the public. 

(c) that resolution states, by reference to reasons given in a relevant report or 
otherwise, in all the circumstances of the case, the public interest in maintaining 
the exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information.  

 

10.2 In these circumstances, public access to reports, background papers and minutes will 
also be excluded.  
 

10.3 Where the meeting will determine any person’s civil rights or obligations, or adversely 
affect their possessions, Article 6 of the Human Rights Act 1998 establishes a 
presumption that the meeting will be held in public unless a private hearing is necessary 
for one of the reasons specified in Article 6. 
 

10. 4 Exempt information means information falling within the following categories (subject to 
any condition): 
1 Information relating to any individual 
2 Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual. 
3  Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person 

(including the authority holding that information). 
4 Information relating to any consultations or negotiations, or contemplated 

consultations or negotiations, in connection with any labour relations matter arising 
between the authority or a Minister of the Crown and employees of, or officer-
holders under the authority. 

5 Information in respect of which a claim to legal professional privilege could be 
maintained in legal proceedings. 

6 Information which reveals that the authority proposes – 
(a)  to give under any enactment a notice under or by virtue of which 

requirements are imposed on a person; or 
(b)  to make an order or direction under any enactment 

7 Information relating to any action taken or to be taken in connection with the 
prevention, investigation or prosecution of crime 

 

 



 

C 

A G E N D A 
 
 

Item 
No 
K=Key 
Decision 

Ward Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

1   
 

  

  APPEALS AGAINST REFUSAL OF INSPECTION 
OF DOCUMENTS 
 
To consider any appeals in accordance with 
Procedure Rule 25 of the Access to Information 
Procedure Rules (in the event of an Appeal the 
press and public will be excluded) 
 

 

2   
 

  

  LATE ITEMS 
 
To identify items which have been admitted to the 
agenda by the Chair for consideration 
 
(The special circumstances shall be specified in 
the minutes) 
 

 

3   
 

  

  EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC 
 
To identify items where resolutions may be moved 
to exclude the public 
 

 

4   
 

  

  DECLARATION OF INTERESTS 
 
To declare any personal/prejudicial interests for the 
purpose of Section 81(3) of the Local Government 
Act 2000 and paragraphs 8 to 13 of the Members 
Code of Conduct 
 

 

5   
 

  

  MINUTES 
 
To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the 
meeting held on 8th February 2008 
 

1 - 16 

   LEISURE 
 
 

 



 

D 

Item 
No 
K=Key 
Decision 

Ward Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

6   
 

K 

Adel and 
Wharfedale; 
Weetwood; 

 DEPUTATION TO COUNCIL - TINSHILL 
RECREATION DE-FENCE GROUP REGARDING 
USE OF PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT TO 
FENCE OFF GREEN SPACE INCLUDING 
TINSHILL RECREATION GROUND 
 
To consider the report of the Director of City 
Development responding to the deputation from 
Tinshill Recreation De-Fence Group to full council 
on 16th  January 2008. 
 
 
 
 

17 - 
30 

7   
 

K 

Middleton 
Park 

10.4(3) STAGE 1 APPLICATION FOR PARKS FOR 
PEOPLE HERITAGE LOTTERY FUNDING FOR 
MIDDLETON PARK 
 
To consider the report of the Director of City 
Development seeking approval for the submission 
of a Stage 1 Parks for People Programme Heritage 
Lottery Fund (HLF) application for a Middleton 
Park restoration scheme with the support of 
Wade’s Charity,  the match funding for which is to 
come from the surrender and subsequent sale of 
218 and 220 Middleton Town Street and adjoining 
land.  
Appendix 1 to this report is designated as exempt 
under Access to Information Procedure Rule 
10.4(3). 
 

31 - 
40 

   ADULT HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE 
 
 

 

8   
 

K 

  DEPUTATION TO COUNCIL - MEMBERS OF 
RELATE REGARDING THE ORGANISATION'S 
FUNDING 
 
To consider the report of the Director of Adult 
Social Services responding to the deputation from 
representatives of the charity Relate to full Council 
on 16th January 2008.  
 

41 - 
46 



 

E 

Item 
No 
K=Key 
Decision 

Ward Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

9   
 

K 

Chapel 
Allerton; Hyde 
Park and 
Woodhouse; 

10.4(3) ROUNDHAY ROAD RELOCATION PROJECT 
 
To consider the report of the Director of Adult 
Social Services which seeks approval of the 
allocation of funding equal to the full capital receipt 
and service budget from Roundhay Road, in order 
to support the relocation costs of all the teams and 
services from the site. The report also seeks 
approval for an injection of funds into the capital 
programme to enable the identified schemes to 
progress.  

Appendices 1 and 3 to this report are designated 
as exempt under Access to Information Procedure 
Rule 10.4(3).  

 

47 - 
66 

   CENTRAL AND CORPORATE 
 
 

 

10   
 

  

  LEEDS STRATEGIC PLAN 2008-2011 
 
To consider the report of the Assistant Chief 
Executive (Policy, Planning and Improvement) 
providing an overview of the development, 
approach and broad content of the Leeds Strategic 
Plan 2008-11, and which seeks approval of the 
Plan, which is appended to the report. 

 

67 - 
104 

11   
 

K 

Burmantofts 
and Richmond 
Hill; Chapel 
Allerton; 
Gipton and 
Harehills; 
Kirkstall; 

 JOINT SERVICE CENTRES - APPROVAL TO 
PROCEED TO LIFT STAGE 2 FOR JOINT 
SERVICE CENTRES AT CHAPELTOWN AND 
HAREHILLS 
 
To consider the report of the Director of 
Environment and Neighbourhoods seeking 
approval of a package of proposals from Leeds’ 
Local Improvement Finance Trust (LIFT) to 
develop two joint service centres to be constructed 
at Chapeltown and Harehills. 

 

105 - 
114 

   DEVELOPMENT AND REGENERATION 
 
 

 



 

F 

Item 
No 
K=Key 
Decision 

Ward Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

12   
 

K 

Headingley; 
Hyde Park 
and 
Woodhouse; 

 DEPUTATION TO COUNCIL- LOCAL 
RESIDENTS REQUESTING THE COUNCIL TO 
PURCHASE SPORTS FACILITIES AT LEEDS 
GIRLS HIGH SCHOOL FOR USE BY PRIMARY 
SCHOOLS AND THE LOCAL COMMUNITY 
 
To consider the report of the Director of City 
Development in relation to the deputation from 
local residents to full Council on 16th January 2008. 
 

115 - 
122 

13   
 

K 

Headingley; 
Hyde Park 
and 
Woodhouse; 

 DEPUTATION TO COUNCIL - HEADINGLEY 
NETWORK REGARDING THE FUTURE USE OF 
THE ELINOR LUPTON CENTRE 
 
To consider the report of the Director of City 
Development responding to the deputation from 
Headingley Network to full Council on 16th January 
2008.  
 

123 - 
130 

14   
 

K 

  TOWN AND DISTRICT CENTRES PARKING 
STRATEGY AND PRIORITIES 
 
To consider the report of the Director of City 
Development summarising the findings from the 
town and district parking strategy overview studies 
previously approved by Executive Board and 
setting out proposals for taking the parking strategy 
development work to the next stage of targeting 
priorities for detailed strategy development and for 
consultation with Ward Members and local 
communities. 

 

131 - 
140 

   NEIGHBOURHOODS AND HOUSING 
 
 

 



 

G 

Item 
No 
K=Key 
Decision 

Ward Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

15   
 

K 

Beeston and 
Holbeck; 
Burmantofts 
and Richmond 
Hill; City and 
Hunslet; 
Gipton and 
Harehills; 

 REGIONAL HOUSING BOARD FUNDED 
CLEARANCE SITES AND THEIR INCLUSION IN 
THE STRATEGIC AFFORDABLE HOUSING 
PARTNERSHIP 
 
To consider the report of the Director of 
Environment and Neighbourhoods on a proposal to 
incorporate the Regional Housing Board funded 
clearance sites into the pool of Council owned 
land, currently 77 acres, which has been set aside 
for the development of affordable housing via the 
Strategic Affordable Housing Partnership.  
Appendix 5 to this report, which will be circulated at 
the meeting, is designated as exempt under 
Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4(3). 
 

141 - 
156 

16   
 

  

  DEVELOPMENT AND HARDWARE COSTS FOR 
THE HOUSING ICT PROJECT 
 
To consider the report of the Director of 
Environment and Neighbourhoods seeking 
authorisation to allocate £1.15m to complete 
Phase 2 of the Housing IT Project, which is 
outlined within the report. 
 

157 - 
162 

   CHILDREN'S SERVICES 
 
 

 

17   
 

K 

Morley South 10.4(3) FOUNTAIN PRIMARY SCHOOL - 
RATIONALISATION ONTO ONE SITE 
 
To consider the report of the Chief Executive of 
Education Leeds seeking authorisation to ringfence 
all of the capital receipt received from the sale of 
Fountain Primary School Annex, in order to invest 
in a scheme to rationalise the accommodation at 
Fountain Primary School onto one site.  
Appendix 1 to this report is designated as exempt 
under Access to Information Procedure Rule 
10.4(3). 
 

163 - 
172 



 

H 

Item 
No 
K=Key 
Decision 

Ward Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

18   
 

  

Bramley and 
Stanningley 

 PRESCRIBED ALTERATION AND CHANGE OF 
LOWER AGE RANGE OF HOLLYBUSH 
PRIMARY SCHOOL 
 
To consider the report of the Director of Children’s 
Services seeking approval to publish a statutory 
notice to formally alter the lower age limit for which 
education services are provided at Hollybush 
Primary School, in order to facilitate the delivery of 
children’s centre and extended school services on 
these sites. 
 

173 - 
176 

19   
 

  

  ANNUAL CONSULTATION ON ADMISSION 
ARRANGEMENTS FOR 2009/2010 
 
To consider the report of the Chief Executive of 
Education Leeds outlining the proposed key 
changes to the Local Authority Admission Policy 
for the 2009/2010 academic year. 
 

177 - 
186 

 

     

     



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 12th March, 2008 

 

EXECUTIVE BOARD 
 

FRIDAY, 8TH FEBRUARY, 2008 
 

PRESENT: 
 

Councillor A Carter in the Chair 

 Councillors R Brett, S Golton, R Harker, 
P Harrand, J Procter, S Smith and 
K Wakefield  

 
   Councillor Blake – Non Voting Advisory Member 
 
 

161 Chair's Announcements  
The Chair announced that the funeral of Mr John Gunnell, a former West 
Yorkshire County Councillor, Leeds City Councillor and MP for Morley was 
being held today.  On behalf of Executive Board, the Chair paid tribute to Mr 
Gunnell and requested that the Board’s condolences be conveyed to Mr 
Gunnell’s family. 
 

162 Exclusion of Public  
RESOLVED – That the public be excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of the following parts of the agenda designated exempt on the 
grounds that it is likely, in the view of the nature of the business to be 
transacted or the nature of the proceedings, that if members of the public 
were present there would be disclosure to them of exempt information so 
designated as follows: 
 
(a) Appendix F to the report referred to in minute 168(C) under the terms 

of Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4(3) and on the grounds 
that the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the 
public interest in disclosing the information because the appendix 
contains details of sites scheduled for future disposal by the Council, 
which if disclosed would, or would be likely to prejudice the Council’s 
commercial interests in relation to the level of capital receipts 
generated from the future disposal of such sites. 

 
(b) Appendix D to the report referred to in minute 171 under the terms of 

Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4(4) and (5) and on the 
grounds that the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs 
the public interest in disclosing the information because the Council is 
currently defending a large number of equal pay cases before the 
Employment Tribunal and release of the information at this time could 
prejudice the outcome of such tribunal claims, proving costly to the 
Council, and thereby having an adverse impact on the public. 

 
(c) Appendix 1 to the report referred to in minute 177 under the terms of 

Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4(3) and on the grounds that 
the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public 
interest in disclosing the information as disclosure would, or would be 

Agenda Item 5

Page 1



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 12th March, 2008 

 

likely to prejudice the commercial interests of the Council by virtue of 
the fact that sensitive negotiations are currently ongoing with private 
sector investors and Yorkshire Forward to secure a contribution to the 
Albion Place improvement works. 

 
(d) Appendices 5, 7 and 8 to the report referred to in Minute 179 under the 

terms of Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4(3) and on the 
grounds that the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs 
the public interest in disclosing the information as disclosure of 
information relating to the remaining leasehold properties to be 
acquired in both Beeston Hill and Holbeck and Little London, as 
detailed within the appendices would be likely to prejudice the 
Council’s commercial interests when undertaking negotiations in 
respect of such properties. 

 
 Appendix 9 to the report referred to in minute 179 under the terms of 

Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4(3) and on the grounds that 
the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public 
interest in disclosing the information as disclosure would, or would be 
likely to prejudice the Council’s commercial interests by virtue of the 
fact that it includes information relating to the Council’s financial 
position in the Outline Business Case for Beeston Hill and Holbeck, the 
details of which are yet to be fully agreed.  In addition the Council has 
also commenced competitive dialogue with PFI bidders, and the 
disclosure of such information could prejudice the ongoing 
procurement process. 

 
(e) Annex 2 to the report referred to in minute 181 under the terms of 

Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4(1) and (2) and on the 
grounds that the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs 
the public interest in disclosing the information as Education Leeds has 
a duty to secure improvement and increased confidence in the schools 
concerned and this would be adversely affected by disclosure of the 
information. 

 
(f) Annex 3 to the report referred to in  minute 182 under the terms of 

Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4(1) and (2) and on the 
grounds that the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs 
the public interest in disclosing the information as Education Leeds has 
a duty to secure improvement and increased confidence in the schools 
concerned and this would be adversely affected by disclosure of the 
information. 

 
(g) Appendix 1 to the report referred to in minute 185 under the terms of 

Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4(3) and on the grounds that  
the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public 
interest in disclosing the information as disclosure would prejudice the 
Council’s commercial interests as the appendix details matters where 
negotiations of a confidential nature will ensue.  In these circumstances 

Page 2



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 12th March, 2008 

 

it is considered that the public interest in not disclosing the commercial 
information outweighs the public interest in disclosure. 

 
163 Declaration of Interests  

Councillor Brett declared a personal interest in the items relating to ‘Health 
and Wellbeing Partnership Arrangements’ and ‘Consultation Paper – Valuing 
People Now: From Progress to Transformation’ (minutes 186 and 187 refer 
respectively) as a member of the Burmantofts Senior Action Management 
Committee. 
 
Councillor Smith declared a personal and prejudicial interest in the item 
relating to ‘Pay and Grading Review’ (minute 171) due to his wife being an 
employee of Education Leeds. 
 
Councillor Blake declared a personal interest in the item relating to ‘Health 
and Wellbeing Partnership Arrangements’ (minute 186) due to her position as 
Non-Execuitve Director of Leeds North West Primary Care Trust and a 
member of Middleton Elderly Aid. 
 
A further declaration made during the meeting (Councillor Wakefield) is 
referred to at minute 176. 
 

164 Minutes  
RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meeting held on 23rd January 2008 be 
approved. 
 
LEISURE 
 

165 Inquiry into River Safety Management at Wharfemeadows Park, Otley - 
Final Report and Recommendations  
The Chief Democratic Services Officer submitted a report presenting the final 
report and recommendations of the Scrutiny Board (Culture and Leisure) 
following its inquiry into ‘River Safety Management at Wharfemeadows Park, 
Otley’. 
 
A minority report submitted by a member of the Scrutiny Board (Culture and 
Leisure) was appended to the report.  
 
The Chair of the Scrutiny Board attended the meeting and presented the 
Scrutiny report.  
 
RESOLVED – That the contents of the Scrutiny inquiry report be received. 
 

166 Inquiry into River Safety Management at Wharfemeadows Park, Otley - 
Officer Observations  
The Assistant  Chief Executive (Corporate Governance) submitted a report in 
order to assist Members when considering the recommendations of Scrutiny 
Board (Culture and Leisure) in regard to their inquiry into the decision by 
Executive Board to erect fencing at Wharfemeadows Park Otley. 
 

Page 3



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 12th March, 2008 

 

The final report of the Scrutiny Board was considered as a separate item on 
the agenda (minute 165 refers). 
 
RESOLVED – That recommendations 1, 3 an 4 of the report by Scrutiny 
Board (Culture and Leisure) be accepted and that the Assistant Chief 
Executive (Corporate Governance) report back on recommendation 2 of the 
Scrutiny Board’s report, in relation to the availability of Counsel’s advice to the 
public. 
 
CENTRAL AND CORPORATE 
 

167 Budget Arrangements 2009/2010  
The Chair circulated to Board members a copy of a letter from John Healey 
MP, Minister for Local Government confirming that the Council’s failure to 
qualify for monies under the Working Neighbourhoods Fund would not be 
subject to further consideration. 
 
RESOLVED – That, in view of the reductions in funding in 2009/2010 which 
can be anticipated as a result of this confirmation, the Director of Resources 
be requested to report back to the Board on potential savings which may be 
realised in that year in relation to Council publications, engagement of 
consultants and procurements. 
 

168 Council Budget 2008/2009 and Capital Programme  
(A) Revenue Budget and Council Tax 2008/09 
 
 The Director of Resources submitted a report on the Council’s budget 

for 2008/09 following detailed consideration of service requirements 
and taking account of the Local Government Finance Settlement. The 
report indicated that the budget would result in a Band D Council Tax 
of £1,064.37 for consideration by Council. 

 
 RESOLVED – 

(i) That Council be recommended to approve the Revenue 
Estimates for 2008/09 totalling £540,509,000 as detailed and 
explained in the submitted report and accompanying papers, 
including a 4.7% increase in the Leeds’ element of the Council 
Tax. 

(ii) That as the Police Authority budget meeting is currently 
scheduled for 22nd February 2008, Council be recommended to 
establish a committee of the Council specifically to set the final 
Council Tax. 

(iii) That the fees and charges policy as detailed in appendix 5 of the 
report be approved. 

(iv) That the proposal to change the childcare fee structure as 
detailed in the Children’s Services budget briefing report be 
approved. 

(v) That the proposed local performance indicators as detailed 
within paragraph 13 of the report be approved. 

 

Page 4



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 12th March, 2008 

 

(B) Housing Revenue Account Budget 2008/09 
 

The Directors of Resources and Environment and Neighbourhoods 
submitted a joint report on the Housing Revenue Account budget and 
ALMO management fee distribution for 2008/09. 
 
RESOLVED – 
(i) That the Council be recommended to approve the budget at the 

average rent increase figure of 5.8%. 
(ii) That the Council be recommended to approve that service 

charges be increased in line with average rent rises. 
(iii) That the Council be recommended to approve that the charges 

for garage rents be increased to £5.55 per week. 
 

(C) Capital Programme 2007-2012 
 
 The Director of Resources submitted a report setting out the updated 

capital programme for 2007-2012. 
 
 Following consideration of appendix F to the report designated as 

exempt under Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4(3) which was 
considered in private at the conclusion of the meeting it was 

 
 RESOLVED – 

(i) That the Council be recommended to approve the capital 
programme as attached to the submitted report. 

(ii) That the Director of Resources be authorised to manage,  
monitor and control scheme progress and commitments to 
ensure that the programme  is affordable. 

(iii) That the disposal of land and property sites as detailed within 
exempt appendix F to the report be agreed in order to generate 
capital receipts to support the capital programme. 

(iv) That the Council be recommended to approve the proposed 
Minimum Revenue Provision policies for 2008/09 as set out in 
paragraph 5.3.2 and appendix G to the report. 

 
(D) Treasury Management Strategy 2008/09 
 
 The Director of Resources submitted a report on the proposed 

Treasury Management Strategy for 2008/09 and the revised affordable 
borrowing limits under the prudential framework. The report also 
provided members with a review of strategy and operations in 2007/08. 

 
 RESOLVED – 

(i) That the initial Treasury Strategy for 2008/09 as set out in 
section 3.3 of the report be approved and that the review of the 
2007/08 strategy and operations, as set out in sections 3.1 and 
3.2 of the report be noted. 

Page 5



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 12th March, 2008 

 

(ii) That the Council be recommended to set the borrowing limits for 
2007/08, 2008/09, 2009/10 and 2010/11, as set out in section 
3.4 of the report. 

(iii) That the Council be recommended to set the treasury 
management indicators for 2007/08, 2008/09, 2009/10 and 
2010/11, as set out in section 3.5 of the report. 

(iv) That the Council be recommended to set the investment limits 
for 2007/08, 2008/09, 2009/10 and 2010/11, as set out in 
section 3.6 of the report. 

 
(The matters referred to in parts A(i) and (ii), B(i), (ii) and (iii), C(i) and (iv) and 
D (ii), (iii) and (iv) of this minute being matters reserved to Council were not 
eligible for Call In) 
 
(Under the provisions of Council Procedure Rule 16.5 Councillor Wakefield 
required it to be recorded that he abstained from voting on the decisions 
contained in this minute) 
 

169 Financial Health Monitoring 2007/08 - Third Quarter Report  
The Director of Resources submitted a report setting out the Council’s 
financial health position for 2007/08 after nine months of the financial year, in 
respect of the revenue expenditure and income to date compared to the 
approved budget, the projected year end position and proposed actions to 
ensure a balanced budget by the year end. The report also highlighted the 
position regarding other key financial indicators, including Council Tax 
collection and the payment of creditors. 
 
RESOLVED –  
(i) That the projected financial position of the authority after nine months 

of the new financial year be noted. 
(ii) That the transfer of the projected surplus to general reserves be 

approved. 
 

170 Final Local Government Finance Settlement 2008/09 and Revised 
Provisional Settlements for 2009/10 and 2010/2011  
The Director of Resources submitted a report providing details of the final 
Local Government Revenue Support Grant Settlement for 2008/09 and the 
revised provisional settlements for 2009/10 and 2010/11 which were 
announced on 24th January 2008. 
 
RESOLVED – That the contents of the report be noted. 
 

171 Pay and Grading Review  
The Director of Resources submitted a report which sought approval of an 
amended version of the pay structure and confirmed the position on pay 
protection for the purpose of the Pay and Grading Review. The report also 
updated members on negotiations with the trade unions. 
 

Page 6



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 12th March, 2008 

 

Following consideration of appendix D to the report designated as exempt 
under Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4(4) and (5) which was 
considered in private at the conclusion of the meeting it was 
 
RESOLVED – 
(i) That the amended pay structure, as detailed within appendix A to the 

report be approved. 
(ii) That the pay protection arrangements for Phase 1 and Phase 2 

employees be confirmed as previously agreed by the Executive Board 
in March 2007, which is for those staff whose grade changes adversely 
as a result of the job evaluation exercise:- 

• A period of no longer than 3 years protection – attracting annual 
pay award and increments in line with the NJC for Local 
Government service pay agreements effective from 1st February 
2008; 

• Year 4 – go directly to the maximum point of the new substantive 
grade/pay range. 

(iii) That the Board notes that the Director of Resources will continue 
negotiations with the Trade Unions and will continue to work with the 
Trade Unions to identify means of avoiding individual loss wherever 
possible and appropriate. 

(iv) That the Director of Resources be authorised to take steps to 
implement the new pay structure, by agreement or otherwise, in the 
light of the negotiations with Trade Unions. 

 
(Having declared a personal and prejudicial interest, Councillor Smith left the 
meeting during consideration of this matter) 
 

172 Comprehensive Performance Assessment - 2007 Result  
The Assistant Chief Executive (Policy, Planning and Improvement) submitted 
a report updating members on the arrangements for reporting Leeds City 
Council’s Comprehensive Performance Assessment (CPA) judgement for 
2007, namely a 4 star authority which is improving well. 
 
RESOLVED –  
(i) That the contents of the report be noted. 
(ii) That all staff of the authority be offered the thanks of the Board for their 

contribution to this result. 
 

173 225 York Road Taxi and Private Hire Licensing Section Extension  
The Assistant Chief Executive (Corporate Governance) submitted a report on 
a proposed extension to the existing purpose built accommodation for the 
Taxi and Private Hire Licensing Section at 225 York Road. 
 
RESOLVED – 
(i) That the further injection into the 2007/08 capital programme of 

£84,000 be approved. 
(ii) That authority be given to incur expenditure of £610,000 on 

construction costs, £17,600 on equipment and £78,500 on fees. 
 

Page 7



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 12th March, 2008 

 

DEVELOPMENT AND REGENERATION 
 

174 West End Partnership - Proposed Memorandum of Understanding  
The Director of City Development submitted a report on a proposed 
Memorandum of Understanding which would facilitate collaboration between 
Leeds City Council and six private developers to promote the West End 
vision. 
 
RESOLVED – 
(i) That the Council be authorised to enter into the Memorandum of 

Understanding with the six companies comprising the West End 
Partnership. 

(ii) That the general terms of the Memorandum of Understanding as 
outlined in paragraph 2.6 of the report, be agreed, with the specific 
details being agreed by the Director of City Development and the 
Assistant Chief Executive (Corporate Governance) as appropriate. 

(iii) That the Director of City Development be requested to examine 
processes whereby elected Members can be briefed as to progress of 
the proposals. 

 
175 Roundhay Road Proposed High Occupancy Vehicle Lane  

The Director of City Development submitted a report on the proposed 
implementation of a scheme to improve the existing bus lane on Roundhay 
Road, which would facilitate its use by High Occupancy Vehicles, in addition 
to ensuring a more reliable passage for buses at an overall cost of £540,000. 
 
RESOLVED – 
(i) That the Roundhay Road Bus and High Occupancy Vehicle Corridor 

Scheme, as illustrated on drawing numbers 760217/002, at an 
estimated cost of £538,717 be approved. 

(ii) That £511,717 expenditure, comprising £336,354 works costs, 
statutory undertakers costs of £103,619 and a further £71,744 staff 
costs for supervision, monitoring and enforcement be approved. These 
costs to be met from the Integrated Transport Scheme 99609 within the 
approved Capital Programme which is eligible for 100% Government 
funding and may be reimbursed at a later date via Section 106 
contributions. 

(iii) That the previous approval of staff costs of £27,000 which were met 
from the Integrated Transport Scheme 99609 within the approved 
Capital Programme be noted. 

 
176 Private Streets Programme  

The Director of City Development submitted a report which provided an 
update on the progress of the Private Streets Programme, sought approval to 
extend the programme for a further 3 years from April 2008 and to incur 
expenditure of a further £3,600,000, which was the remaining balance of the 
overall capital programme provision for the initiative. 
 
RESOLVED – 

Page 8



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 12th March, 2008 

 

(i) That the updated position report on the current Private Streets 
Programme be noted. 

(ii) That the continuation of the Private Streets Programme for a further 3 
years up to and including 2010/11 be approved. 

(iii) That authority be given to the further expenditure of £3,600,000 on the 
continuing implementation of the Private Streets Programme, funded 
from Scheme Number 28967 in the approved Capital Programme, 
£4,200,000 expenditure having been previously approved. 

 
(Councillor Wakefield declared a personal interest in this matter as the owner 
of a property adjoining a street which had benefited under this programme) 
 

177 Albion Place Refurbishment  
The Director of City Development submitted a report which sought approval of 
the project’s scheme design, and sought authority to spend monies from 
Leeds City Council’s capital budget for the refurbishment scheme. 
 
Following consideration of appendix 1 to the report designated as exempt 
under Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4(3), which was considered in 
private at the conclusion of the meeting it was 
 
RESOLVED – 
(i) That the scheme design, as outlined within the report be approved. 
(ii) That the release of scheme expenditure as detailed in table (vi) at lines 

CPRH (3) and CPRH (6) of exempt appendix 1 be authorised.  
 

178 Yeadon Town and District Centre Regeneration Scheme  
The Directors of City Development and Environment and Neighbourhoods 
submitted a joint report on a proposal to spend £941,218 to aid the 
regeneration of Yeadon High Street by making significant improvements to 
the public realm and pedestrian use of the area. 
 
RESOLVED – 
(i) That the project brief and scheme design as presented within the report 

be noted. 
(ii) That the Design and Cost Report for scheme 12154/YEA/000 be 

approved, and that the scheme expenditure, totalling £941,218 be 
authorised. 

 
NEIGHBOURHOODS AND HOUSING 
 

179 Little London and Beeston Hill and Holbeck PFI Projects - Land 
Assembly Issues and Update on the Lovells Multi-Storey Flats  
The Directors of Environment and Neighbourhoods and City Development 
submitted a joint report providing an update on the Beeston Hill and Holbeck 
and Little London PFI schemes, commenting on the Outline Business Case 
for Beeston Hill and Holbeck which had been made available to Members of 
the Board and proposing a number of key recommendations to enable the 
projects to progress. 
 

Page 9



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 12th March, 2008 

 

Following consideration of appendices 5,7, 8 and 9 to the report designated 
as exempt under Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4(3) which were 
considered in private at the conclusion of the meeting, it was 
 
RESOLVED – 
 
(i) In respect of the properties at Little London: 
 

a) That the Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods be authorised 
to make a Compulsory Purchase Order in respect of such properties 
and interests as may be required subject to the Director being 
satisfied that the requirements of Section 226(1)(a) of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) and the provisions of 
Circular 06/2004 are complied with. 

 
b) That officers be authorised to take all necessary steps to secure the 
making, confirmation  and implementation of the Compulsory 
Purchase Order including: 
 
(i) the publication  and service of all notices and the presentation 

of the Councils case at any Public Inquiry 
 

(ii) approving the acquisition of interest in land within the 
Compulsory Purchase Order either by agreement or by way of 
compulsory powers 
 

(iii) approving agreements with landowners setting out the terms 
for the withdrawal of objections to the Order including, where 
appropriate, seeking exclusion of land from the Order and/or 
making arrangements for the relocation of occupiers 
 

(iv) such other agreements including Indemnity and Development 
Agreements as may be necessary to promote the Scheme. 

 

(ii) In respect of the properties at Beeston Hill and Holbeck: 
 

a)  That the development sites included in the PFI scheme be noted 
and the Director of City Development be authorised to enter into 
such negotiations as are required to acquire properties and interests 
within the area on such terms as she thinks appropriate in order to 
facilitate the Scheme, subject to the approval by government of the 
PFI Outline Business Case for Beeston Hill and Holbeck. 

 
b) That the Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods be authorised 
to make a Compulsory Purchase Order in respect of such properties 
as may be required subject to the Director being satisfied that the 
requirements of Section 229(1)(a) of the Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990 (as amended) and Circular 06/2004 are complied with. 

 

Page 10



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 12th March, 2008 

 

c) That officers be authorised to take all necessary steps to secure the 
making, confirmation and implementation of the Compulsory 
Purchase Order including:- 

 

(i) the publication  and service of all notices and the presentation 
of the Council’s case at any Public Inquiry 
 

(ii) approving the acquisition of interest in land within the 
Compulsory Purchase Order either by agreement  or by way of 
compulsory powers 
 

(iii) approving agreements with landowners setting out terms for 
the withdrawal of objections to the Order including, where 
appropriate, seeking exclusion of land from the Order and/or 
making arrangements for the relocation of occupiers 
 

(iv) such other agreements including Indemnity and Development 
Agreements as may be necessary to promote the Scheme 

 
(iii) That the Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods, in consultation 

with  the Assistant Chief Executive (Corporate Governance), be 
authorised to make minor changes to the development site boundaries 
in both Beeston Hill & Holbeck and Little London where required as a 
result of further due diligence. 

 
(iv) That the Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods be authorised to 

make an application to Government for Decent Homes funding for 
refurbishment of the Lovells multi-storey flats. 

 
(v) That  the financial issues detailed in exempt appendix 9 to the report 

be agreed and that approval be given to the affordability of both the 
Beeston and Holbeck and Little London schemes and to the capital 
contribution for the Beeston Hill and Holbeck PFI scheme. 

 
180 Disposal of Land for Affordable Housing  

The Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods submitted a report on a 
proposal to dispose of the first six sites from the 77 acres within the Affordable 
Housing Strategic Partnership at less than best consideration calculated at 
£5,000 per plot. The report also sought approval for the Director of City 
Development to undertake further disposals of sites within the Affordable 
Housing Strategic Partnership at less than best consideration of £5,000 per 
plot. 
 
RESOLVED –  
(i) That the disposal of the first six sites within the Affordable Housing 

Strategic Partnership at less than best consideration, calculated at 
£5,000 per plot be approved. 

(ii) That the Director of City Development be authorised to dispose of other 
sites within the 77 acres allocated to the Affordable Housing Strategic 

Page 11



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 12th March, 2008 

 

Partnership where the disposal is at less than best consideration 
calculated at £5,000 per plot. 

(iii) That the Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods be requested to 
prioritise progress on the Highfield Gardens site within the context of 
the Board’s decision of 19th December 2007 on options for Building 
Council Housing with appropriate adjustments to this programme. 

 
 
CHILDREN'S SERVICES 
 

181 Annual Standards Report - Primary  
The Chief Executive of Education Leeds submitted a report providing an 
overview of the performance of primary schools at the end of 2006/07, as 
demonstrated through statutory national testing, Ofsted inspections and the 
Education Leeds emerging concerns protocols. It also outlined the action 
taken by Education Leeds to fulfil its responsibilities to this Board and schools. 
 
Following consideration of annex 2 to the report designated as exempt under 
Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4(1) and (2), which was considered 
in private at the conclusion of the meeting, it was 
 
RESOLVED –That the progress which has been made in recent years, in 
addition to the key issues and challenges which are currently being addressed 
be noted. 
 

182 Annual Standards Report - Secondary  
The Chief Executive of Education Leeds submitted a report providing an 
overview of the performance of secondary schools at the end of 2006/07 
which analysed the results of the tests at the end of Key Stage 3, GCSE and 
vocational examinations at Key Stage 4.  The report also reviewed the 
progress of schools receiving additional support through the extended or 
focused partnerships. 
 
Following consideration of annex 3 to the report designated as exempt under 
Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4(1) and (2) which was considered 
in private at the conclusion of the meeting it was 
 
RESOLVED –  
(a) That the contents of the report be noted, together with the good 

progress made in recent years, the improvements achieved in value 
added indicators particularly for progress between Key Stages 2-3 and 
Key Stages 3-4, the new floor targets which have been established at 
Key Stages 3 and 4 which focus upon achievement in English and 
mathematics and require new strategies from schools to ensure that 
pupils achieve, in addition to the co-ordination and combination of 
efforts from across the service areas of Education Leeds and Children 
Leeds that will be necessary to improve outcomes for underachieving 
groups and to close the gap between the most and the least 
successful. 

Page 12



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 12th March, 2008 

 

(b) That the Chief Executive of Education Leeds be requested to bring a 
further report to the Board on the strategies being used to address 
identified areas of comparative under achievement. 

 
183 The 'Children's Plan - Building Brighter Futures'  

The Director of Children’s Services submitted a report summarising the 
content of the recently published ‘Children’s Plan – Building Brighter Futures’ 
and highlighting the key implications within the plan for children’s services in 
Leeds. 
 
RESOLVED – That the proposal for the authority to lead the development to 
renew the city’s strategy for children’s services through a revised Children and 
Young People’s Plan be approved. 
 

184 Integrated Capital Strategy for Youth Centres  
The Director of Children’s Services submitted a report on a proposal to 
develop an integrated capital strategy designed to enable quality integrated 
youth centres to be established in Leeds. 
 
RESOLVED –  
(i) That the establishment of an integrated capital strategy for youth 

centres, as described within the report be approved. 
(ii) That proposals be progressed for the establishment of quality youth 

hub centres in pursuance of the ambitions detailed within the report. 
(iii) That approval be given for the strategy to be progressed by the 

emerging Integrated Youth Support Service and as part of the wider 
Children’s Services Asset Management Plan. 

 
185 Leeds Independent Living PFI Project  

The Deputy Chief Executive submitted a report providing an update on the 
affordability position of the Children’s Services element of the Independent 
Living Project. The report also outlined the sites to be used within the 
Independent Living Project and sought approval to lease the relevant sites to 
the PFI contractor for use during the 25 year life of the contract. 
 
Following consideration of appendix 1 to the report designated as exempt 
under Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4(3), which was considered in 
private at the conclusion of the meeting, it was 
 
RESOLVED –  
(i) That the financial implications for the Council entering into the 

Children’s Services element of the Independent Living Project be 
approved, and the maximum affordability ceiling for that element of 
£360,000 for the first full financial year (2010/11) as set out in exempt 
appendix 1 to the report be agreed. 

(ii) That, subject to consent being obtained as required under Section 25 
of the Local Government Act 1988, authority be given to the Chief 
Asset Management Officer to determine the disposal of those sites 
detailed at appendix 2 to the report under Section 123 of the Local 
Government Act 1972, to the housing management contractor under 

Page 13



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 12th March, 2008 

 

the  Independent Living Project, on a leasehold basis and at less than 
best consideration where indicated. 

 
ADULT HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE 
 

186 Health and Wellbeing Partnership Arrangements  
The Director of Adult Social Services submitted a report outlining the 
proposed changes to the functions and partnership structure under the 
Healthy Leeds Partnership, the consultation process which had been 
undertaken, and the response to the key points which had emerged from such 
consultation. As one of the key partners, the Executive Board was asked to 
give its approval to the proposed changes to the Healthy Leeds Partnership. 
 
RESOLVED – 
(i) That the summary of comments received through the consultation on 

revised partnership arrangements for health and well being be noted. 
(ii) That the proposals detailed within the consultation document on health 

and wellbeing partnership arrangements be supported. 
(iii) That Leeds City Council’s support for the partnership proposals be 

reported to the Healthy Leeds Partnership at its next scheduled 
meeting on 10th March 2008. 

 
187 Consultation Paper - Valuing People Now: From Progress to 

Transformation  
The Director of Adult Social Services submitted a report providing information 
on the publication of a recent document from the Department of Health 
entitled ‘Valuing People Now – From Progress to Transformation’, which 
followed on from earlier Valuing People documents seeking to promote equal 
citizenship for people with learning disabilities.  
 
RESOLVED – 
(i) That the publication of the Valuing People Now document and the wide 

ranging proposals it makes in relation to improving  the lives of people 
with learning disabilities be noted. 

(ii) That the implications for the Council as detailed in  section 4 of the 
report, particularly in relation to the transfer of commissioning 
responsibilities from the PCT and in relation to the provision of more 
individualised and community based service provision for people with 
learning disabilities be noted. 

(iii) That the preparation of a consultation response by the Leeds Learning 
Disability Partnership Board be noted. 

(iv) That the proposal for the final report to be issued by the Department of 
Health in the summer be noted. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
DATE OF PUBLICATION:  12TH FEBRUARY 2008 

Page 14



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 12th March, 2008 

 

LAST DATE FOR CALL IN: 19TH FEBRUARY 2008 (5.00 PM) 
 
 
 
(Scrutiny Support will notify Directors of any items called in by 12 noon on 
Wednesday 20th February 2008) 
 
 
 

Page 15



Page 16

This page is intentionally left blank



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\5\4\7\AI00010745\Tinshillreccoverreport3mar1.doc 

  

Report of : The Director of City Development 

To : Executive Board:  

Date:   12 March 2008 

Subject:  TINSHILL RECREATION GROUND 

 

Electoral Wards Affected:  Specific Implications For:  

 

WEETWOOD & ADEL & WHARFEDALE 

 

  
Ward Members consulted     
(referred to in report) 

 

 

 
Equality and Diversity           
 
Community Cohesion           
 
Narrowing the Gap               

   

Eligible for Call In  
 Not Eligible for Call In 

(Details contained in the report) 
 

  

 

Executive Summary 

The meeting of Council on 16 January 2008, received a deputation from the Tinshill Recreation De-
Fence Group which objects to the proposals to upgrade the 6 existing sports pitches at Tinshill 
Recreation Ground and for 2 of the pitches to be fenced for use by Ralph Thoresby High School 
during school hours. 
 
The report outlines the previous decisions of Executive Board to support the fencing proposals, the  
issues with regard to health and safety when the school previously used unenclosed pitches, and the 
relationship between the provision of fenced pitches and the release of the former school site to 
facilitate a comprehensive regeneration scheme of the adjacent Holt Park District Centre.  
 
The report considers the matters raised by the deputation and provides a response to each of the 
issues. Executive Board is requested to note the contents of the report. 
 
 
 

1.0 Purpose of This Report 
  
1.1 The purpose of this report is to respond to a range of issues raised by a deputation to Council 

on 16 January 2008 with regard to the proposed fencing of two pitches at Tinshill Recreation 
Ground and to request Executive Board to note the report. 

  

 

Originator:  C Ball 
 
Tel: 74460 

Agenda Item 6

Page 17



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\5\4\7\AI00010745\Tinshillreccoverreport3mar1.doc 

 
2.0 Background Information 
  
2.1 In October 2007, Executive Board considered a report on progress with the proposed 

regeneration of Holt Park District Centre and issues regarding the fencing of two sports 
pitches at Tinshill Recreation Ground to meet the curriculum needs of the new Ralph 
Thoresby High School. 

  
2.2 Executive Board resolved:  
  
 (a) That the development of regeneration options at Holt Park District Centre be 

progressed on the basis of the inclusion of the former Ralph Thoresby High School site 
within the overall redevelopment area 

   
 (b) That the outcome of public consultation on the proposed regeneration of Holt Park 

District Centre and the fencing of the two pitches at Tinshill Recreation Ground be 
noted 

   
 (c) That a 1.8 metre high, steel mesh fence with four gates to the two pitches at Tinshill 

Recreation Ground adjacent to Farrar Lane, be procured and erected. 
   
 (d) That a report be brought back to this Board detailing the terms for access to the two 

fenced pitches both for organised sports and general public access. 
  
2.3 In November 2007, Executive Board considered an additional report on the management and 

access arrangements for the two fenced sports pitches and upgrading of other pitches at 
Tinshill Recreation Ground.  Executive Board agreed the proposals including the development 
of a pilot project for sports users of Tinshill Recreation Ground to access the new changing 
and parking facilities at Ralph Thoresby High School.   

  
2.4 At the meeting of Council on 16 January 2008, Members received a deputation from the 

Tinshill Recreation De-Fence Group who stated they are “concerned about a plan to turn our 
recreation ground into pitches built to Sport England standards, and fence off at least two of 
them against the wishes of our community”.  The statement, a copy of which is attached at 
Appendix 1, identified a number of issues which are considered in section 4 of this report 

  

3.0 Tinshill Recreation Ground - the Context 

  

3.1 Tinshill Recreation Ground occupies an open area of approximately 20 acres (8.2 ha) and is 
used for both passive and active recreation. There is a fall in levels across the site of 
approximately 17 metres and the pitches suffer from very poor drainage.  Two of the 6 sports 
pitches have recently been upgraded with the creation of new, level playing surfaces which 
incorporate a comprehensive drainage system. The contract has been let for the remaining 4 
pitches to be improved this summer.  The top 2 pitches, as shown on the attached plan, are 
scheduled to be fenced to enable the curriculum requirements and the health and safety 
responsibilities of Ralph Thoresby High School and the Council, to be satisfied.  The two 
fenced sports pitches occupy approximately 4 acres (20%) of the overall Tinshill Recreation 
Ground site with the remaining area of approximately 16 acres (80%) unfenced and with 
unrestricted access as now. 

  
3.2 In November 2007, Executive Board agreed a report setting out the arrangements for public 

access to the two fenced pitches and instructed that reports be brought back to the Board on 
an annual basis with regard to operation of the arrangements including frequency and 
passage of usage. 

  

4.0 Objections by the Tinshill Recreation De-Fence Group 
  
4.1 In the submission to Council on 16 January 2008, the group raised the following issues:- 
  

Page 18



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\5\4\7\AI00010745\Tinshillreccoverreport3mar1.doc 

 1) Community Engagement – “the Council have not listened to the views of local 

people, only six people are known to have supported this project.  The Plans 

Panel was against it, so were many elected representatives”. 
   
  Response 
   
  The community were consulted on proposals relating to the future of Tinshill Recreation 

Ground and the possibility of fencing some of the pitches as part of the planning 
application for the erection of the new Ralph Thoresby High School, both at outline 
stage when the possibility of enclosure was first raised and when the reserved matters 
for approval were submitted. The outline application, which was approved in November 
2004, resulted in a petition of 93 signatures and two individual letters of objection which 
related to concerns that the whole of the area was to be enclosed. Proposals to fence 
two pitches under the reserved matters submission were withdrawn at the request of the 
Plans Panel, although no objections were received at this time. The application was 
approved on 16 March 2005. 

   
  The consultations undertaken on the wider proposals for the regeneration of the Holt 

Park District Centre in January/February 2007, and which included the fencing of two 
sports pitches at Tinshill Recreation Ground, generated much public interest, although 
the proposed pitch fencing was not raised as an issue by the majority of people 
attending the consultation exhibition.   

   
  This response was reflected in the 125 comment forms returned to the Council following 

the public consultation process.  Whilst 64 respondents referred to the proposed fencing 
of the two pitches, the main concern related to the need to ensure there will be 
community access to pitches outside of school use rather than the fencing itself.  Of 
those expressing a specific view on the issue, the response was 6 in support of the  
erection of fencing and 6 against. 

   
  The planning application, which was submitted in April 2007 for the erection of a fence 

around the two pitches closest to Farrar Lane, resulted in 24 individual representations 
against, together with a 135 signature petition objecting to the proposals. As Members 
will be aware the Plans Panel West, on a majority decision, was minded to refuse the 
application. The Panel, however, was given legal advice that as a result of the changes 
made to the proposal, it no longer required planning permission. These changes related 
to a reduction in the height of the fence to 1.8 metres and the proposal to make the 2 
pitches available for public access at all times other than when the school would have 
priority access. Members were also advised that measures were being put in place, 
pursuant to a condition attached to the reserved matters approval for the new school, for 
the changing and parking facilities at the school to be made available to teams booking 
the playing fields through a single point of contact.  

   
  With regard to elected representatives, views from ward members, Plans Panel 

members and members of North West Inner Area Committee and North West Outer 
Area Committee have been expressed both for and against the fencing proposals. 

   
 2) Equality Monitoring – “The Council are building pitches that will be mainly used 

by men, to the exclusion of women, pre-school children, elderly and disabled”. 
   
  Response 
   
  The pitches at present are open to all individuals, groups and teams for them to use on 

an informal or formal basis.  With the exception of the allocated hours of use by the 
school for the two top pitches (male and female pupils), there will be no change and no 
exclusions to women, pre-school, the elderly and disabled. 

   
  There is, however, every  prospect that the significantly improved quality of the pitches, 

together with access to changing, shower, toilet and parking facilities at Ralph Thoresby 

Page 19



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\5\4\7\AI00010745\Tinshillreccoverreport3mar1.doc 

High School, will actually improve the situation for the groups referred to in the petition. 
   
  Currently Tinshill Recreation Ground is used by 3 adult and 2 junior male teams 

prepared to play on the poor quality pitches and with an absence of any changing or 
parking facilities (this itself has generated complaints from local residents regarding 
players changing on site and parking related issues). 

   
  When the upgrade of Tinshill Recreation Ground has been completed, an estimated 

15/18 teams will be accommodated on the 6 pitches.  Expressions of interest have 
already been received by both girls and women’s football teams wishing to use the 
upgraded pitches and, through the community access agreement being finalised with 
Ralph Thoresby High School, to have access to the new facilities available at the school. 
In addition, the availability of 2 fenced pitches for community use is seen as providing a 
more secure playing environment for girls and women’s teams. 

   
 3) Safety - “We have seen no evidence of a Playing Field Risk Assessment as could 

be provided by ROSPA”. 
   
  Response 
   
  Reports to Executive Board in July 2005 and October 2007, identified the range of 

health & safety risks and issues experienced by the school when using unfenced pitches 
for sports and other curriculum activities.  Issues related to interruption of lessons by 
people walking across the pitches during sports/PE lessons, abuse and intimidation of 
pupils and staff, joy riding and the presence of dog faeces, broken glass and other litter 
and debris. 

   
  It was for these reasons the school, a number of years ago, fenced in its own grass and 

redgra pitches (now the site of the recently opened new school) to focus sports and 
other curriculum activities within this protected space. 

   
  The report to Executive Board in October 2007, set out the key considerations and 

legislative background regarding the health and safety of school pupils and staff (paras 
2.4 (11) and paras 5.6 to 5.13). 

   
  In summary, the responsibilities of the employers, including the school, can be 

described as follows:- 
   
  i) An employer must have a health & safety policy and arrangements to implement it. 
    
  ii) Employers must assess the risks of all activities, introduce measures to manage 

those risks, and tell their employees about the measures. 
    
  To satisfy the obligations referred to in the paragraphs above, the school has assessed 

the risks, considered past health and safety incidents and confirmed a requirement for 
fenced pitches to protect pupils, staff and other uses. A dog fence is not adequate. 

   
  Subsequently, the Education Leeds Child Protection Coordinator has been consulted 

and has advised that the Children Act 2004 and Education Act 2002 also apply and 
require all local authorities to have arrangements in place to safeguard and promote the 
welfare of children.  To allow public access during school games/PE lessons, especially 
given the past health and safety issues experienced by the school when using unfenced 
pitches, may be considered a failure of the Council’s strategic responsibilities should an 
incident occur. 

   
  In addition, the Safeguarding Children and Safer Recruitment 2007 guidance issued by 

the Department for Children, Schools and Families and which local authorities are 
obliged to comply with, states that governing bodies are accountable for ensuring there 
are effective safeguarding policies and procedures in place to protect users of school 

Page 20



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\5\4\7\AI00010745\Tinshillreccoverreport3mar1.doc 

facilities. 
   
  Guidance from the Association for Physical Education – “Safe Practice in Physical 

Education and School Sport” is also relevant.  The guidance states that “safety on 
playing fields can be adversely affected by the aftermath of trespass – broken glass, 
cans and other rubbish generally deposited on these areas create serious risk to pupils. 
 Deposits of dog or cat faeces can cause toxicariasis in humans with symptoms which 
include blindness, asthma, epilepsy and general aches and pains.  All practical 
measures should be taken to keep animals off playing surfaces and encourage owners 
to remove any offending deposits immediately”. 

   
  Apart from the health and safety and welfare issues, there is a financial cost.  The 

vehicle driven onto one of the upgraded pitches at Tinshill Recreation Ground in October 
2007 and set alight caused damage estimated at £20k (the underground, plastic 
drainage system was destroyed by the heat generated). 

   
 4) Sports & Pitch Strategy - “There seems to be no proper plan for fields in 

Weetwood, there are other proposals to destroy pitches at Boddington, 

Lawnswood, and Otley Old Road”. 
   
  Response 
   
  A sport pitch strategy has been prepared and approved by Executive Board which 

divides the city into sectors each with a supporting area committee.  
   
  The North West Inner Area Committee has designated the upgraded Tinshill Recreation 

Ground as the Community Club site for the area.  The establishment of Community Club 
sites is a Sport England initiative and the proposals at Tinshill Recreation Ground 
support this.  

   
  The remaining sites referred to by the deputation are owned by third parties and the 

Council can only respond to proposals put forward by the owners.  Any such proposals 
will have to be considered in the context of Council and government policies (PPG17) 
which include re-provision of any facilities proposed to be removed. 

   
 5. Permitted Development  - “We would like to know if a planning rule called an 

Article 4  Direction could be used to stop the fence, if the Council so wished? 
   
  Response 
   
  Article 4(1) of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order, 

1995, does enable a local planning authority to remove specified permitted development 
rights which could otherwise to be exercised under Part 2 of Schedule 2.  The effect of 
this would be to require a planning application to be submitted for the proposals.   The 
Council’s Chief Legal Officer and Chief Planning Officer have both previously advised 
that the Council should only do this if it concludes, in its capacity as local planning 
authority, that the development would be prejudicial to the proper planning of its area or 
constitute a threat to the amenities of its area (see art 5 (4)). It would require a very 
compelling case to be made before overruling a statutory right granted by Parliament 
and would be time limited to 6 months duration unless either disallowed or approved by 
the Secretary of State who must be served with the notice. Given the changes made by 
the applicants and the planning officer’s previous recommendation for approval of the 
proposals, the officer view is that the case for an Article 4 Direction in these 
circumstances would be difficult to sustain.   

   
  Although authority to make an Article 4 Direction in appropriate circumstances lies with 

the Council as planning authority, in this particular case it remains a matter for the 
Council as landowner to reach a decision on whether in all the circumstances it wishes 
to fence this land. It should be noted that Executive Board has already supported the 

Page 21



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\5\4\7\AI00010745\Tinshillreccoverreport3mar1.doc 

erection of the fence.  
   
 6. Sport England - “We would like to know if Sport England were consulted before 

the new School was built on sport pitches, or during the planning process for the 

fence. 
   
  Response 
   
  Sport England were first consulted in September 2002 on the initial regeneration 

proposals at Holt Park District Centre and which included an upgrade of pitches at 
Tinshill Recreation Ground including provision of 2 fenced pitches for use by Ralph 
Thoresby High School.  

   
  Consultation continued with Sport England as the regeneration proposals at Holt Park 

District Centre evolved and subsequently included proposals for the new school. 
   
  Sport England were statutory consultees on both the outline and reserved matters 

planning applications for the new Ralph Thoresby High School.  In neither case did they 
make any reference to whether it would be desirable or not for any form of fencing (dog 
proof or higher) to be provided for all of the pitches on Tinshill Recreation Ground.  They 
raised no objection to either application subject to : 

   
  (a) The new pitches being constructed to a sufficiently high standard to be used by 

both community and school users and; 
    
  (b) Establishing a suitable form of agreement to ensure community access to indoor 

and outdoor sports facilities within the school site. 
   
  In response to Sport England’s comments and reflecting the views of the Plans Panel, 

the condition referred to in response to the Delegation’s first point above was attached 
to the reserved matters approval, requiring submission and approval of a scheme for the 
maintenance and management of community access to facilities both within the school 
and on Tinshill Recreation Ground. To date, no formal submission has been made to 
discharge the condition and any submission would be subject to consultation with Sport 
England. 
 
The two elements forming the basis of the scheme will, however, be the Service Level 
Agreement between the school and the council in respect of school access to Tinshill 
Recreation Ground and the pilot project, which was endorsed by Executive Board at the 
November 2007 meeting, to provide for changing and parking facilities to be made 
available to teams booking the playing fields through a single point of contact. 

   
  The Pilot Project was launched at Ralph Thoresby High School on 18 February 2008 

and members of the local community were given the opportunity to register their interest 
and tour the school. The event generated a significant number of enquiries through the 
Education Lettings Unit’s booking line before the launch. In addition, approximately 25 
visitors representing in excess of 50 individual booking opportunities, attended the 
launch. A wide variety of parties registered their interest in using the new facilities 
including junior football and cricket teams, church groups, women’s hockey teams and 
conference organisers. 

   
 7. Scrutiny - “We were told that Councillors were to refer the matter to a Scrutiny 

Board.  We would like to know if this matter has been referred to Scrutiny, and, if 

not, how can we apply?” 
   
  Response 
   
  Reference to a Scrutiny Board has been considered by the Scrutiny Support Unit but 

this has not been progressed on the basis that consideration of planning applications is 

Page 22



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\5\4\7\AI00010745\Tinshillreccoverreport3mar1.doc 

a regulatory function of the Council and is outside the scope of Scrutiny Boards to 
consider and, in any event, relevant grounds to sustain a request for investigation have 
not been provided to date. 

   
  Members of the public are able to request that the decisions, policies and overall 

performance of the Council be examined by a Scrutiny Board which can make 
recommendations. Reasons for the request have to be set out to enable a determination 
to be made on whether the matter should be referred to a Scrutiny Board. 

   

5.0 Implications for Council Policy and Governance 
  
5.1 The upgrade of pitches at Tinshill Recreation Ground supports the Council’s strategy for sport, 

the playing pitch strategy and the development of Community Club sites across the City. 
  
5.2 The fencing of the two sports pitches will also assist the Council in discharging its health and 

safety responsibilities and other statutory requirements including arrangements to safeguard 
and promote the welfare of children. 

  
5.3 The provision of the two upgraded and fenced pitches will also facilitate the release of the 

former school site which is pivotal to the opportunity to deliver the proposed regeneration of 
Holt Park District Centre.  This will enable a range of key aims and objectives set out in the 
Vision for Leeds and the Council's Corporate Plan 2005/08 to be delivered.  In particular, the 
proposals will support Council priorities regarding improving local neighbourhoods; promoting 
thriving and harmonious places for people to live; making sure children and young people are 
happy, healthy, safe, successful and free from the effects of poverty and ensuring people are 
able to live healthy and fulfilling lives.  
 
The Council is now developing an expression of interest to the Department for Health for  
£30m of PFI credits for a Well Being Centre at Holt Park. The proposals will incorporate a new 
Leisure Centre, including swimming pools and fitness suite, together with health facilities in 
cooperation with the Department of Adult Social Care and the Leeds Primary Care Trust . 
Given the constraints on site availability at Holt Park District Centre, the proposed new facility 
will have to be located on the site of the old Ralph Thoresby High School given this is the only 
undeveloped area capable of accommodating the wide range of new facilities envisaged in the 
proposals. 

  
 Consultation 
  
5.4 Reference has been made (para 4.1) to the consultation and representations received both 

with regard to the fencing issue and the potential regeneration of Hold Park District Centre. 
  

6.0 Legal and Resources Implications 
  
6.1 The upgrade of the pitches at Tinshill Recreation Ground and the fencing of the top two 

pitches is a fully funded scheme. 
  

7.0 Conclusion 
  
7.1 The Tinshill Recreation De-Fence Group is opposed to the fencing of 2 pitches at Tinshill 

Recreation Ground and has requested the Council to reconsider the decision for the fencing to 
proceed. 

  
7.2 The group has raised a number of issues and the report provides a response to each of the 

concerns identified. 
  
 In terms of Community Engagement, the Council has undertaken public consultation through 

the Holt Park Regeneration proposals, the planning process and with elected members. A 
range of views have been expressed both for and against the proposals and these have been 
considered as part of the Council’s decision making process. Executive Board has previously 

Page 23



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\5\4\7\AI00010745\Tinshillreccoverreport3mar1.doc 

endorsed the provision of fencing in July 2005, October 2007 and November 2007. 
  
7.3 With regard to Equality Monitoring, the assertion that the upgraded pitches will mainly be 

used by men to the exclusion of women and other groups is not sustainable. The upgraded 
pitches, linked to the availability of car parking and changing facilities at the new school in 
accordance with the requirements of planning conditions and the provisions of the Pilot 
Project, will enable more people to participate in active sport including girl’s and women’s 
teams who have already expressed a wish to utilise the new facilities available. 
 

  
7.4    In  respect  of Safety, this is perhaps the key issue. The school, its governors and the Council 

in its role as owner of Tinshill Recreation Ground and as Local Education Authority, all have 
important responsibilities in terms of statutory legislation and guidance with regard to the 
health, safety and well being of schoolchildren. 

 
7.5 Giv   Having regard to the history of issues associated with past use of open sports pitches by 

Ralph Thoresby High School, and similar issues at a number of other schools, a failure to 
provide fenced pitches to satisfy the curriculum requirements of the new school would raise 
significant health and safety concerns.  

 
7.6 The The alternative of providing fenced pitches on the former school site has been considered in 

the previous reports to Executive Board and would mean a comprehensive regeneration of 
Holt Park District centre could not proceed given the pivotal role of the site in bringing forward 
development proposals. 

 
7.7 With regard to the potential for an Article 4 Direction, the report outlines the reasons why this 

is not an appropriate course of action for the Council.  
  
7.8 The report also identifies how Sport England has been fully engaged in the process and has 

not raised objections  to the proposals. 
  
7.9 With regard to a referral to Scrutiny Board, the required procedures have been outlined in the 

report. 
  
7.10 Executive Board is requested to note the representations made by the Tinshill Recreation De-

Fence Group and to note the response as set out in this report. 
  
8.0 Recommendation 
  
8.1  Executive Board is requested to note the contents of the report. 
 
  
 
 

Page 24



New
Ralph Thoresby
High School

Tinshill
Recreation Ground

& Upgraded Playing Fields

Holt Park
District Centre

CROWN COPYRIGHT. ALL RIGHTS RESERVED. LEEDS CITY COUNCIL O.S. LICENCE NO. - 100019567 2008

THIS MAP (OR AN EXTRACT) IS AVAILABLE AT A LARGER SIZE GIS 3407 v4

TINSHILL RECREATION GROUND

P
a
g
e
 2

5



P
a
g
e
 2

6

T
h
is

 p
a

g
e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 
 
 

Report of the Director of City Development 
 
Report to: Executive Board  
 
Date: 12 March 2008 
 
Subject: Stage 1 application for a Parks for People Heritage Lottery Funding for 
Middleton Park  
 

        
 
Eligible for Call In                                                 Not Eligible for Call In 
                                                                              (Details contained in the report) 
 
 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
This report informs Executive Board about proposals to submit a Stage 1 Parks for People 
Programme Heritage Lottery Fund application for Middleton Parks and seeks Executive 
Board’s approval for the submission of   the bid. The restoration scheme has the support of 
Wade’s Charity and the match funding is to come from the surrender and subsequent sale of 
218 and 220 Middleton Town Street and adjoining land by Wade’s Charity who own the 
freehold title to these properties.  

If successful, the restoration scheme will deliver up to £1.4m of capital investment into 
Middleton Park and help it to achieve Green Flag status. The scheme will also improve the 
conservation and interpretation of a number of heritage features in the Park. 

Subject to Executive Board approval, the Council will make a Stage 1 application to the 
Heritage Lottery Fund at the end of March 2008. 

Specific Implications For:  
 

Equality and Diversity 
  
Community Cohesion 
 
Narrowing the Gap 

Electoral Wards Affected:  

Middleton 

Originator: 
Andrew Middlemiss / 

Martin Farrington  

Tel:0113 3957472  

 

 

 

X  

 Ward Members consulted 
 (Referred to in report) 
  

X 

APPENDIX 1 NOT FOR PUBLICATION  Exempt / Confidential under Rule 10.4 (3)  

Agenda Item 7

Page 31



1.0 Purpose Of This Report 

1.1 This report concerns proposals for the restoration of Middleton Park and in 
particular: 

1.1.1 Informs Executive Board about the proposal to submit a Stage 1 application for a 
scheme at Middleton Park seeking Heritage Lottery Fund (HLF) funding under the 
Parks for People Programme with the support of Wade’s Charity  

1.1.2 Seeks Executive Board’s approval for the submission of the Stage 1 application. 

1.1.3 Seeks approval from Executive Board to the City Council providing match funding to 
support the Stage 1 application through the surrender and subsequent sale of 218 
and 220 Middleton Town Street and adjoining land.  

2.0   Background Information 

2.1 Middleton Park is operated and managed by Leeds City Council. The majority of the 
Park is leased to the Council by way of a 999 year lease from Wade’s Charity 
whose charitable aim is to provide green space in Leeds. 

  
2.2 In recent years two of the City’s primary parks, Roundhay and Kirkstall, have 

undergone significant investment with the assistance of funding from the Heritage 
Lottery Fund and these parks have subsequently achieved Green Flag status, which 
is a nationally recognised quality benchmark for parks and open spaces. 

 
2.3 However Middleton Park has not benefited from any sizable capital investment and 

consequently is alone amongst the larger Parks in Leeds in not having reached a 
Green Flag status. 

 
2.4 In common with many parks up and down the country, Middleton Park is at a crucial 

point where, without significant investment its important features and structures may 
decay and be lost. Key Issues to be addressed include the infrastructure and 
security of the site; development of the play provision for all ages; visitor and café 
facilities; interpretation detailing the mining heritage history of the area and 
development of historical trails.   

 
2.5 Despite the condition of the park’s infrastructure the visitor analysis figures show 

that it has over 2 million visits each year 90% of which are drawn the local 
catchment area which includes the wards of Middleton, Beeston, City and Holbeck 
and Hunslet. All of these fall into the bottom 16% of Wards in terms of the national 
multiple deprivation indices. 

 
2.6 As a consequence of the issues identified above officers from Leeds City Council 

have liaised with representatives from Wade’s Charity to consider the potential for 
an application to the Heritage Lottery Fund to enable the restoration project to be 
delivered which in turn will enhance the quality of the Park as a visitor experience 
and recreation amenity. Key to a successful application will be the need to improve 
and enhance the heritage core of the Park and to also secure the supporting match 
funding required.   

 
3.0 Main Issues 

 
3.1 The proposal is for a Stage 1 application  to the HLF Parks for People programme 

and to be eligible for funding three criteria have to be met namely that:  

•••• The community values the park as part of their heritage  

•••• That the park meets local social, economic and environmental needs  
Page 32



•••• The park involves local people 
 

3.2 Middleton Park is eligible for the Parks for People as it has:  

•••• a very strong Friends organisation and has over 2 million visits a year; 90% of which 
come from Middleton, Hunslet, Holbeck and Beeston (household surveys 2004/5) 

•••• it provides and supports golf; aero modelling; fishing; bowls; play facilities and open 
air theatre 

•••• as well as the largest remaining ancient woodland site in West Yorkshire, Middleton 
Woods Nature Reserve is of special importance for nature conservation in Leeds  

•••• the woods contain a scheduled ancient monument because of the extensive early 
mining remains. 

 
This view has been reinforced by discussions between the City Council’s consultants 
and the HLF grant officers in the HLF regional office.  
 

3.3 For the Stage 1 application  to be successful in the HLF Parks for People 
programme it has to meet five expected outcomes in that it must: 

•••• Increase the range of audiences  

•••• Conserve and improve the heritage value 

•••• Increase the range of volunteers involved   

•••• Improve skills and knowledge through training 

•••• Improve the management and maintenance 
 

3.4 By undertaking this scheme of works the HLF Parks for People expected outcomes 
would be provided in that the provisional make up of the works within the Stage 1 
application will increase the range of audiences by improving the infrastructure and 
security of the site so allowing greater access by disabled people and by a wider 
age range of people. They will conserve and improve the heritage value likewise 
and also by increasing the interpretation detailing the mining and natural history 
heritage. They will improve the skills and knowledge of visitors by this interpretation 
and by seeking to extend the involvement of volunteers in the visitor centre, the café 
and historical interpretative work. The development of the play provision for all ages 
will involve a greater range of audiences whilst the capital investment will improve 
the ability to manage and maintain the park.  On this basis officers feel that the 
scheme of works proposed will meet the outcomes of the Parks for People 
programme. 
 

3.5 Although the final scheme proposals will be developed through the two stage 
process and subject to consultation the generic improvement areas are expected to 
include  

•••• Path surfacing, landscape furniture and boundary improvements 

•••• Development of the play facilities for all ages 

•••• Visitor and café facilities 

•••• Development of interpretation of the (mining) history and historical trails 
 
Once completed it is intended that the Council will seek Green Flag Status to bring 
Middleton in line with other major Parks. 

 
3.6 Integral to the Stage 1 application will be the requirement for the Council to provide 

an appropriate amount of match funding. In this instance and following discussions 
with Wade’s Charity it is proposed that the Council’s match funding will come from 
the surrender and subsequent sale of 218 and 220 Middleton Town Street. 
 

3.7 Discussions with HLF senior grants officers and consultants acting on behalf of the 
authority and also with representatives of the Charity have indicated that the HLF 

Page 33



are disposed to look favorably on such a funding proposal provided that it was led 
by the council with the support of the Charity. 

  
3.8 In seeking such a structure to the Stage 1 application the HLF is indicating that 

there is a need to manage the financial risks to the execution of this project which 
can only be managed if the City Council has control of the project, its development 
and its finances. It is proposed that the City Council will act as the lead 
administrative body for this application with the support of Wade’s Charity. 
 

3.9 Disposal of these vacant Grade II listed cottages will remove any financial liability 
from the Council for ongoing maintenance, health and safety and security risks 
associated with these properties.  

 

3.10 Middleton Park will receive much needed financial investment as a result of the sale 
of the cottages, enabling the partnership between the Leeds City Council and 
Wades Charities to progress the Middleton Park Parks for People HLF Stage 1 
application.  
 

3.11 The deadline for applications to this programme is March 31st 2008 and the process 
following application is a two stage one with the Stage One decision being made by 
September 1st 2008. 

 
4.0 Implications For Council Policy And Governance 
 
4.1 The implementation of this proposal will have impact on the Council’s priorities in 

Better Outcomes for Local People in that by improving Middleton Park it will 
contribute to the improvement and protection of green and open space and make 
them more accessible. In this context the improvement of Middleton Park will also 
help address the priority of improving the physical mental and social health and 
wellbeing of all Citizens of Leeds.  

 
4.2 By this focussed allocation of investment it will help address the council’s 

prioritisation of services to those who most need them,  while working with Wade’s 
Charity will also further the modernisation aim of developing partnerships with 
others. 

 
4.3 The information contained in the Appendix attached to this report relates to the 

financial or business affairs of a particular person, and of the Council. This 
information is not publicly available from the statutory registers of information kept in 
respect of certain companies and charities.  It is considered that since this 
information will be obtained through inviting of best and final offers for the 
property/land then it is not in the public interest to disclose this information at this 
point in time and will affect the integrity of disposing of property/land by this process. 
Also it is considered that the release of such information would or would be likely to 
prejudice the Council’s commercial interests in relation to other similar transactions 
in that prospective purchasers of other similar properties would be informed about 
the nature and level of offers which may prove acceptable to the Council. It is 
considered that whilst there may be a public interest in disclosure, much of this 
information will be publicly available from the Land Registry following completion of 
this transaction and consequently the public interest in maintaining the exemption 
outweighs the public interest in disclosing this information at this point in time.  It is 
therefore considered that this element of the report should be treated as exempt 
under Rule 10.4 (3) of the Access to Information Procedure Rules. 

 
 
 
 Page 34



5.0  Legal And Resource Implications 
 
5.1 Based on the expected sale value of the cottages outlined in Appendix 1 and 

Wade’s commitment to funding, it is proposed that the total project value will be up 
to £1.4 million. 

5.2  In preparing for the surrender of the leases the legal position has been consulted 
upon and the recommended action undertaken as described in paragraph 2.2 
(above).  

5.3 The match funding is to be provided by the receipt from Wade’s charity following the 
property surrender and disposal; the expectation is that there will be no other capital 
provision required from the authority. 

5.4 The project will not involve any significant requirement for enhanced revenue 
maintenance and as such costs can be contained within existing revenue budgets. 

6.0 Consultations 

6.1 In the course of the preparatory works, consultations have taken place with the 
charity and with members of the public in Middleton particularly with the Friends of 
Middleton Park and also local elected members as well as the Executive Member. 
All of these consultations have resulted in positive feedback for the project’s 
development. 

6.2 As part of the ongoing development of proposals, further consultations are to take 
place with the Friends and local members as well as in the community in Middleton. 
Additionally consultations are planned in the wider community including young 
people. These consultations will be used to inform and develop the proposals which 
will go forward into the Parks for People HLF Stage 1 application in March 2008.    

 
7.0 Recommendations 
 
7.1 That Executive Board approves the proposal to submit a Stage 1 application to the 

Heritage Lottery Fund, with support from Wade’s charity, to restore Middleton Park 
and authorises the Acting Chief Recreation Officer to sign off the application on the 
Council’s behalf.  

7.2 That Executive Board approves the surrender of the leases of 218 and 220 
Middleton Town Street to Wade’s Charity to facilitate the sale and subsequent use 
as match funding for the restoration project at Middleton Park. 

 

Page 35



Page 36

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 37

Exempt / Confidential Under Access to 
Information Procedure Rules 10.4 (3)

Document is Restricted



Page 38

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 

 
 

 Property Management
 

Ratio: 1:625 
 

Property/ Site: Town Street Cottages 
Middleton Park 
Leeds 
LS10 

OS Reference: SE2928SE 

  
 
 

 

 

Garage 

Car  

 

Corporate Property Management 

7th Floor East 
Merrion House 

110 Merrion Centre 
Leeds 

LS2 8DT  
 

218 Town Street - Vacant 

220 Town Street - Vacant 

Page 39



Page 40

This page is intentionally left blank



 

Report of the Director of Adult Social Services 
 
Executive Board  
 
Date:    12 March 2008 
 
Subject:  Deputation to Council - Relate 
 

        
 
Eligible for Call In                                                 Not Eligible for Call In 
                                                                              (Details contained in the report) 
 
 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
1. In April 2005 the then Social Services Department undertook a service review of 

Relate as part of a wider review of all the key list organisations funded. At that time 
there were a number of organisations who had received such grant funding over a 
number of years without the Department being clear as to how the grant payment 
contributed to the achievement of the Departments priorities. The review report was 
considered by the Children’s commissioning board that ultimately led to the 
recommendation that the Social Services Department cease the grant payment.  This 
decision was made on the basis that no causal link could be made between the grant 
payment to Relate and the protection/support responsibilities and priorities within 
Children’s social care. 

 
2. In October 2005 the organisation was informed of the Social Services Department’s 

intention to cease funding from the beginning of the following financial year and 
support was offered to identify other external funding sources.  During 2006 Relate 
made representation on several occasions to the Executive Member for social care, 
Councillor Harrand. Those representations resulted in the award of a one off, non-
recurrent £10k payment in September 2006 to allow the organisation additional time 
to identify alternative funding sources. Funding ceased at the commencement of the 
2007/08 financial year. 

Specific Implications For:  
 

Equality and Diversity 
  
Community Cohesion 
 
Narrowing the Gap 

Electoral Wards Affected:  

All 

Originator: Dennis Holmes 
 
Tel: 2474959 

 

 

 

ü  

 Ward Members consulted 
 (referred to in report) 
  

 

Agenda Item 8

Page 41



1. Background:  
 
1.1 In April 2005 the then Social Services Department undertook a service review of 

Relate as part of a wider review of all the key list organisations funded. At that time 
there were a number of organisations who had received such grant funding over a 
number of years without the Department being clear as to how the grant payment 
contributed to the achievement of the Departments priorities. The review report was 
considered by the Children’s commissioning board that ultimately led to the 
recommendation that the Social Services Department cease the grant payment.  
This decision was made on the basis that no causal link could be made between the 
grant payment to Relate and the protection/support responsibilities and priorities 
within Children’s social care. 

 
1.2 In October 2005 the organisation was informed of the Social Services Department’s 

intention to cease funding from the beginning of the following financial year and 
support was offered to identify other external funding sources.  During 2006 Relate 
made representation on several occasions to the Executive Member for social care, 
Councillor Harrand. Those representations resulted in the award of a one off, non-
recurrent  £10k payment in September 2006 to allow the organisation additional 
time to identify alternative funding sources.  

 
1.3 In December 2006 Relate submitted a further application for funding to Social 

Services. This request for funding was again considered by the Children’s 
Commissioning Group and the same conclusion was reached as it had in October 
2005. Although the application for funding was far from detailed it was clear that the 
intention behind the funding application would not significantly contribute to the 
achievement of the key priorities for Children’s social care. 

 
2. Recent Events leading to this Report 
 
2.1 A further submission from the Relate organisation in Leeds was submitted in 

January 2008 setting out their reasons for grant payments to be reinstated. The 
organisation suggests that the grant monies would be used to defray charges the 
organisation is seemingly obliged to make for it’s counselling services in cases 
where it appeared couples would be less able to pay. 

 
2.2 Social Care services officers (Children and Adults services) were canvassed for 

their views in relation to the submission. 
 
3.0 Financial Implications  
 
3.1 The Relate organisation have asked for a grant worth £23,000 which it is assumed 

they would wish to be recurring. This sum is not included in either Adult or 
Children’s social care services budget allocation and would therefore represent a 
budget pressure. 

 
4.0 Legal Implications 
 
4.1 There are no legal implications 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 42



 
5.0 Conclusions 
 
5.1 Discussions with Children and Adult social care services identified that little, if any, 

referral was made to the services offered by the Relate organisation by statutory 
social care staff. It was felt that this was because the circumstances where statutory 
social care staff were engaged with families experiencing difficulties in relation to 
substance misuse, domestic violence and particularly where these factors impinged 
on the ability of parents to care for their Children, a significant range of structured 
therapeutic services had already been commissioned. 

 
5.2 Within adult social care services, few, if any, adults were subject to referral for 

assessment in relation to difficulties experienced in their relationship outside of a 
safeguarding context, which again were very few in number. Once again, in those 
circumstances a significant range of intervention has been commissioned through 
statutory Health and Social Care agencies in the City. 

 
5.3 It may be the case that some work undertaken by the Relate organisation might 

ultimately reduce overall demand for social care services, however, it is the view of 
Social Care Services officers that this effect is indistinct and it would not therefore 
be prioritised for funding support over other organisations whose impact can be 
more clearly discerned. 

 
5.4 Within the wider community of interest, who generally never have recourse to a 

statutory social care service, the Relate organisation clearly provides a service 
which is used by the public, which they are willing to pay for and through which 
contributes to the overall fabric of support available for all Leeds citizens. Whilst it 
might be seen as desirable that social care services offered support to such activity, 
the finite nature of the resource available to support statutory intervention mitigates 
against this. 

 
6.0 Recommendation 
 
6.1 It is not recommended that Adult or Children’s social care services support the 

request for a recurring grant payment of £23,000. Officers have provided advice to 
the Relate organisation in relation to other sources of funding that they might access 
to support their initiative. 

 
 

 

Page 43



Page 44

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 45



Page 46



 1 

 

APPENDICES 1 & 3 NOT FOR PUBLICATION 

 

Exempt / Confidential under Rule 10.4 (3) 

 
Report of the Director of Adult and Director of Children Services 
 
Executive Board  
 
Date: 12th March 08 
 
Subject: Roundhay Road Relocation Project 
 

        
 
Eligible for Call In                                                 Not Eligible for Call In 
                                                                              (Details contained in the report) 
 
 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
1. A joint report between Development Services and the former Social Services 

Department was taken to the Sept 2005 Executive Board to consider relocation of 
twenty five services off the Roundhay Road site due to the poor suitability and 
condition of the buildings. Agreement was given to the relocation costs being 
supported by release of the site for disposal together with use of the existing Social 
Services revenue budget. 

 
2. The report and appendices provide a summary of the current position for the 

relocation of the twenty five Services from the Roundhay Road site with solutions 
identified for fifteen team relocations. Agreement is sought to progress the options 
identified. 

 
3. It is estimated that all relocation costs will be contained within the anticipated receipt 

for Roundhay Road. Approval is requested for funds to be released equivalent to the 
anticipated capital receipt from Roundhay Road to support the relocation of services. 
Anticipated receipt and cost estimates are shown in confidential appendix 1.  This 
Appendix is confidential under Access to Information Rule 10.4.3 because publication 
could prejudice the City Council’s commercial interests as they include financial 

Specific Implications For:  
 

Equality and Diversity 
  
Community Cohesion 
 
Narrowing the Gap 

Electoral Wards Affected:  

Chapel Allerton – Roundhay Road site 
Hyde Park & Woodhouse – Lovell Park 
All – service users 

Originator: Steve Hume/ 
Jane Watson 

Tel: 50689 

 

 

 

 X 

 Ward Members consulted 
 (referred to in report) 
  

X 

Agenda Item 9

Page 47



 2 

information relating to land and property that if published could influence negotiations 
between the Council and private property owners.  In these circumstances it is 
considered that the public interest in not disclosing this commercial information 
outweighs the interests of disclosure. The estimated revenue costs for each of the 
relocations are currently anticipated to be contained within the existing budget for 
Roundhay Road. This however would not support the borrowing costs associated with 
the project proposals. 

 
4. It is anticipated that the site could be vacated and closed down subject to agreement 

of options and finance by Dec 09 in line with the current project plan. A site 
development brief could be drafted during 2008/9 in anticipation of this and the site 
marketed prior to closure to minimise delay in disposal. 

 
5. Extensive consultation has been undertaken with service users as appropriate, with 

elected members and other stakeholders being kept informed of progress throughout. 
Meetings have also been planned with the Unions and staff issues are being 
addressed by Heads of Service and HR representatives on the project.   

 
6. The proposals contained within this report have already been considered and 

supported at Asset Management Group prior to the Executive Board report 
 
1.0 Purpose Of This Report 

1.1 To seek approval to the anticipated requirement for a level of funding equal to the 
full capital receipt and service budget from Roundhay Road to support the relocation 
costs of all the teams and services from the site. To seek injection of funds into the 
capital programme to enable the identified schemes to progress. To seek approval 
to the relocation proposals identified.  

2.0   Background Information 

2.1 Social Care Services occupies and manages a range of facilities at the site at 
Roundhay Road, Leeds. A plan detailing the location of the site is attached at 
Appendix 2. The site extends to 1.5 hectares in size (3.7 acres) including the 
former nursery at Frankland Place. 

2.2 A number of Social Care Services’ functions take place at Roundhay Road 
including: 

•••• Area management office accommodation for Adult and Children Social Care 
teams 

•••• Mental Health and Learning Disability Day Centres 

•••• Community Meals Service (previously known as ‘Catering Service’) 

•••• LCES Equipment Store (previously known as ‘Joint Equipment Store’) 
 

2.3 A full schedule of the twenty five services which operate from Roundhay Road is 
attached at Appendix 1. 

2.4 The former Department of Social Services assessed the suitability of the 
accommodation at Roundhay Road, in consultation with the Council’s Asset 
Management Unit. In addition, condition surveys of the premises were undertaken 
as part of the Council’s rolling programme of surveys. The condition surveys 
identified backlog maintenance of £907,000 excluding fees and contingencies. The 

Page 48



 3 

buildings have only been maintained to a basic Health and Safety level since 2005 
in anticipation of the relocations. 

2.5 Overall the Roundhay Road site offers very poor suitability for the former Social 
Services Department. In most cases, the range of services that are provided from 
the site have no reason to be co-located and in a number of instances the existing 
uses do not complement each other and this makes the management of the site 
difficult.  

2.6 In Sept 2005 Executive Board agreed to:- 

•••• note that the site will be declared surplus to Social Services’ operational 
requirements. 

 

•••• the Council vacating the Roundhay Road site. 
 

•••• officers developing detailed proposals for the relocation of the existing services on 
the site via the establishment of a Project Board. 

 

•••• the site of the former Frankland Place Nursery be held as a possible solution for 
one or more services at the Roundhay Road site. 

 

•••• the Roundhay Road site being added to the Council’s Capital Receipts 
Programme. 

 

2.7      Due to the complexity of relocating 25 teams off a single site there have been some 
inevitable challenges to progress 
 

2.8      Previously the Area office based teams were to be accommodated in the Chapeltown 
LIFT facility however due to Council affordability issues and site constraints, Asset 
Management Group could no longer support this proposal moving forward. Since 
March 2007 a search and option appraisal process has been ongoing to secure an 
alternative facility for these teams. In January 2008 Asset Management Group 
supported further consideration of an option to purchase Digital and Dunbar Houses 
at Sheepscar. At the Feb 1st meeting the provisional terms and costs were supported 
subject to Executive Board approval and final terms being acceptable. 
 

2.9      The Mental Health day centre and Community Alternatives Team identified a former 
nursery building Lovell Park, LS7 as a suitable site for relocation of this facility. This 
was supported at Asset Management Group in 2007 and more recently at the 1st Feb 
08 meeting. Consultation has been undertaken with Ward Councillors, Executive 
Member for Adult Social Care Services, service users and staff on the proposals. 

 

2.10     Since 2005 options have been considered for each of the relocations and where 
appropriate these have been progressed with required support through Asset 
Management Group. £51,500 has been released to undertake appraisals on some 
schemes. The majority of teams now have an identified future location with cost 
estimates to provide a more complete picture. Provisional release of monies to 
progress 4 of the options through more detailed appraisals was supported by AMG in 
Aug 2007 and Director of Resources in Sept 07. The Directors of Adult and Children’s 
Services now seek Executive Board approval to progress the relocations identified, 
specifically in respect of the Adults’/Children’s Area Teams and Mental Health Day 
Centre and Community Alternatives Team reprovision. 

 

Page 49



 4 

3.0 Main Issues 

3.1 Relocation options have now been identified for the majority of teams however 
some are still at the option appraisal stage and therefore cost estimates have been 
attributed based on currently available information. Please see Appendix 1 for more 
detail. There are two significant approvals for spend being sought from Executive 
Board in respect of the relocations of the Area Teams and the Mental Health Day 
Centre and Community Alternatives Team 

3.2 Digital and Dunbar Houses are adjacent properties owned separately by third 
parties. They are modern office units located on a small business park in 
Sheepscar. A lease option was not supported by Asset Management Group based 
on value for money, pressures on the revenue budget, the costs of supported 
borrowing being more cost effective and the opportunity to secure an additional 
capital asset.  Following an option appraisal exercise to consider 4 proposals, Asset 
Management Group supported initial negotiations being undertaken with the owners 
of Digital and Dunbar Houses for the purchase of these properties for the Adult and 
Children’s Area teams subject to Executive Board approval. Please see 
confidential Appendix 3.  This Appendix is  confidential under Access to 
Information Rule 10.4.3 because publication could prejudice the City Council’s 
commercial interests as they include financial information relating to land and 
property that if published could influence negotiations between the Council and 
private property owners.  In these circumstances it is considered that the public 
interest in not disclosing this commercial information outweighs the interests of 
disclosure 

3.3 The purchase price indicated by the two owners of Digital and Dunbar Houses falls 
within the valuation range for the properties considered appropriate by Property 
Services.  The current position is that the costs including fit out, IT, fees along with 
other project costs will be contained within the capital cost detailed in Appendix 1 
and this can be accommodated within the overall capital budget for Roundhay Road 
based on current capital receipt valuations. 

3.4 The two properties need to be purchased together to accommodate all the teams 
and provide economies of scale for shared meeting / reception areas. The owner of 
Digital House is keen for the property to be purchased when the ALMO’s lease 
expires at the end of March 2008. Dunbar House is currently being refurbished by 
the owners and is due for completion in March 08. 

3.5 Heads of Service for the teams support this option and other service managers have 
visited the buildings. Heads of Service are communicating with their staff so that any 
issues can be identified and managed effectively.  Basic layouts show that the two 
buildings can accommodate the required staff numbers based on Working Without 
Walls principles previously adopted within the Services. 

3.6 Recent site investigations have highlighted a potential issue at the Sheepscar site 
related to flooding risk. The level of risk  is currently being investigated through the 
Environment Agency before progressing further on this option. Subject to outcomes 
an alternative solution may be required however it is anticipated that costs for any 
alternative office facility would be similar to the option identified. Title investigations 
are also ongoing. 

3.7 Mental Health Day Centre re-provision and Community Alternatives Team relocation 
to Lovell Park has involved significant consultation with service users with the 
majority of users being satisfied with the proposals. Elected ward and cabinet 

Page 50



 5 

members have received briefings on progress. Final design plans have now been 
drawn up and costs confirmed by the Strategic Design Alliance. The proposal, 
subject to Executive Board approval, would progress to tender and refurbish stage 
with anticipated completion of Summer 09. These service users have high support 
needs and any delay on progress in the relocation project does result in significantly 
increased anxiety levels. 

3.7         A best estimate has been included in respect of the re-provision for the Moorend 
ISA Learning Disabilities day services facility.  Due to the changes required within 
the service highlighted by recent government guidance on ‘Valuing People’ there is 
now a greater emphasis on an independent support approach and this has resulted 
in some delay on identifying suitable alternative sites for provision. This is now in 
progress and the service is considering four potential options all of which are 
Council owned. The estimated figure for re-provision has been based on the Lovell 
Park re-provision. Service users again have high support needs and care needs to 
be taken to progress this relocation in consultation with carers and service user at 
appropriate stages in the process. 

3.8         The LCES Equipment store is a jointly provided service between Health and Social 
Care Services. An interim solution has been identified at Roseville if required in 
order to vacate the Roundhay Road site. However the service is considering a 
number of options for re-providing the service in the longer term in line with the 
individualised budgets agenda.  

3.9          Other relocation proposals and current position statements are outlined in 
appendix 1 together with cost estimates and approximate timescales 

3.10       The majority of sites to be used for the relocations are already in Council ownership. 
Where possible best use is being made of existing assets where they meet the 
suitability and sufficiency criteria through refurbishment. Where there is no existing 
suitable Council owned property such as the area office facility, 3rd party property 
has been identified for re-provision. 

3.11       The project team has endeavoured to look at efficiencies in re-provision whilst 
ensuring fit for purpose facilities are provided. In terms of the office reprovision the 
Services have adopted a Working Without Walls policy which is resulting in reduced 
space requirements due to shared workstations for mobile staff with shared meeting 
and quiet space to complement open plan working. The day services re-provision is 
based on a changing service model where service users access other community 
facilities for a wide range of activities with Council facilities providing a base for 
those users with greatest service need.  Where appropriate and complementary, 
other teams have been identified to share space within the facility. 

3.12       Consultation and communication with a wide group of stakeholders is critical to the 
success of this project.  Stakeholder meetings are held between the Project Team 
and in house service stakeholders with Stakeholder Updates circulated to all in 
house stakeholders. Unions were consulted at the commencement of the project 
and in principle agreement reached with the JCC. A further meeting to discuss 
Roundhay Road relocation issues has been attended by the Project Sponsor and 
Project Manager in March 08.   

3.13        Ward Councillors receive personal briefings from the service together with regular 
updates on relocations affecting service users.  Where individual queries are raised 
these have been addressed separately in consultation with the Ward Councillor. 

Page 51



 6 

Executive Members have been briefed together with Service Management Teams 
and Asset Management Group as required.  

3.14       Service user meetings at the Mental Health Day Centre have been attended by a 
member of the project team to update service users on progress. A separate 
meeting was held in Dec 07 to consult on the proposed plans for Lovell Park, with 
service users and staff comments/feedback being addressed within the proposed 
layouts. Other issues arising have been dealt with either directly with the service/ 
service users or through written answers posted up with the layout plans in the day 
centre.  

3.15       The project has identified that the estimated total capital costs involved in the 
relocations will be in the order of the estimated capital receipt for the site.  

3.16       This is a complex project which has been running for some time. It is comprised of 
many varied accommodation elements for the different services involved and not all 
of these are at the same stage, with some accommodation solutions yet to be 
identified. To ensure that the outstanding accommodation requirements are 
appraised in a corporate context, it is proposed that the Strategic Asset 
Management Service (SAMS) manage the site/property selection process including 
the initial capacity studies against approved standards.  This is of particular 
relevance to the Moorend ISA and the LCES Equipment Store where the future 
shape of the service is not yet certain. 

3.17 Once each accommodation solution, including the level of any necessary fit-out 
works, and the necessary financial arrangements have been approved, the 
responsibility for detailed implementation of each element would be taken by the 
Corporate Property Management Service (CPMS).  Additionally, SAMS would 
continue to take responsibility for the phased handover of the Roundhay Road site to 
City Development and retain the services of CPMS for the management of the site 
prior to marketing. SAMS would also take responsibility for the co-ordination of the 
work on the planning brief and the detailed marketing arrangements. 

3.18      Although the workload involved for the Strategic Asset Management Service would 
vary during the running life of the project, it is estimated that it will equate to one 
week per month for a PO3 Project Officer for around 20 months. This proposal would 
assist in ensuring a high degree of continuity between earlier work and any 
unresolved issues. The cost of this work is estimated at £26,800 and it is proposed 
that this should be a charge against the capital receipt achieved from the disposal of 
the Roundhay Road/Frankland Place sites. 

4.0 Implications For Council Policy And Governance 

4.1 The project is governed by a project board with service and asset management 
representatives and is using the Delivering Successful Change methodology. 
Project Assurance is undertaking Health Checks periodically and maintaining an 
overview, regularly attending Board meetings.  

4.2 A project team with service, support service, asset management and corporate 
property management representatives progresses the day to day running of the 
project with the project manager reporting through to the board. It is a complex 
project to manage with 25 teams being relocated from the site alongside service 
delivery change requirements and with this in mind risk management has become 
an essential part of the process. 

Page 52



 7 

4.3 Risk workshops have therefore been undertaken to engage the board and key 
service and support service managers in the risk management process. A number 
of high-level risks have been identified and are being managed by the board 
including:- 

4.3.1 Cost Control – it is important to ensure that the project is delivered within 
the limits of the existing resources identified. The Project Board are 
monitoring the decant costs on a regular basis. In addition, the Project 
Board provides the challenge to any replacement proposals to ensure that 
they take account of opportunities for service efficiencies where possible. 

 

4.3.2 Capital Receipt – There is a risk that the final capital receipt obtained might 
be less than the original forecast. To ensure that the project keeps within the 
budget parameters set, it is important to ascertain an accurate capital 
receipt forecast for the site. In order to ensure that an accurate forecast is 
made, a more formal Planning Brief for the site needs to be commissioned 
to identify the scope and nature of future development activity that can take 
place once the site is vacated. 

 

4.3.3 Service Continuity – Given the nature of the activities undertaken on the 
Roundhay Road site it will be essential to ensure service continuity during 
the implementation of the decant arrangements. The Project Board will take 
responsibility for monitoring the arrangements put in place and Service 
managers will be developing their own move plans in consultation with the 
project manager and board. 

 

              4.3.4      Stakeholder management – the nature of the service users, service issues 
and member involvement require that stakeholders are clearly identified and 
communicated/ consulted with throughout the process. This is a resource 
intensive task but essential to this project’s success. Stakeholder meetings 
are held with regular stakeholder updates sent out.  

             

To ensure the complexities and interdependencies of the project are considered, 
risks are also being identified and managed at an individual team level  

 

4.4         Consultation is undertaken within the Services, with service users and elected 
members as appropriate. Stakeholder analysis and communication plans form part 
of the DSC process for the project. 

 
4.5        The proposal outlined in this report will contribute to the achievement of a number of 

Corporate Priorities.  
 

a. Creating better neighbourhoods and more confident communities  
 

b. Competing in a global economy - The disposal of the Roundhay Road site will 
result in third party investment into the City. 

 
c. Looking after the environment – This proposal will lead to the redevelopment of 

a 1.5 hectare brownfield site.  
 

5.0  Legal And Resource Implications 

5.1 To facilitate the vacation of the site it is proposed that the costs will be met from 
three sources as outlined below: 

Page 53



 8 

5.1.1 It is highly likely that funding to the level of the anticipated capital receipt will 
be required to support the capital relocation costs identified. 

 

5.1.2 Social Care Services currently incurs revenue costs associated with the 
management of the Roundhay Road site. The full use of these funds will be 
required to support future revenue expenditure for the Roundhay Road 
teams. This indicates that there will be no service surplus to support the 
revenue costs for any required supported borrowing payments.  

 

5.1.3 Officers have sought to link service requirements to external funding 
streams to limit the call on internal financial resources, however in the 
majority of cases such funding is unlikely to be available. 

 

5.2 Once vacant possession is achieved it is proposed that the site forms part of the 
capital receipts programme. As a large land holding occupying a prominent position 
on the corner of Barrack Road and Roundhay Road, the site will not only form an 
important part of the Capital Receipts Programme, but will also support regeneration 
activity in the local area. On this basis, a planning brief will be commissioned to 
inform the future development of the site. 

5.3 As a consequence of moving forward with the vacation of the site there may be cash 
flow implications for the Capital Programme, which are being addressed in 
consultation with the Director of Resources. There is an anticipated need for capital 
expenditure in the order of £2.4million in 2008/9 and £0.6million for 2009/10 in 
respect of the relocation costs. Subject to resolution of outstanding issues, 
acquisition of Digital/ Dunbar is likely to be required in early April 2008. This is due 
to the threat of withdrawal from negotiations by the current owner of Digital House if 
delays are encountered resulting in his potential loss of income on the property. Due 
to this time pressure the report has been flagged as not eligible for call in as this 
may delay the acquisition of the properties 

5.4          The SAMS Project Officer would cost in the order of £26,800 for the period of the 
project and would need to be paid out of the capital receipt 

 

6.0  Conclusions 

6.1 The project has reached a stage that requires further formal board approval to 
proceed with the relocations outlined within the cost and timescale estimates 
provided. Due to the sensitivities around service users together with time scales 
being provided by 3rd party owners, approval is now essential to progress this 
project within the plan timescales.  

7.0 Recommendations                    

Executive Board is asked to: 

7.1 Agree to the relocation proposals set out in appendix 1, particularly in respect of the 
Mental Health Day Centre and Community Alternatives Team and office facility for 
Area Teams. 

7.2 Agree to funds equal to the capital receipt from Roundhay Road to support the 
capital requirements of the Social Care Services relocations, plus site disposal costs 
and resource costs 

Page 54



 9 

7.3 Approve the injection of £3,298,500 into the capital programme for acquisition of 
Digital/Dunbar, refurbishment of Lovell Park plus the other identified schemes in 
appendix 1 plus associated site and project costs. 

7.4 Approve the spend indicated in appendix 1 for the acquisition and fit out of Digital 
and Dunbar Houses subject to a satisfactory evaluation and mitigation of identified 
risk by the Director of Resources.  

7.5 In the event of an alternative office facility being required to authorise the Director of 
Resources to approve equivalent expenditure for purchase up to the level identified 
in paragraph 7.4. Any such facility to be subject to a suitability assessment with the 
service. 

7.6 To agree to the current revenue budget for Roundhay Road being retained within 
the service to meet relocation revenue requirements 

7.7 Agree to the drawing up of a planning brief and marketing strategy in preparation for 
the site disposal 

7.8 Agree to the cost of the Strategic Asset Management PO3 Project Officer being 
funded from the capital receipt 

Page 55



Page 56

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 57

Exempt / Confidential Under Access to 
Information Procedure Rules 10.4 (3)

Document is Restricted



Page 62

This page is intentionally left blank



E

E

EE

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

EE

E

st & Wa
rd Bdy

HAM ILTO N GAR DENS

22

24

22a

15c

14

15a

12

15

18

20
nby College

Warehouse

37

33

El

Sub

Sta

11

11

36

26

15

28

17

46

4438
42

40

48

30
38

32

2a

E
N
F
IE
L
D
S
T
R
E
E
T

C
R

B
o
ro
C
o
n
s
t
B
d
y

W
a
rd
B
d
y

War d Bd y

Bo
r o
Co
n s
t &

Wa
r d
Bd
y

De
f

CR

Bo
ro
Co
ns
t B
dy

Bo
ro
Co

CR

Bo
ro
Co
ns
t &
Wa
rd
Bd
y

C
R

C
RBoro

Const &
W
ard
Bdy

100

7666

A NCIS STR EET

80

55.5m

Day

6

LO UIS STREET

2

108

12

4

78

57

Nursery

82

98

84

86

106

FRA NKLAN D GRO VE

9488

96

50

50.6m BM 4 8.73m

Mosque

11
75

Islamic Centre

F
R
A
N
K
L
A
N
D
P
L
A
C
E

42

9

S
P
E
N
C
E
R
P
L
A
C
E

Mosque

67

98

71 to 87

46
48

47.2m

63

73

75

41

53

G
A
T
H
O
R
N
E
S
T
R
E
E
T

40

GIPTO N STREET

52

1

GAR DENS

1A

15

94

29

3A

2

90

3

LO UIS G RO VE

104

19

6

1

5

LEO POLD

88

96

11

48.5m

Nursery

41.8m

Centre

Services

11

Social
79

98

FRA
N
KLA

N
D
PLA

C
E

37.2m

Ce
ntr
eSo

cia
l S
erv
ice
s

El Sub Sta

7

1
Ha
ine
s P
ark

5

11

6

32

26

34

126

110

40

118

30

46.0m

39.0m

43

BM40.46m

28
26

7

27

43.6m

6

41

29

27

GIPTO N AVEN UE

16

13

1

Health Centre

RO
UN
DH
AY

RO
AD 142

17
a

87

37.8m

15
a

144

Wo rks

STRE ET

3

15

BAC K G ATH O RNE

81

17

83

13

19

130

TCB

116

CR
OS
S R

OS
EV
ILL
ER
OA
D

1

3

4

4

Roseville Business Park

Nursery

R
O
A
D

BAYSW ATER ROA D

R
O
S
E
V
IL
LE

Nursery

1

6

2

2

1

1

47

239
a

43

53

3

45

1

40

2

Depot

4

2

Warehouse

2

Roseville Business Park

RosevilleCentre and

52
50

GLEDHOW MOUNT

26

15

GLEDHOW PLACE 29

Church

16

15

GLEDHOW TERRA CE

16

30

25

42.1m

Warehouse

56

4

75

Garage

56
a

b R
O
A
D

R
O
S
E
V
IL
LE
S
TR
E
E
T

14

16

Factory

K
E
P
L
E
R
T
E
R
R
A
C
E

25

32

15

K
E
P
L
E
R
M
O
U
N
T

A
N
D
E
R
S
O
N
A
V

27

18

28

67

17

20

41.4m

2

55

31

14K
E
P
L
E
R
G
R
O
V
E

A
N
D
E
R
S
O
N
M
O
U
N
T

13

8

B
M
4
4
.0
1
m

(Roseville Annexe)

G
L
E
D
H
O
W
R
O
A
D

Primrose HillHigh School

1

2

14

University Hospital

44.8m

St James's

34

24

El

Sub Sta

5

11

8

40

40a

HAM ILTO N GAR DENS

42

15

55.8m

2

B
M
5
5
.6
1
m

54a

1

10

15

1

9

54

Club

60

22

58
62

12

70a

47a

70

H
A
M
IL
T
O
N
P
L
A
C
E

8072

49

56

37

14

2

25

10

52.1m

27

16

16

DOD GSO N AVENU E

55

50

2

50.3m

21

HARRIET STREET

42a 44

12

41

52

31

LB

50a

43

53

School
Leopold Primary

5

LEOPOLD STREET
27

9

62

41
11

70

36

15

19

70a

3

78

1

45.7m

60a

24

17

7

60

51

Cent ral Kitchen

Ce
ntr
e

BM42.93m

Cli
ffo
rd
Br
oo
ke

Playing
Field

Depot

Depot

Playin g Field

Warehouse

37.8m

34

ThomasDanby
College

B
A
R
R
A
C
K
R
O
A
D

B
O
U
N
D
A
R
Y
S
T
R
E
E
T

B
O
U
N
D
A
R
Y
P
L
A
C
E

PH

65

4

65

41.5m

BARRACKROA
D

Ke
lle
tt C

en
tre

El Sub Sta

2

36.9m

Warehouse

RO
UN
DH
AY

RO
AD

3

G
R
A
N
T
A
V
E
N
U
E

Factory

1

37.5m

EN
FIE

LD
TE
R R

AC
E

Manor Street

Warehouse

Industrial Estate
Works

SCALE
DATE 13/02/2008

Crown Copyright. All rights reserved.
Leeds City Council 100019567 2008

1:2,500

®
PLAN No 11087

Map Document: (G:\LANDRECORDS\Land Records Plans\11000 - 11099\11087 Roundhay Road.mxd)
13/02/2008 -- 09:04:45

APPENDIX 2
ROUNDHAY ROAD SITE

LEEDS LS8

Page 63



Page 64

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 65

Exempt / Confidential Under Access to 
Information Procedure Rules 10.4 (3)

Document is Restricted



Page 66

This page is intentionally left blank



 

Report of the Assistant Chief Executive (Policy, Planning and Improvement) 
 
Executive Board  
 
Date: 12 March 2008  
 
Subject: Leeds Strategic Plan 2008 – 11  
 

        
 
Eligible for Call In                                                 Not Eligible for Call In 
                                                                              (Details contained in the report) 
 
 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 
This report introduces the text of the Leeds Strategic Plan 2008-11.  This Plan, when complete in 
June 2008, will mark several milestones for Leeds City Council. First, it will demonstrate how the 
Council is exercising its community leadership and place shaping role by outlining a single set of 
strategic outcomes, improvement priorities and targets for the city to be delivered by the Council on 
its own, or in partnership with others, over the next three years. Secondly, it will constitute the key 
delivery plan for the Leeds Sustainable Community Strategy (‘Vision for Leeds 2004 – 2020’) for the 
period 2008-11. Finally, it fulfils the Council’s statutory obligations to provide a Local Area Agreement 
for Leeds as required by the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007. 
 
The report asks Members of the Executive Board to endorse the text of the Plan that is attached at 
Appendix 1, to support our negotiations with Government on agreeing up to 35 LAA improvement 
targets. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Specific Implications For:  
 

Equality and Diversity 
  
Community Cohesion 
 
Narrowing the Gap 

Electoral Wards Affected:  

ALL 

Originator: Jane 
Stageman/ 
Dylan Griffiths 

Tel: 74352 

X 

X 

X 

  

 Ward Members consulted 
 (referred to in report) 
  

 

Agenda Item 10

Page 67



 
 
1.0.      Purpose of This Report 

This report explains the development, approach and broad content of the Leeds Strategic 
Plan 2008-11. It seeks Executive Board endorsement of the text of the plan prior to 
negotiations with central government concerning priorities for improvement in Leeds. 

2.0. Background Information 
 
2.1. In July 2007 Executive Board agreed a new corporate planning framework for the Council.  At 

the heart of this framework is the Leeds Strategic Plan which sets out a single set of strategic 
outcomes and improvement priorities for the city for the next three years, shared with the 
Council and its partners.   

 
2.2. During the autumn of 2007 there was extensive consultation on the strategic outcomes and 

improvement priorities for this plan among Elected Members, public, private and voluntary 
community and faith sector partners and focus groups of local residents and Leeds City 
Council employees.  The latest evidence on local circumstances and prospects and public 
opinion were also examined to draw up the priorities to capture the most important issues for 
the city for the next three years.   

 
2.3. The Leeds Strategic Plan, when complete, will fulfil the requirements of the new Local Area 

Agreement as required by the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007.   
 
3.0. Main Issues 
 
3.1.      Partnership Approach 

The Leeds Strategic Plan represents a new approach in that it will cover what is being 
delivered by the Local Authority on its own or in partnership with others in the city over the 
period 2008-11. It therefore has a broader coverage than the former Corporate Plan because 
these priorities are also shared by the Council’s public, private and voluntary, community and 
faith sector partners. A number of public bodies, designated as statutory partners in the Local 
Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007, have a duty to cooperate in the 
delivery of the targets and to have regard to the targets in this plan when drawing up their 
own budgets and action plans.  

3.2. Accessible Format 
 The Leeds Strategic Plan sets out to communicate the agreed strategic outcomes, 

improvement priorities and targets for 2008-11  to all relevant persons and partners as 
defined by the Local Government and Health Information Act 2007 as well as all statutory 
partners. It has therefore been designed to be as accessible as possible in terms of language 
and format.  

 
3.3. Broad Content  

The content of the Leeds Strategic Plan sets out in section 1: making a difference, an 
overview of the progress and challenges facing Leeds and the general ambitions of the 
Council and its partners in this context. Section 2: priorities by theme, follows the eight 
themes in the Leeds Sustainable Community Strategy (‘Vision for Leeds 2004 – 2020’). Each 
provides the contextual explanation for the selected strategic outcomes, the real changes the 
Council and its partners want to see in the lives of people in Leeds, and the improvement 
priorities, the key areas where we want to focus our efforts to ensure these changes really 
take place. 
 

3.4. Framework for Implementation 
 Supporting the Leeds Strategic Plan will be a number of thematic plans covering important 

policy areas in greater detail.  Some such as the Children and Young People’s Plan already 
exist and others such as the Climate Change Strategy and Health and Well Being Strategy 
are under development.  The Leeds Strategic Plan refers to the most significant plans and 
strategies supporting each theme.    

Page 68



3.5 The third and final section of the plan sets out an agreed set of partnership principles on 
which joint delivery will be based. It also outlines how and by whom performance will be 
measured, monitored and relevant reporting arrangements. Finally it explains how the plan 
will be reviewed and revised.  

3.5. An appendix will be attached to the Plan that will outline the targets to be set against each 
improvement priority and the indicators that will measure progress. This is not presented at 
this stage due to a number of the targets being subject to further negotiation during March 
and April with central government. These are the ‘up to 35’ designated targets that, as a 
package, will be eligible for a small performance reward grant. In a number of other 
improvement priority areas it will not be possible to establish targets in the first year of the 
Plan. This is due to the fact that the National Indicator Set has introduced new measures in 
these areas and the first year will be used to establish a baseline position against which to set 
targets for further years. It is anticipated that all targets that are possible to set at this stage 
will be presented for approval to the Executive Board meeting on May 14th 08 before formal 
submission to central government to agree the ‘up to 35’ designated targets. Full Council 
approval of the text and appendix of the Leeds Strategic Plan will be sought on July 2nd 08. 

 
 
4.0. Implications For Council Policy And Governance 
 
4.1. The Leeds Strategic Plan is part of the Council’s Budget and Policy Framework. The 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee have been consulted three times in the preparation of the 
text of the plan and will also have an opportunity to comment on the content of the appendix. 

4.2. The Council is preparing a separate Business Plan which will set out how the Council will 
align its activities and resources to deliver its contribution to the Leeds Strategic Plan. 

5.0. Legal and Resource Implications 

5.1. The Leeds Strategic Plan will fulfil our statutory obligations for a Local Area Agreement (LAA) 
for the Leeds area.  In drawing up the contents of this plan the Council has consulted and 
negotiated with a number of partners including public sector partners designated as statutory 
partners in the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007.  These partners 
have a duty to have regard to the targets in the Leeds Strategic Plan when setting out their 
own plans and budgets.   

5.2. The Leeds Strategic Plan will fulfil the duty of the Council to publish information about its LAA 
containing the specified information of a ‘memorandum relating to the LAA’. It will be publicly 
available, accessible in its format and used as a basis for active communication to citizens. In 
this respect it will form an active role in the Council’s duty to involve local communities in 
shaping their own future. 

5.3. The Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 extends the scope of the 
Council’s Scrutiny Boards to include the work of the public sector partners designated as 
statutory partners to deliver targets agreed in the Leeds Strategic Plan. Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee has agreed a protocol with partners on how to exercise this extended role 
for scrutiny.    

5.4. Resources to deliver the targets in this plan will be identified from the budgets of the Council 
and its partners including the new Area Based Grant.  Resources will have to be used as 
efficiently as possible to deliver all the targets in the Leeds Strategic Plan and the scope to 
increase impact through innovative delivery methods including strategic commissioning, 
pooled budgets and joint service delivery will be explored as part of delivering the Leeds 
Strategic Plan.  

5.5. The Leeds Strategic Plan 2008-2011 will require the formal approval of Members of full 
Council at their meeting on July 2nd 2008.  Members of the Executive Board will receive a full 
copy of the plan at its meeting on May 14th 08, including the appendix of the Leeds Strategic 
Plan that is currently in development.  

Page 69



6.0. Conclusions 

6.1. The Leeds Strategic Plan will mark several significant milestones for Leeds City Council.  The 
Leeds Strategic Plan 2008-11 will when complete set out the strategic outcomes, 
improvement priorities and targets for the city, shared by our key partners and stakeholders.  
It will be a key delivery plan for this three year period for the longer term Vision for Leeds 
2004-20. It will also demonstrate how the Council is rising to the challenge of its community 
leadership and place shaping role as defined in the Local Government and Public 
Involvement in Health Act 2007.   

7.0. Recommendations 
7.1 Members of Executive Board are asked to endorse the text of the Leeds Strategic Plan 2008-

2011, attached at Appendix 1. 

Page 70



 

 1 

 

Page 71



 

 2 

 LIST OF PARTNERS HERE 
 
 

Page 72



 

 3 

 

Front Cover 
 
Inside cover – logos of partner organisations 
 
About this publication – other languages, formats 
 
Foreword – (Leaders, Chief Executive) Background to plan, Our Values 
 
Table of Contents 
 
 
Section 1 –  Making a Difference 
 
Section 2 –  Priorities by Theme 
 
Section 3 –  Making it Happen 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 73



 

 4 

 
Foreword - to include: 
 
 

• Delighted to present the Leeds Strategic Plan for 2008-11; 
 

• The Plan is a significant milestone in working together as partners across the city to 
agree  the real changes we want to see in the lives of the people in Leeds and in the city 
by 2011 and how we will deliver these in partnership; 

 

• Builds on a strong history of partnership working, co-ordinated through Leeds Initiative. 
This has brought together the Council, business, voluntary, community and faith groups 
and public bodies and produced a longer term strategy for the Leeds Community, the 
Vision for Leeds 2004-20; 

 

• The Leeds Strategic Plan shows how these long term goals will be translated into 
practical action over the next three years - both in terms of what will be achieved and 
how it will be delivered; 

 

• Key areas for improvement by 2011 have been informed by consultation both from 
Members and other stakeholders in different areas in the city and representatives of city 
wide networks who represent different ‘interests’ in the city. Also,  analysis of the most 
up-to-date information about current conditions and prospects for Leeds and anticipated 
social and population changes; 

 

• Leeds City Council has a key leadership role, with its partners, in both ‘shaping’ Leeds 
for now and future generations and in making sure that targets set are delivered.  

 

• Recent government legislation reinforces this role, particularly enhancing the role of 
Councillors as leaders and shapers of local neighbourhoods and the city. 

 

• The Council has recently been awarded the highest possible ‘4 star’ grading in terms of 
its performance placing it in an excellent position to undertake this role in Leeds. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 74



 

 5 

 
 
 
 
 

SECTION 1  
 

MAKING A DIFFERENCE 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 75



 

 6 

 

PROGRESS and CHALLENGES 
 
Leeds is recognised as one of Britain’s most successful cities. It has transformed itself over 
the last 20 years from a mainly industrial city into a broad based commercial centre, the 
most important financial and legal and business service centre outside London. Leeds is the 
largest city in the Yorkshire and Humber region and is the biggest retail and employment 
centre. 
 
Leeds is a quality place to live, work and raise families and has attracted the largest absolute 
increase in population in the country, 4.8% since 2001. This current population of over 
750,000 embraces a rich diversity of over 130 different nationalities. 
 
Economic, cultural and environmental factors have made major contributions to Leeds being 
a successful place. Over the past decade Leeds has benefited from continued and 
significant economic growth.  Between 1996 and 2006 the City has seen Gross Value 
Added, a measure of wealth creation, increase by 36% and 59,000 new jobs created. 
Recent investment in the city has been impressive with £3.2bn invested in commercial 
property development and a further £7.2bn under construction or planned. The public sector 
has also invested significantly in new schools, health facilities and in new town and district 
centres. Investment in the planning service has assisted investors, developers and citizens 
in Leeds. 
 
Culturally, Leeds continues to invest in its magnificent and growing collection of concert 
halls, theatres, galleries, museums, parks and sporting venues. There is lively participation 
in community festivals across the city and Leeds offers the widest range of free events in the 
country.  
 
Environmentally, Leeds is a green city with two-thirds of its area green belt land. Improving 
local neighbourhoods is also a strong priority and real improvements have been made. 
Cleanliness has been improved in 28 of the 31 most deprived neighbourhoods as a result of 
partner agencies working together with local residents. There has also been considerable 
investment to bring all our homes in Leeds up to the national ‘Decent Homes’ standard and 
by 2010 this will be met. 
 
People in Leeds are generally living longer and more safely. Life expectancy for both men 
and women has grown by over a year over the last 10 years. Crime has fallen by 
approximately 30% since 2003/4, the second highest fall in crime in the country. 
 
More children are doing well at school than ever before with results at GCSE showing strong 
and sustained improvement. These changes are being achieved by an approach that 
engages children and young people and puts schools and childrens centres at the heart of 
the community. It is being supported by large scale investment in new and refurbished 
schools and childrens centres. Leeds is also a major centre of learning for further and higher 
education, with two leading universities and a student population of over 124,000.  
 
However, despite these positive trends, many challenges still remain and recent 
developments such as a rising population and traffic present fresh challenges.    
 
Too many children and young people still leave school with few or no qualifications, 
particularly from low income families, those with special educational needs, some black and 
minority ethnic groups and looked after children. 
 
Health inequalities continue to exist. Children born into the most deprived neighbourhoods 
can expect to live almost 12 years less than those in areas that enjoy the best health. The 

Page 76



 

 7 

percentage of people over 60, currently 20% of the population, is forecast to grow raising 
issues of how older people’s health, independence and contribution to the life of the 
community will be supported. 
 
Some neighbourhoods and communities have not shared in the economic success enjoyed 
by much of the city.  The numbers of people unable to work due to illness or injury remains a 
key issue for the city. Many local people are excluded from job opportunities or developing 
their careers due to a mismatch between their skills and aspirations and the skills now 
required. Only 50% of the Leeds workforce has level 2 skills (equivalent to five A* to C 
GCSEs) against a national skills target of 90% by 2020. 
 
A growing population and greater prosperity puts pressure on the housing market in Leeds 
The impact of climate change can be clearly seen in Leeds and will be an increasingly 
important issue for the city. Parts of the city have been subject to flooding and are at high 
risk of further flooding in the future.  There is an urgent need to reduce CO2 and other green 
house gas emissions to contribute to national and global targets. More people living and 
travelling to work in Leeds places greater strain on the transport system. Road traffic grew 
by 4.9% between 1996 and 2006 and further growth is predicted. Migration enriches our 
diversity but raises challenges for creating and sustaining a sense of belonging amongst all 
communities. 
 
These are some of the key challenges facing the city and city region over the next three 
years and beyond. They are explained in fuller detail in section 2 of this Plan accompanied 
by an explanation of where we need to focus our efforts to overcome these challenges. 
 
 

OUR AMBITION 
 
Leeds has an ambitious vision for the city and for the people who live, work and visit Leeds.  
This vision is captured in the Leeds’ sustainable community strategy, the Vision for Leeds 
2004 to 2020. This sets out our key ambitions of ‘going up a league’ both economically and 
in terms of quality of life and ‘narrowing the gap’ between the richer and poorer parts of the 
city. 
 
The Council and its partners all share the desire ‘to bring the benefits of a prosperous, 
vibrant and attractive city to all the people of Leeds’. Our ambitions for the next three years 
are to see: 
 

• people happy, healthy, safe, successful and free from the effects of poverty; 

• our young people equipped to contribute to their own and the city’s future well being 
and prosperity; 

• local people engaged in decisions about their neighbourhood and community and 
help shape local services; 

• neighbourhoods that are inclusive, varied and vibrant offering housing options and 
quality facilities and free from harassment and crime; 

• an environment that is clean, green, attractive and above all, sustainable; and 

• a city-region that is prosperous, innovative and distinctive enabling individuals and 
businesses to achieve their economic potential. 

 
REAL CHANGE 
 
The Vision for Leeds 2004 to 2020 sets out eight themes that provide a broad framework for 
our actions. These are Culture, Enterprise and Economy, Learning, Transport, Environment, 
Health and Wellbeing, Thriving Neighbourhoods and Harmonious Communities. 

Page 77



 

 8 

 
This plan sets out the outcomes - the real changes we want to see in the lives of people in 
Leeds and the city by 2011 in each of the Vision themes.  It is based on a robust analysis of 
the strengths and weaknesses of the city and identifies the key areas where we want to 
focus our efforts to ensure we achieve results. These areas we describe as improvement 
priorities. Finally, it sets targets for what will be achieved and how we will measure progress 
over the three year journey.  
 

VIEWS AND COMMITMENT 
 
The experiences and views of a wide range of people in the city have been taken into 
account in identifying the outcomes and improvement priorities in this plan. 71% of the 
population of Leeds were involved in establishing the themes and priorities of the Vision for 
Leeds during 2003 and 2004.  As well as the consultation findings from that exercise we 
have updated our understanding of what the people of Leeds want by gathering fresh 
evidence.  We consulted Councillors representing people of all communities in the City; we 
drew on the latest results of the Annual Citizen’s Survey and we organised a series of focus 
groups representative of the gender, age, ethnic origin, disability and sexuality profile of the 
Leeds population. 
 
We also consulted a wide range of city-wide networks and key partners who represent 
different interests in the city. These included black and ethnic minority communities, local 
businesses and voluntary sector networks and representatives and partners from education, 
health, community safety, culture, transport, economic and environmental sectors. 
 
Our discussions have been informed by the latest information available on the changing 
context of Leeds in terms of social, economic, demographic and environmental data and 
progress in reaching established targets in areas such as education, crime, health and 
employment and the overall prosperity of the city.  We have also considered the implications 
of national policies where relevant, such as the ‘Every Child Matters’ agenda, promoting the 
health and wellbeing of adults and economic, transport and housing policy developments.  
 
We have a shared and inclusive vision of the changes we want to see over the next three 
years and with our partners we are committed to turning our long term vision into. We know 
too that there is a great commitment from those living, working, investing, volunteering and 
participating in organisations and communities that will also make a huge contribution to 
more positive changes in the city. 
 

APPROACH 
 
Many people have raised the importance of how we approach what we need to do over the 
next three years. Below, are key areas that have been highlighted and will inform the spirit of 
implementation. 
 

• Interconnectivity and partnership working 
 

Getting to the root of many challenges in the city will require an awareness of the 
interconnection between our different outcomes and improvement priorities. For example, 
consistently raising achievement levels of young people in some of the most deprived areas 
of Leeds involves raising the quality of life for families living in those communities; finding 
solutions to, and engaging people in, employment opportunities; housing security and 
environmental and health issues.  
 

Page 78



 

 9 

Listening, sharing and learning from each other will help us identify where our efforts are 
best concentrated to achieve the best results. Such a partnership approach is something we 
are already proud of in the city and in many areas is mature and embedded as an approach 
to delivering services. It has contributed to some impressive results. For example, 
neighbourhoods in the city that are the most deprived according to recent results of a 
national measure of multiple deprivation have reduced from 31 to 22 neighbourhoods.  
However, it is important that we build on this strong basis and engage in more innovative 
thinking about how needs can be met and services improved, effectively and efficiently, 
through partnership working. A series of principles underpinning our approach to partnership 
working is outlined on page 32. 
 

• Equality, cohesion and integration 
 

We are committed to increasing equality for, and valuing the diversity of all communities in 
Leeds.  We recognise that priorities and actions can affect some communities or groups of 
people who participate in the city differently.  The plan has been reviewed in this respect and 
careful and thorough assessments of more detailed targets and actions in all areas will need 
to continue over its duration.   
 
We also need to work more intensively to make sure that the implementation of our 
‘improvement priorities’ supports and encourages a shared sense of belonging in all 
communities in the city and widely shared sense of the contribution of different individuals 
and groups to a future local vision. We recognise that people with different backgrounds 
should experience similar life opportunities and access to services and work to develop a 
strong sense of an individual’s local rights and responsibilities. 
 

• Sustainability 
 
Finally, we need to ensure that any developments that meet the needs of the present do not 
compromise the ability of future generation to meet their own needs. The plan has been 
reviewed in terms of its impact on sustainable development, namely whether it promotes 
living within environmental limits; ensures a strong, healthy and just society; helps to achieve 
a sustainable economy; uses sound technology responsibly; and promotes good 
governance. The sustainability criteria used in the review are the same as  those being used 
to review the city’s other plans.  
 
  

MAKING IT WORK 
 
The Council’s lead role in helping to shape the future of Leeds has been strengthened by 
recent legislation - the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007. The 
government has asked Council’s to work with partners to ensure that they jointly agree the 
ambitions for their area over the next three years. Partners have also been asked to co-
operate with Council’s and other partners to agree and deliver targets that ensure the 
ambitions result in real change. These legal responsibilities are carried out in drawing up and 
implementing this Plan as it fulfills the statutory requirements for Leeds to have a local area 
agreement. 
 
Leeds Initiative, the city’s overarching partnership body in Leeds, is the forum effective 
partnership working, collectively monitoring and reviewing progress on the delivery of the 
priorities in the Leeds Strategic Plan. All target-setting and consequent financial, 
commissioning or contractual commitments agreed are put in place through Leeds City 
Council as the accountable body and principal partner and by partners through their own 

Page 79



 

 10 

strategic plans and decision making arrangements . These will be subject to the normal 
scrutiny by Councillors and openness to the public. 
 
Leeds Initiative thematic partnerships contribute to the development of the supporting 
strategies and plans for the Vision for Leeds and for the Leeds Strategic Plan. Some of 
these strategies provide an in-depth and longer term expression of the objectives or aspects 
of a Vision theme, for example, Culture and Climate Change. Others are more specific, time 
limited thematic plans that contain more detail of what will be delivered and by whom during 
the lifespan of the Leeds Strategic Plan. Key strategies and plans are signposted in each 
theme in Section 2. 
 
Section 3 outlines how the plan will be delivered in greater detail. It shows how the Leeds 
Strategic Plan fits into the overall framework of city-wide planning. It also sets out the 
partnership principles that will guide how partners will work together over the duration of the 
plan. Accountability is further clarified with an explanation of how performance will be 
reviewed and managed. Finally, it explains the arrangements for reviewing and revising the 
Plan as a whole. 
 

Page 80



 

 11 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Section 2  
 

Priorities by Theme 

Page 81



 

 12 

Culture 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Context 
 
Through culture in all its different forms, people can find enjoyment, enrich their lives, fulfil 
their potential and keep active. The benefits of culture are linked to improved health, 
wellbeing and educational attainment. A broad-based and diverse approach to culture can 
both help to regenerate communities and contribute to the standing and profile of a city.  We 
seek to provide the widest range of opportunities for local people and visitors to experience 
and participate in.  
 
Consultation on the priorities for this plan showed that Leeds people prioritise the 
participation by all groups and communities in cultural events.  In the 2007 Annual Residents 
Survey, over a quarter of residents said those activities specifically for teenagers should be a 
priority for the council.  Excellence, diversity and wider participation are also emphasised 
nationally and the run up to the 2012 London Olympics will focus attention particularly on 
participation in sport and broader cultural activities. 
 
Leeds has a large and growing range of cultural events and facilities including, theatres, 
galleries and museums, sporting venues, parks and open spaces, an International Concert 
Season of more than 200 concerts per year, International Film Festivals, 53 Libraries and 
renowned opera and ballet companies.  Leeds City Council also has a longstanding 
commitment to free events for local people such as Party and Opera in the Park and to 
community festivals such as Chapeltown Carnival. 
 
Over the last three years, substantial investment in cultural facilities has resulted in the first 
phase of restoration of the Art Gallery and Central Library where we have seen an 85% 
increase in visitor figures, the opening of the Kirkstall Abbey visitor centre; refurbishment of 
the Grand Theatre, and opening of an Aquatics Centre at the John Charles Centre for Sport.  
Further opportunities will be created by the opening of Leeds’ new museum in 2008, 
restoration of the City Varieties Music Hall; a major redevelopment of Garforth Library and 
two new leisure centres in Armley and Morley.  Extensive consultation about parks and open 
spaces has resulted in an additional £4.5m of investment to improve community parks 
across the city.   
 
However, there is still a great deal of progress to be made in ensuring that Leeds has the 
highest quality cultural facilities and activity that are accessible and inclusive of all its 
citizens. Some of Leeds’ cultural facilities still do not match the quality of its events or fulfil 
their potential to help put Leeds on an international stage. A sustainable future also needs to 
be found for some of Leeds’ most exciting cultural events, for them to thrive and grow.   
 
We need to do more to increase people’s access to cultural opportunities. We are working 
towards doubling visitor figures for Leeds’ museums and galleries; creating initiatives to 

Strategic Outcomes 
 
What we want to see by 2011: 
 

• Increased participation in cultural opportunities through engaging with all our 
communities. 

 
• Enhanced cultural opportunities through encouraging investment and 

development of high quality facilities of national and international significance. 
 

Page 82



 

 13 

bring more people to cultural buildings in the city centre and finding ways to better represent 
all sections of the community and consult people about what they want.   
 
Leeds is working particularly hard to ensure that young people can enjoy the cultural 
opportunities on offer.  The Breeze Card is an increasingly useful channel for children and 
young people to access cultural activities and facilities.  Over 167,000 Breeze card holders 
participate in 100 holiday sports programmes while a further 15,500 attend Breeze on Tour 
activities across Leeds.  We need to further develop ways of better coordinating 
opportunities for young people to engage in creative activity outside school, to ensure that 
no young people are left behind. 
 
Our priorities listed below will enhance the cultural life of Leeds to reflect its status as a 
vibrant cosmopolitan city and enable everyone to participate in and enjoy what the city has 
to offer. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Improvement Priorities 
 
What we want to deliver by 2011: 
 

§ Enable more people to become involved in sport and culture by providing 
better quality and wider ranging activities and facilities. 

 

§ Facilitate the delivery of major cultural schemes of international significance. 

Supporting Strategies: 
 
Cultural Strategy* 
 
 Informed by: 

• Library Plan  

• Renaissance in the Regions (Museums 
Strategy) 

• Parks and Greenspace Plan  

• Taking the Lead: A strategy for sport and 
active recreation in Leeds 2006 to 2012 

• Physical Activity Strategy*  

• Children and Young People’s Plan 2006-09 

*In development 

Page 83



 

 14 

 
Enterprise and the Economy 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Context 
 
The story of Leeds is an undeniable success and the renaissance of the Leeds economy 
underpins the city’s success. 
 
Between 1996 and 2006 the city has seen Gross Value Added increase by 36% and 59,000 
new jobs, more than any city outside London. Recent investment in the city has been 
phenomenal with £3.2bn invested in commercial property development and a further £7.2bn 
under construction or in the pipeline. Major new developments such as the £800m Eastgate 
and Harewood Quarter, £300m Trinity Quarter, the regeneration of the Aire Valley and the 
completion of the East Leeds Link road (which will unlock 400 hectares of prime 
development land and a potential 30,000 jobs over the next 10-15 years) will build on the 
recent history of success. 
 
However, we are not complacent about Leeds’ future economic performance and significant 
challenges remain.  Leeds has produced fewer new start up businesses than other cities and 
far fewer new businesses are set up in the poorest parts of the city. Similarly, consultation 
for this plan showed that spreading enterprise to the more deprived parts of the city and 
equipping the workforce with the skills to participate in the economy were key priorities. The 
business community also emphasised the need to make the most of private sector 
investment and enhance the city’s reputation as a centre for knowledge and innovation. 
 
The city council fulfils a pivotal role in guiding the city’s renaissance and providing a 
supportive framework for investment and development including investing in the public realm 
– such as creating new public spaces like Millennium Square and redeveloping City Square.  
The council and its partners are supporting economic development and regeneration in 
neighbourhoods and local communities across the city in programmes such as the Town and 
District Centre Programme and Local Enterprise Growth Initiative which is specifically aimed 
at developing enterprise, creating new jobs and boosting prosperity in the city’s most 
disadvantaged communities. 
 
Leeds is also an engine of growth for the City Region and the region as a whole.  In 2006, a 
Leeds City Region Development Plan was launched to accelerate the creation of new jobs in 
the area, particularly by enhancing transport links and the skills of the local workforce.  A 
multi area agreement between Leeds, its neighbouring local authorities and government will 
help deliver the ambitious goals set out in the City Region Development Plan.   
 
However, if Leeds is to achieve all it can for its residents and the wider region it must 
establish itself on the international stage and attract businesses and investment from further 

Strategic Outcomes 
 
What we want to see by 2011: 
 

• Increased entrepreneurship and innovation through effective support to 
achieve the full potential of people, business and the economy. 

 
• Increased international competitiveness through marketing and investment in 

high quality infrastructure and physical assets, particularly in the city centre. 
 

Page 84



 

 15 

afield. We are now developing a new Economic Development Strategy which will build on 
the current core aims and incorporate many recent changes. This includes the recognition of 
increasing globalisation and the growing consensus the significance and importance of 
climate change. 
 
Our priorities listed below seek to support our aspiration to ensure Leeds’ continued success 
and establish it as a leading European city which provides better outcomes for local people 
and narrows the gap between the most disadvantaged people and communities and the rest 
of the city. 
 
 
 Improvement Priorities 
 
What we want to deliver by 2011: 

 

§ Increase innovation and entrepreneurial activity across the city. 

§ Facilitate the delivery of major developments in the city centre to enhance the 
economy and support local employment. 

§ Increase international communications, marketing and business support 
activities to promote the city and attract investment. 

 

Supporting Strategies: 
 
Leeds Economic Development Strategy*  
 
Informed by: 

§ City Region Development Plan 

§ Regional Economic Strategy 2006-2015 

§ Leeds Renaissance Framework 

§ Regional Spatial Strategy to 2016 
(Published December 2004) 

§ Local Development Framework, core 
strategy and other policies 

*in development 

§  

Page 85



 

 16 

Learning 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Context 
 
Learning is central to achieving our aspirations for the city. A skilled and well-trained 
workforce is vital for the future prosperity of Leeds and for everyone to share in that success.  
In addition, learning and educational success helps to promote better wellbeing and health 
for individuals and communities and supports a culturally vibrant city. The foundations for 
this are laid in our schools but, increasingly, training to update and acquire new skills will be 
a lifelong activity for us all.    

 
Leeds’ schools and early year’s providers have made great progress in recent years, 
strengthened by massive investment in award-winning new buildings and IT systems for 
schools and children’s centres.  Early year’s provision is a strength of the city and the most 
recent results show strong improvements. Primary schools are good and results are in line 
with national averages and performance in similar areas. Secondary schools have improved 
strongly in recent years, particularly in those schools in the most challenging circumstances. 
Results for 14 year olds are now in line with national averages and similar authorities. 
Outcomes at GCSE have seen strong and sustained improvement so that results are now in 
line with similar areas, and are close to the national average. However, despite this progress 
significant challenges remain. Particular priorities include: increasing the progress made by 
learners throughout secondary school; raising attendance in secondary schools and 
reducing the number of students who are persistently absent; and lastly narrowing the gap in 
achievement for vulnerable groups of children and young people, especially those from low 
income families, those with special educational needs, some Black and Minority Ethnic 
groups and lastly, but importantly, Looked After Children and Young People. 
 
Increasing participation and educational success for young people is a key priority. At 
present fewer young people continue in learning or employment after the age of 16 in Leeds 
than in similar areas or nationally. Vulnerable groups of young people are more likely to not 
be in learning and work. As such it is important that schools, colleges and partners continue 
to work together to develop better choice and better routes and pathways to learning so that 
all young people are engaged, successful and ready for adult life. 
 
Around a fifth of the Leeds workforce were recorded as having no skills in 2005, and 
although a survey showed in 2005 that 63 per cent of respondents had undertaken some 
form of training in the previous year, more will have to be done if the workforce in Leeds is to 
meet the national targets set out in the government’s review of skills needs published in 
2006.  This review set a target of 90% of the workforce having level 2 skills (equivalent to 
five good GCSEs) by 2020.  The current figure for Leeds is around 50%. 
 
Consultation on the priorities for this plan showed strong support among all groups for 
improving the results achieved by children and young people and raising the participation 
levels among our children and young people in education and training.  The business 
community also emphasised the importance of the city’s universities and colleges.   

Strategic Outcomes 
 
What we want to see by 2011: 
 

• An enhanced workforce that will meet future challenges through fulfilling 
individual and economic potential and investing in learning facilities.  

 

Page 86



 

 17 

 
The priorities below address these issues and will measure the improvement achieved by 
our young people and across the workforce over the coming three years. 
  
 

Improvement Priorities 
 
What we want to deliver by 2011: 
 

§ Enhance the skill level of the workforce to fulfil individual and economic 
potential. 

§ Improve learning outcomes for all 16 year olds, with a focus on narrowing the 
achievement gap. 

 
§ Improve learning outcomes and skill levels for 19 year olds. 

 
§ Increase the proportion of vulnerable groups engaged in education, training 

or employment. 

§ Improve participation and early learning outcomes for all children, with a 
focus on families in deprived areas. 

Supporting Strategies: 
 

Children and Young People’s Plan 2006-2009  

People Centred Places*  
 
Informed by: 
 

§ Leeds 14-19 Strategy 2006-2010 

§ Education Leeds Strategic Plan 2004 – 2007 

§ HE/FE Plans 

*in development 

 

Page 87



 

 18 

Transport 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Context 
 
Whether a journey is in a car, on a bus or train, on two wheels, or on foot and whether it is to 
get to work, school or to the shops, quality of life is undoubtedly enhanced by being able to 
move around more easily.  Similarly, moving people and goods within Leeds and beyond is 
key to the city being a good place to do business.  Accessible, affordable, and convenient 
transport will make a big contribution to the city being a place where people want to live and 
work. Our aspirations are to deliver this goal and ensure that future growth is not constrained 
by transport difficulties.   
 
Leeds has good transport links - the M1, M621 and A1 (M) provide good road links to other 
parts of the country; Leeds’ railway station has the highest number of passengers of any 
station outside London with 90,000 passengers using the station every day and it has 
recently undergone refurbishment to meet this growing demand.  Leeds also has an 
extensive bus network with about 90 million passenger journeys every year.  Innovations like 
guided bus routes along converted central reservations have improved journey reliability and 
punctuality.   
 
Transport is however, a major concern for local people. Consultation during the autumn of 
2007 to identify priorities for this plan found that improving the quality, accessibility and use 
of public transport was a priority for all groups and improving access to job opportunities was 
a key issue for many. Similarly, the business community emphasised the need to improve 
international links and connectivity for the benefit of both local businesses and people. In 
2007 residents said that road and pavement repairs were the most important issue in their 
local area and should also be a top priority for the council. 
 
However, as more people live in and travel to work in Leeds, greater strain will be imposed 
on the transport system.  Road traffic grew by 4.9% between 1996 and 2006 and further 
growth is predicted.  In 2001 around 108,000 people commuted into Leeds daily for work 
and that number is estimated to have grown significantly in recent years; and in 2006 the 
total number of trips into the city averaged about 122,500 a day; consequently, further 
investment to boost the capacity of the transport system, particularly for buses and trains in 
Leeds will be needed to meet rising demand within the city and the surrounding area.   
 
A proposal to upgrade the city’s buses and develop a high grade transit system is under 
development and this could deliver a fast and convenient alternative to the car for many 
journeys, as well as reducing congestion and pollution. With our neighbouring local 
authorities and Metro, we are working together to improve rail and bus links within and 
around Leeds and have established an ambitious 25 year Transport Vision which will ensure 
that these improvements are City Region based rather than just within Leeds. We are also 
investing heavily in highways maintenance to significantly improve the network. 
Supplementing Central Government funding, we have made an extra £82m available to 

Strategic Outcomes 
 
What we want to see by 2011: 
 

• Increased accessibility and connectivity through investment in a high quality 
transport system and through influencing others and changing behaviours. 

 

Page 88



 

 19 

complete hundreds of schemes across the city by 2012 which will significantly improve the 
condition of our streets. 
 

The priorities below address these issues and also indicate how improving our streets and 
roads and public transport can contribute to reducing the number of people killed or seriously 
injured in traffic accidents as well as help to improve the city’s environment. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Improvement Priorities 
 
What we want to deliver by 2011: 
 

§ Deliver and facilitate a range of transport proposals for an enhanced transport 
system, including cycling and walking. 

§ Improve the quality, use and accessibility of public transport services in 
Leeds. 

§ Improve the condition of the streets and transport infrastructure by carrying 
out a major programme of maintenance and improvements. 

§ Improve road safety for all our users, especially motor cyclists pedal cyclists 
and pedestrians. 

Supporting Strategies: 

 

West Yorkshire Local Transport Plan 2006-2011  
 
Informed by: 

§ 25 year Leeds city-region Transport Vision 

§ Highways Asset Management Plan 

§ Traffic Management Action Plans 

§ Regional Transport Strategy as part of 
Regional Spatial Strategy 

* in development 

Page 89



 

 20 

Environment 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

•   
 
 
Context 
 
We are fully committed to being at the leading edge of responding to the challenge of climate 
change and so managing and adapting to this challenge is a key priority for Leeds. 
Fortunately, Leeds is well placed to meet this challenge.  The council monitors its impact on 
the environment through the rigorous EMAS standard including issues relating to air quality 
and environmental noise, and with local partners working together to develop a Climate 
Change Strategy to mitigate the impact of climate change on the city.  
 
Local residents also feel the environmental challenge is important. In 2007, 14% of local 
residents surveyed said that a clean neighbourhood (without litter or graffiti) was one of the 
five things most in need of improvement in their area.  A third of residents said that rubbish 
and litter lying around was a local problem and over a quarter said that vandalism and graffiti 
were also local problems.  Linked issues like the state of pavements and roads and access 
to parks and green space were also cited as issues of concern.  A well maintained 
environment contributes to other important aspects of wellbeing like accessibility and 
opportunities for leisure and relaxation, and we are proud that two-thirds of Leeds’ area is 
green space and a number of our parks have already achieved Green Flag status. Extensive 
consultation about parks and open spaces has resulted in an additional £4.5m of investment 
to improve community parks.   
 
Waste and recycling is also important locally.  Doorstep recycling collection and local 
recycling facilities have been used by virtually all local residents and there are generally high 
levels of satisfaction with the facilities provided in Leeds.  However, Leeds’ performance in 
terms of recycling and particularly waste going to landfill is average in comparison with other 
authorities and further progress will be needed to meet the ambitious targets we have set for 
recycling. 
 
The environment is a key priority locally, nationally and globally.  The UK Government is on 
track to reduce its CO2 and other greenhouse gas emissions by 12.5 per cent (using 1990 
levels as a baseline) as part of its commitment under the Kyoto Protocol.  This has been 
achieved through greater energy efficiency; promoting less polluting and encouraging the 
use of renewable sources of energy; and also reducing the amount of pollution emitted from 
all energy sources.  The current Climate Change Bill proposes a statutory framework for 
reducing greenhouse gas emissions and will set ‘carbon budgets’ to drive forward reductions 
in CO2 emissions by households, businesses, local authorities and other public bodies.   
 
We will all have an obligation to change our behaviour to mitigate the effects of climate 
change. The council, for example, is already reducing its impact on the environment by 
switching the majority of its electricity to ‘green electricity’, establishing schemes within its 

Strategic Outcomes 
 
What we want to see by 2011: 
 

• Reduced ecological footprint through responding to environmental and climate 
change and influencing others. 

• Cleaner, greener and more attractive city through effective environmental 
management and changed behaviours. 

Page 90



 

 21 

buildings to involve staff in managing environmental impacts, and delivering and advising on 
energy efficiency in both privately owned and Housing Association homes. Through planning 
regulations, developers and partners are being encouraged to improve design quality and 
sustainability to reduce the environmental impact of their activities. For example, developers 
working in Holbeck Urban Village have produced a sustainability report to support planning 
applications which covers energy efficiency, waste management and the reduction of CO2 

emissions. 
 
The impact of climate change can be clearly seen in Leeds and will be an increasingly 
critical issue for the city.  Parts of the city were flooded, both in June 07 and January 08, and 
consequently we are working with our partners and actively participating in seeking to secure 
an effective flood defence system. 
 
The priorities below set out where we are concentrating our efforts over the next three years 
to take on the challenge to improve the city’s environment.  
 
 
 
 

Improvement Priorities 
 
What we want to deliver by 2011: 

 

§ Increase the amount of waste reused and recycled and reduce the amount of 
waste going to landfill. 

§ Reduce emissions from public sector buildings, operations and service 
delivery, and encourage others to do so. 

§ Undertake actions to improve our resilience to current and future climate 
change. 

§ Address neighbourhood problem sites; improve cleanliness and access to 
and quality of green spaces. 

§ Improve the quality and sustainability of the built and natural environment. 

Supporting Strategies: 
 

§ Local Development Framework 
§ Regional Spatial Strategy to 2016 
§ Climate Change Strategy  
§ Integrated Waste Strategy 2006 - 2025 
§ Leeds Strategic Flood risk assessment 
§ West Yorkshire Local Transport Plan 
§ Energy and Water Management Plan 
§ Parks and Greenspace Strategy 
*in development 

Page 91



 

 22 

 Health and Wellbeing 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Context 
 
People in Leeds are growing healthier and living longer.  At birth men can expect to live for 
76.2 years compared to 74.6 years in 1997.  Life expectancy at birth for women has 
increased from 80.1 years to 81.2 in the same period.  
 
A challenge for Leeds is that this increase is not evenly spread across the city. The gap 
between richer and poorer areas of Leeds can be counted in extra years of life and it is not 
narrowing.  Despite the death rate falling in Leeds during the last ten years, the fall has been 
faster in the wealthier parts of the city. Children born today in the city’s most disadvantaged 
neighbourhood can expect to live almost twelve years less than those in areas of Leeds 
which enjoy the best health. 
 
As people live longer they should also enjoy more years of good health.  Again this is more 
likely in the wealthier parts of the city.  It is inevitable that longer life and the increasing 
number of older people will increase the need for additional services or support to maximise 
the capacity of elderly or vulnerable people to continue living independently.     
 
Health is influenced by many different factors.  Some of these will be improved by action 
undertaken within other themes, particularly culture through sport and physical activity and 
the environment through cleaner air and noise reduction. Our lifestyles and choices around 
issues like smoking, drinking or exercise have an impact not just on our health as individuals 
but also on the health needs of Leeds as a whole.  People with poor diets or who do not take 
enough exercise are much more likely to become overweight or obese which brings with it a 
higher risk of diabetes, stroke or heart disease.  Excessive drinking also contributes to ill 
health and increases the risk of injury or accidents.  The rate of sexually transmitted 
diseases is rising among young people in Leeds. 
 
Leeds is rising to the challenge to have active lifestyles that encourage improved health and 
well-being.  In 2007, there were over four million visits to Leeds City Council leisure centres 
and 36,470 visits to ‘Active Life’ classes, for people aged over 50, across the city.  
 
Through schemes such as Keeping House which has assisted over 2,000 older and disabled 
people in Leeds to find practical support and help in the home, the council and its partners 
are working hard to help adults and particularly older adults to live happy and independent 
lives.  Adult care services in Leeds have recently been commended for achieving quality of 
life improvements for vulnerable adults and helping them to get better access to services.  

Strategic Outcomes 
 
What we want to see by 2011: 
 

• Reduced health inequalities through the promotion of healthy life choices and 
improved access to services. 

 
• Improved quality of life through maximising the potential of vulnerable people 

by promoting independence, dignity and respect. 
 

• Enhanced safety and support for vulnerable people through preventative and 
protective action to minimise risks and maximise wellbeing. 

Page 92



 

 23 

By giving direct payments to more people we are working to give more choice to people so 
that they can choose for themselves the services they want.  Take up of direct payments 
have more than doubled over the past 12 months resulting in over 300 more people having 
greater choice and control over the services they receive. 
 
To meet the challenge of reducing health inequalities in Leeds, the Council working with our 
key partners in the health service we will work to increase the number who quit smoking, and 
increase their rate of physical activity across all age groups.  In partnership the Council will 
also tackle drug and alcohol misuse co-ordiante action to reduce the number of teenage 
conceptions.  We want to give greater independence to vulnerable people by supporting 
them to choose the services to improve their opportunity and quality of life. Direct payments 
and individual budgets will help to achieve this alongside improved access to mainstream 
services, such as training for a job or enjoying local community and recreational facilities.  
 
There remains much more to do to reduce health inequalities for local people and improve 
their physical, mental and social wellbeing. Our new priorities set out below detail how we 
will meet these challenges in the coming years. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Improvement Priorities 
 
By 2011: 

 

§ Reduce premature mortality in the most deprived areas. 

§ Reduce the number of people who smoke. 

§ Reduce rate of increase in obesity and raise physical activity for all. 
 

§ Reduce teenage conception and improve sexual health. 
 
 

§ Improved assessment and care management for children, families and 
vulnerable adults. 

 
§ Improved psychological mental health and learning disabilities services for 

all who need it. 
 

§ Increase the number of vulnerable people helped to live at home. 
 

§ Increased proportion of people in receipt of community services enjoying 
choice and control over their daily lives. 

 
§ Improve safeguarding arrangements for vulnerable children and adults 

through better information, recognition and response to risk. 
 

Page 93



 

 24 

Supporting Strategies: 

 

Health and Wellbeing Plan* 

Children and Young People’s Plan 2006-9 

 
Informed by: 
 

§ Leeds Tobacco Control Strategy 2006-2010 

§ Food Matters: a food strategy for Leeds 2006-
2010 

§ Leeds Childhood Obesity Strategy 2006-2016 

§ Leeds Alcohol Strategy 2007-2010 

§ Older Better Strategy 2006-2011 

§ Leeds Emotional Health Strategy 2008/11 

§ Leeds Mental Health Strategy 2006-2011 

§ Supporting People Strategy 2005-2010 

§ Physical Activity Strategy  

§ West Yorkshire Local Transport Plan 

*in development 
 

Page 94



 

 25 

Thriving Neighbourhoods 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Context 
 
The priorities in this theme are key concerns of local people.  Low crime, low levels of anti-
social behaviour and affordable, decent housing are the three most important things for 
making somewhere a good place to live according to Leeds residents in 2007.  Tackling 
crime and anti-social behaviour were also cited as two of the top five priorities for the Council 
to tackle.   
 
Stakeholders consulted on priorities for this plan echoed the views of residents: crime, 
housing and reducing worklessness were chosen as the top priorities in that exercise.  
Councillors in particular saw this theme as vital for ‘narrowing the gap’ in the city between 
areas with low crime, good housing and high employment and more deprived parts of Leeds. 
 
Partnership work with West Yorkshire Police to reduce crime, anti-social behaviour and the 
fear of crime in those neighbourhoods with the highest crime levels has proved successful 
with crime falling by more than a quarter over the last three years, the second highest fall in 
crime in the country. However, there is more to do to reduce crime further by targeting 
persistent offenders and addressing anti-social behaviour and the problems that arise from 
alcohol and drug misuse.    
 
The council has made significant progress in improving council housing to ensure that by 
2010 it will meet the national ‘Decent Homes’ standard. Work with private sector landlords 
has resulted in over 2,300 empty homes being brought back into use in the last year and we 
have provided grants and advice to enable lower income households to heat their homes as 
cheaply and efficiently as possible. However, many households are finding it increasingly 
difficult to buy or rent a home in the city and higher fuel bills mean that an increasing number 
of residents find it difficult to heat their homes.  
 
The Council will work with its partners to deliver more new housing at a level that is 
affordable to buy and rent to ensure that we can meet the housing needs for all residents 
and not just those on high incomes. Work is underway to improve existing homes and build 
new homes through our existing PFI scheme in Swarcliffe with further work planned for Little 
London and Beeston Hill. The East and South East Leeds Project (EASEL) will deliver over 
5,000 new homes, along with community facilities and businesses over the next 15-20 years, 
helping to create strong and sustainable communities in those areas.  
 

Strategic Outcomes 
 
What we want to see by 2011: 
 

• Improved quality of life through mixed neighbourhoods offering good housing 
options and better access to services and activities. 

 
• Reduced crime and fear of crime through prevention, detection, offender 

management and changed behaviours. 
 

• Increased economic activity through targeted support to reduce worklessness 
and poverty. 

 

Page 95



 

 26 

There are neighbourhoods where too many people do not have a job, households are 
dependent on benefits and children grow up in poverty. Many residents do not have a bank 
account or can not borrow or save money at reasonable rates. The Council will work with its 
partners to support residents to obtain the right skills to secure work and progress in existing 
and new jobs. We will extend our award winning programmes to give households greater 
control over their money and access to trustworthy and reliable savings and credit so that 
families can be financially secure.   
   
The priorities below build on these successful programmes to create the conditions for 
thriving neighbourhoods over the next three years. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Improvement Priorities 
By 2011: 
 

§ Increase the number of “decent homes”. 
 

§ Increase the number of affordable homes. 
 

§ Reduction in the number of homeless people. 
 

§ Reduce the number of people who are not able to adequately heat their 
homes. 

 
§ Increased financial inclusion in deprived areas. 

 
§ Reduce crime and fear of crime. 

 
§ Reduce offending. 

 
§ Reduce the harm from drugs and alcohol to individuals and society. 

 
§ Reduce anti-social behaviour. 

 
§ Reduced bullying and harassment. 

 
§ Reduce worklessness across the city with a focus on deprived areas. 

§ Reduce the number of children in poverty. 

§ Develop extended services, using sites across the city, to improve support 
to children, families and communities. 

Page 96



 

 27 

Supporting Strategies: 
 

Leeds Housing Strategy 2005/06 – 2009/10 

Regional Spatial Strategy 

Local Development Framework 

Children and Young People’s Plan 2006-9 

Safer Leeds Strategy 2005 -2008  

Regional Spatial Strategy - 2016 

Local Development Framework 
 
Informed by: 
 

§ Leeds Affordable Warmth Strategy 2007-
2016 

§ Leeds Domestic Violence Strategy 2004-
2007 

§ Leeds Alcohol Strategy 2007-2010 

 

Page 97



 

 28 

Harmonious Communities  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Context 
 
Local pride, a sense of belonging and neighbourliness are key ingredients for the sorts of 
places people want to live in.  Leeds residents report high levels of belonging and 
satisfaction with where they live.  In the 2007 Annual Residents Survey three quarters of 
respondents said they feel they belong to their neighbourhood and nearly half (46%) said 
they feel that local people work together to improve their neighbourhood.  Two thirds of 
residents said that people of different backgrounds got on well together and three fifths of 
residents said that people respected ethnic difference where they lived.  Overall 81% were 
satisfied with their neighbourhood as a place to live.   
 
However, not all parts of the city share this sense of belonging and neighbourliness in equal 
measures.  Residents in the south of the city were less likely to say they belonged to their 
neighbourhood or that people worked together to improve their neighbourhood.  Young 
people were less likely than older people to say that people of different backgrounds got on 
well together where they lived or that people respected ethnic differences where they lived.  
Although a third of residents said they were satisfied with the way they could influence public 
services in their area, over a third said they would like more say in making decisions that 
affected their local area.   
 
In parts of the city the Council has put in place Neighbourhood Managers to encourage local 
people to speak out and work with those delivering services to make the changes needed in 
their neighbourhood. Results show that people in these areas feel that they can make 
themselves heard and that they are listened to.  Satisfaction with the way that problems like 
litter, graffiti or anti-social behaviour are dealt with has risen.  Other services like the Police 
have also put in place neighbourhood teams so that they are closer to the local community 
they serve.   
 
There are numerous groups and organisations in the city, known collectively as the 
Voluntary, Community and Faith sector, that support a wide range of activity and services 
needed in local communities. These organisations provide opportunities for local people to 
volunteer their time and skills to help others in their community and foster good relationships. 
Groups such as these are often community led and supported by grant funding and are 
vulnerable to changes in the way public services are delivered and grant funding is provided. 
The council is committed to working in partnership with this sector to ensure that it can 
continue to offer locally based services and opportunities for local citizens to take an active 
part in community life.     
 
A growing and increasingly diverse population creates new challenges as well as 
opportunities for creating strong cohesive communities.  Integrating new migrants from 

Strategic Outcomes 
 
What we want to see by 2011: 
 

• More inclusive, varied and vibrant communities through empowering people to 
contribute to decision making and delivering local services. 

 
• Improved community cohesion and integration through meaningful involvement 

and valuing equality and diversity. 
 

Page 98



 

 29 

Eastern Europe as well as long established communities will enrich the city over time but 
perceptions of disadvantage or unfairness need to be addressed immediately.  Fostering 
more ways for people to engage in and shape the life of their communities will be a vital part 
of the process of creating strong, sustainable and harmonious communities.   
 
The priorities and targets below will measure progress towards these goals over the next 
three years.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Improvement Priorities 
 
What we want to deliver by 2011: 
 

§ An increased number of local people engaged in activities to meet 
community needs and improve the quality of life for local residents. 

 
§ An increase in the number of local people that are empowered to have a 

greater voice and influence over local decision making and a greater role in 
public service delivery. 

 
§ Enable a robust and vibrant voluntary, community and faith sector to facilitate 

community activity and directly deliver services. 
 

§ An increased sense of belonging and pride in local neighbourhoods that help 
to build cohesive communities. 

 

Supporting Strategies: 
 

Community Engagement Framework 2006 

Community Cohesion Action Plan 

Children and Young People’s Plan 2006-9 

 

Page 99



 

 30 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SECTION 3 
 

MAKING IT HAPPEN 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 100



 

 31 

 

STREAMLINING THE CITY’S PLANNING FRAMEWORK 
 
The Leeds Strategic Plan sets out the goals that Leeds City Council and its partners have 
agreed to achieve over the next three years to help achieve the longer term objectives 
contained in the Vision for Leeds 2004 to 2020.  The Leeds Strategic Plan is effectively the 
delivery plan for the long term Vision for Leeds.   
 
We have used the legal requirement to develop a new Local Area Agreement (LAA) for 
Leeds as an opportunity to make the planning process in the city simpler.  The Leeds 
Strategic Plan replaces two plans, the Council’s Corporate Plan, which contained the 
Council’s priorities for the City (and itself as an organisation) and the Leeds Regeneration 
Plan which focused on ‘narrowing the gap’ between the poorest and wealthiest parts of 
Leeds.   
 
Leeds City Council and its partners have also revised the structural arrangements of the 
Leeds Initiative to ensure that the partnership is fit for purpose to deliver the ambitions laid 
out in our Vision for Leeds and our outcomes and priorities in the Leeds Strategic Plan.   
 
The council has produced its own Business Plan which will describe how the council will 
organise itself to deliver what it has agreed to do in the Leeds Strategic Plan.  Other partners 
will also have their own business and action plans to deliver what is agreed in this plan and 
integrate their other goals.   
 
City wide plans will be translated into action at an area level and for particular services. Area 
delivery plans (ADPs) will provide the local interpretation of the Leeds Strategic Plan 
reflecting and shaping the partnership activities for each area. The Area Delivery Plans are 
developed by each of the ten area committees. These committees are led by councillors 
representing local citizens embedding democratic accountability into partnership activities at 
an area level. Local councillors have extensive knowledge of local conditions and can 
articulate priorities from different perspectives. 
 
On a different scale, it is increasingly an accepted fact that the Leeds economy works on a 
wider scale than the administrative boundaries of the city, and the success of Leeds also 
brings greater prosperity to neighbouring towns and cities.  Therefore, to complement the 
targets in the Leeds Strategic Plan we have also agreed a Multi Area Agreement (MAA) for 
Leeds and its neighbouring authorities.  
 
We have also taken into account other local and regional plans, including the Local 
Development Framework and the Regional Spatial Strategy and the Regional Economic 
Strategy. 
 
 

EFFECTIVE DELIVERY THROUGH PARTNERSHIP WORKING 
 
Leeds has a good record of partnership working.  Since 1990 Leeds Initiative has brought 
together public agencies, private businesses and voluntary, community and faith groups to 
develop a shared vision of a successful, prosperous and inclusive Leeds.  Leeds Initiative 
has also developed a ‘Compact for Leeds’ to support the work of the city’s voluntary, 
community and faith groups.  This recognises the role and value and community activity. It 
encourages the effective use of resources and promotes equal partnerships through good 
communication, consultation and sharing of information.   
 

Page 101



 

 32 

Building on these foundations Leeds City Council and its partners have adopted a set of 
partnership principles to make sure that our joint efforts really do achieve our common 
ambition: 
 
to bring the benefits of a prosperous, vibrant and attractive city to all the people of 
Leeds 
 
through: 
 

• focusing on the partners’ common purpose and community needs; 
 

• having clear responsibilities and arrangements for accountability; 
 

• good conduct and behaviour, treating all partners and stakeholders equally, fairly and 
respectfully;  

 

• informed, transparent decision-making and managing risk; 
 

• developing skills and capacity individually and as a partnership to deliver the 
outcomes and priorities in this plan; and 

 

• engaging stakeholders in drawing up our outcomes, priorities and targets and 
keeping people informed on how well we are delivering. 

 
The challenge for the Leeds Strategic Plan is to apply these principles to deliver real 
improvements for local people.  This requires new ways of partnership working in Leeds, 
sharing information and pooling resources among partners where this brings benefits 
through greater effectiveness and efficiency.  The Local Government and Public Involvement 
in Health Act 2007 creates a new duty for partners to cooperate in the delivery of targets in 
this Plan and this sets a context for us to deepen partnership working.  Closer partnerships 
may be the right solution in many cases and the Council and its partners will explore the 
potential of extending joint service delivery and joint commissioning to deliver services more 
efficiently and effectively.   
 
 

MEASURING AND MANAGING PERFORMANCE  
 
Delivering on our targets is essential if the Leeds Strategic Plan is to achieve our ambitions 
for Leeds and its residents.  This will be a collective endeavour for all the partners to this 
agreement.  Senior council officers will have lead accountability for each of themes, 
improvement priorities and targets in the Leeds Strategic Plan and will work with similar 
senior officers in partner organisations. Every partner will have regard to all the targets in the 
Plan when drawing up their own budgets and business plans.  Partners will commit to 
leading or contributing to the achievement of specific targets in the Plan and will then be held 
to account for doing the things needed to meet those targets.   
 
We have developed reliable measures for each target and have put in place robust 
processes for regularly reporting performance.  These processes will measure progress 
against each target as well as the Plan’s impact on wider objectives like equality, community 
cohesion and sustainability.  For some targets, measures will be broken down by their 
impact on particular areas of the city and on the basis of gender, ethnic origin, age, disability, 
religion or belief and sexual orientation. 
 

Page 102



 

 33 

The Council is ultimately accountable for working with its partners to draw up and deliver the 
Plan.  The Executive Board (of senior councillors) will receive regular reports on 
performance and recommend actions and changes to plans where performance is not on 
target.  The council’s Scrutiny Boards will also receive regular performance reports and have 
an opportunity to discuss issues of concern, call-in council officers and partners to account 
for their work to deliver targets in the plan and make recommendations to the council and its 
partners to improve performance.   
 
The Leeds Strategic Plan is a partnership plan and the Council will, through the Leeds 
Initiative, agree its contents with and engage partners to monitor and manage the 
performance of the plan.  The Leeds Strategy Group will bring together the Council and its 
partners to monitor performance against the targets in the plan, allocate resources, develop 
new ways of delivering more effectively for Leeds and regularly review the contents of the 
plan.   
 
Other thematic groups in the Leeds Initiative will also be kept informed of progress in 
relevant areas and contribute to the delivery of the Leeds Strategic Plan through developing 
more in-depth strategies and action plans. Local business representatives and 
representatives from voluntary, community and faith groups are involved alongside public 
sector partners in the work of these groups.  
 
The ten area committees across the city will also be reviewing progress towards achieving 
targets identified at an area level. They will be particularly vigilant in assessing 
improvements at a neighbourhood, as well as an area, level. The achievement of these 
targets will make a fundamental contribution to achieving the overall city wide targets and 
outcomes. 
 
Local people will receive regular updates on performance through stories in About Leeds, 
the Council newspaper, on the Council and Leeds Initiative websites and elsewhere. For 
example, progress will be reported to the Leeds Youth Council. Everyone will have 
opportunities to give their views on how well the Leeds Strategic Plan is being delivered.   
 
Up to 35 targets in this plan have been negotiated and agreed with Government Office and 
reflect shared priorities with national government.  Progress against these targets must be 
reported annually to the government who must agree to any changes to these targets.  .   
 
 

REVIEWING AND REVISING THE LEEDS STRATEGIC PLAN 
 
Leeds’ priorities will inevitably change over time and the priorities and targets in the Leeds 
Strategic Plan will be regularly reviewed and updated to ensure this plan is still relevant and 
addresses the city’s real needs.   
 
The council and its partners will collect and use information on social, economic and 
environmental conditions and trends, including performance data against the targets in this 
plan, to change priorities and set new targets as necessary. Already, the council and the 
PCT are working jointly to assess current and future health needs in Leeds through a Joint 
Strategic Needs Assessment. The findings from this assessment will inform future health 
priorities in this plan.   
 
Public opinion, gained through regular resident surveys will also feed into the setting of 
priorities and targets in future versions of this plan.  The views of council Scrutiny Boards, 
Area Committees and other partners and stakeholders will also be taken into account before 
the council and its partners agree any changes to the contents of the Plan.   
 

Page 103



 

 34 

The Audit Commission will assess on an annual basis conditions and prospects for the city 
through a new Comprehensive Area Assessment process.  Achievement of the targets in the 
Leeds strategic plan will form part of the Audit Commission’s annual assessment of how well 
Leeds is improving.  Further, more specific reviews on particular issues can be required 
where the Comprehensive Area Assessment suggests there is a risk of underperformance.  
Where the Audit Commission feels that performance in Leeds is unsatisfactory it will 
recommend new priorities for the Leeds Strategic Plan and the council and its partners will 
negotiate with the Government whether a target should be set to address that issue.  
Government Office will monitor performance and initiate discussions where performance is 
not on track and can intervene where performance is significantly below what is expected.   
 
At every stage the Council will inform, consult and involve local people, representatives of 
geographical communities and communities of interest, partners and stakeholders in the city 
and beyond where relevant, and draw on expert analysis to ensure that the priorities and 
targets in the plan have been rigorously challenged, are truly robust and are relevant to the 
achievement of our ambitions for Leeds.   
 
 

Page 104



1 
L:FDU/Projects/JSC/2008-03-12 

 

Report of the Deputy Chief Executive 
 
Executive Board  
 
Date: 12th March 2008 
 
Subject: Joint Service Centres - Approval to proceed to Lift Stage 2 for Joint Service 
Centres at Chapeltown and Harehills 
 

        
 
Eligible for call In                                                   Not eligible for call in 
                                                                              (details contained in the report) 
 
 
 
Executive Summary 
 
1. This paper describes the scope and cost associated with the delivery of the Joint 

Service Centres at Chapeltown and Harehills. 
 
2. The Joint Service Centres are to be procured via the Leeds Local Improvement 

Finance Trust (LIFT) in which Leeds City Council are a strategic partner with the 
Leeds Primary Care Trust (PCT). A Stage 1 offer (under the LIFT new projects 
procedure) representing a guaranteed maximum price for the Chapeltown and 
Harehills centres has been received from Leeds LIFT Limited. 

 
3. Members of the Executive Board are recommended to: 
 

a) Accept the Offer as prepared by Leeds Lift Limited and authorize the Deputy 
Chief Executive to formally accept that offer on behalf of the Council 

b) Authorize the Deputy Chief Executive to submit the Offer to the Leeds Lift 
Strategic Partnering Board for Stage 1 Approval under the LIFT process 

c) Continue to delegate the relevant powers to the Joint Service Centre project 
Board to take the procurement of the project forward 

Specific implications for:  
 

Equality and Diversity 
  
Community Cohesion 
 
Narrowing the gap 

Electoral wards affected:  
Chapel Allerton,  Gipton & Harehills, 
Kirkstall, Burmantofts & Richmond Hill 
 
 
 
 
       Ward Members Consulted 
        (referred to in report) 

Originator: David Outram 
Tel: 0113 2143930 

 

 

X  

 

 

Agenda Item 11

Page 105



2 
L:FDU/Projects/JSC/2008-03-12 

 
1.0 Purpose of this report 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to seek Members’ approval for a package of proposals 
from Leeds Lift Limited to develop two joint service centres to be constructed at 
Chapeltown and Harehills. These are to be procured via the Leeds Local 
Improvement Finance Trust (LIFT) in which Leeds City Council are a strategic 
partner with the Leeds Primary Care Trust (PCT). 

2.0   Background information 

2.1 The Council submitted an Expression of Interest (EOI) to the ODPM (now CLG) in 
January 2002 for six One Stop Centres. This bid was given initial approval by the 
ODPM and an initial allocation of £15m of PFI credits in August 2002. This led to the 
production of an OBC in March 2003 with a revised credit allocation of £15.7m. 

2.2 In September 2004 the Executive Board approved the re-scoping of the project to 
three JSCs at Harehills, Chapeltown and Kirkstall. Since that time the Council’s and 
the PCT’s requirements for these buildings have been discussed and agreed. 
Difficulties with site acquisition at Kirkstall have delayed progress on this JSC and it 
is now proposed that the Chapeltown and Harehills JSC from Tranche 3 of the Lift 
programme with Kirkstall being progressed in Tranche 4. 

3.0 The aims of the project 

3.1 The Council is working to tackle the health and social inequalities prevalent in the 
city through ‘narrowing the gap’ between the most disadvantaged neighbourhoods 
and the city as a whole. The development of the Joint Service Centres in 
Chapeltown and Harehills makes a significant contribution to narrowing the gap. 

3.2 Both centres will improve the physical environment in these areas in particular as 
the Chapeltown scheme will link to the additional investment by the Council in 
Chapeltown through the Town and District Centre programme and proposed 
Townscape Heritage Initiative lottery scheme. 

3.3 The Council’s Corporate Plan recognises delivering Joint Service Centres as a 
priority action towards achieving two elements of the seven strategic outcomes: 
‘Transforming Our Services’ and ‘Better Outcomes for Local People’. Emphasis is 
placed on encouraging partnership working with public sector providers and PCT. 

3.4 Leeds Initiative has set out a ‘Vision for Leeds’. A key priority emerging from the 
Vision for Leeds is the aim to develop world-class health services for the people of 
Leeds. This supports the expansion and development of primary and community 
services through Local Initiative Finance Trust (LIFT) and developing joint service 
provision. The health and wellbeing theme promotes the vision of reduced health 
inequalities through providing high-quality, long-term and accessible services, 
protecting people’s health, supporting people to stay healthy and promoting equal 
chances of good health. 

3.5 A best value review of Access to Services has enabled the Council to develop a 
vision for face to face contact that in turn has supported the case for joint service 
centre development in priority areas. The main recommendations from the review 
were: 

Page 106



3 
L:FDU/Projects/JSC/2008-03-12 

§§§§ improve access for everyone; 

§§§§ design services around the needs of users; 

§§§§ combat exclusion; 

§§§§ increase efficiency; and deliver continuous improvement. 

3.6 The review identified the need to address the gaps in current face-to-face provision 
through developing One Stop Centres in existing buildings, such as libraries, and 
through closer working with partners, such as Health and the Police, in developing 
new shared premises and promoting greater integrated working to be able to deliver 
services more holistically. 

3.7 The key principles for how services will be delivered were agreed by the Council’s 
Executive Board in October 2003. Buildings must be easy to find; accessible; meet 
the needs of the communities which they seek to serve; and be of good quality.  

4.0 The LIFT Stage 1 approval process 

4.1 Leeds Lift is overseen by a Strategic Partnering Board (SPB) on which the Council 
is represented as a shareholder in Leeds Lift. Via a procurement three years ago 
Pimeria were appointed as the private sector partner. 

4.2 Each new scheme or group of schemes forms a funding tranche, with the joint 
service centres at Chapeltown and Harehills comprising Tranche 3. Following 
agreement by the Council and the PCT about the range of services to be occupied 
in the centres a formal Tenants Requirements document is drawn up and a Stage 1 
Offer to construct and operate the centres is prepared by Leeds Lift Limited which 
provides a guaranteed maximum price for the project. 

4.3 The Strategic Partnering Agreement (SPA) (which the Council entered into when the 
Tranche 1 schemes at Woodhouse and Armley were set up in 2004) sets out the 
approval process for new projects. Proposals must be agreed by all those partners 
who will commit expenditure to it before it goes to the SPB for Stage 1 approval. 
The SPB must give this approval where it is satisfied that a project is consistent with 
the Strategic Service Development Plan (SSDP) and meets the relevant partner’s 
requirements and where all those partners vote in favour. The approval criteria are 
whether the cost is within the affordability cap of the partners, whether the new 
project provides value for money and whether it meets the partners requirements 
identified at the time of stage 1 approval. 

4.4 Following approval by the SPB  the project should proceed to Stage 2 where 
detailed design, final costing within the guaranteed maximum are agreed and 
planning permission for the centres is obtained by Leeds Lift Limited. It should be 
noted that if the Council chose not to proceed with the project following Stage 1 
approval then any cost incurred by Leeds Lift Limited after Stage 1 would be 
underwritten by the Council under the terms of the Strategic Partnering Agreement. 

5.0 Scope of the project 

5.1 The service users to be provided for at each of the centres is set out below: 

Page 107



4 
L:FDU/Projects/JSC/2008-03-12 

5.2 The Chapeltown Joint Service Centre proposed for the site on Reginald Terrace 
adjacent to Chapeltown Road will accommodate the following services over 4,445 
square metres of which the City Council share is projected to be 1,390 square 
metres: 

§§§§  LCC Customer Services 

§§§§ LCC Environmental Health 

§§§§ LCC Community Library Services 

§§§§ LCC NE Area Management Team 

§§§§ Leeds Credit Union 

§§§§ PCT Services (Health Access Team, Health Visitors, Community Midwifery, 
TB Nursing Service, Community Drug Team, Speech and Language 
Therapy, Sexual Health, Phlebotomy, Addiction Services, Community 
Dental Services, Multi Ethnic Team,  Heart Failure & Diabetic Services, GP 
Practice, District Nurses, Ulcer Clinic, Mental Health Team. 

5.3 The Harehills Joint Service Centre proposed for the site on Compton Road will 
accommodate the following services over 1,866 square metres: 

§§§§ LCC Customer Services 

§§§§ LCC Chinese Community Workers 

§§§§ LCC Environmental Health 

§§§§ LCC Community Library Service 

§§§§ Leeds Credit Union 

§§§§ LCC CYPAC (Connecting Young People at Compton) 

§§§§ Capacity for PCT to deliver services (Community Drug Team, Mental Health 
Team) 

5.4  It is proposed that the Council will be the sole full-time occupants of the site and 
that the PCT services to be delivered from Harehills will be done from 2 consulting 
rooms sub-let from the Council on a long-term basis. 

5.5 The PCT are currently reviewing their service need in the Kirkstall area. Work 
continues to be undertaken to identify and acquire a suitable site and parties are 
focused on achieving stage 1 approval by March 2009. The Council services 
planned to be accommodated at Kirkstall are: 

§§§§ LCC Customer Services 

§§§§ LCC Community Library Service 

§§§§ LCC Welfare Rights 

§§§§ LCC Environmental Health 

Page 108



5 
L:FDU/Projects/JSC/2008-03-12 

§§§§ Leeds Credit Union 

6.0 Value for money 

6.1 An assessment of value for money for the scheme has been undertaken by an 
external advisor who has compared prices to earlier Leeds Lift Tranches, the 
original price when the private sector partner was obtained and construction and 
financing costs within the market generally. The assessment validates the scheme, 
as currently defined, against value for money tests. 

7.0 PFI Credits and affordability 

7.1 The revenue implications of the procurement of the two Joint Service Centres are 
the product of the Gross Lease Plus payment to Leeds Lift Limited, assessed by 
Leeds Lift Limited to be £319.77 per square metre per annum at April 2007 prices. 

7.2 In addition to the Lease Plus payment there will be pass through cost of utilities, 
insurance NNDR etc, estimated at £30 per square metre per annum and the cost of 
the in house soft Facilities Management costs, estimated at £50 per square metre. 

7.3 The total payments in the first full year of the operation of the Contract are estimated 
to be £1.466m for 3,256 square metres in 2011/12, comprising: 

§§§§ Lease Plus Payments of £1,178,148 

§§§§ Pass through costs of £107,820 

§§§§ Provision for soft FM services £179,701 

7.4  The most significant source of funding for this project is derived from the PFI 
Revenue Support Grant arising from the notional credit approval afforded by PFI 
Credits. For this Project, Department for Communities and Local Government has 
reserved £11.7m of PFI credits and this will produce annual PFI Revenue Support 
Grant in a full year of £937,564. The second source of funding will come from the 
revenue savings when existing service users vacate their existing accommodation 
for the new accommodation in the Joint Service Centres. This is estimated to be 
£132,458 in the first full year, in 2011/12. 

7.5 The estimated annual revenue contribution required to meet project costs is 
estimated to amount to £396k in the first full year of operations in 2011/12. 

7.6 The full cash flow analysis for the Chapeltown and Harehills Joint Service Centres   
over the life of the Contract is contained in Appendix 1. The first full financial year 
will occur in 2011/2012 after the handover of the two Joint Service Centres by May 
2010. A summary of the estimated cash flows for that year and over the life of the 
Contract is summarised in the table below. 

Page 109



6 
L:FDU/Projects/JSC/2008-03-12 

 

Table 1   
 
Estimated Project Cash Flows 

First Full 
Year 

2011/12 

Total Over 
the Life of the 
Contract 

 £000 £000 

 
Lease Plus payments to LIFTCO 
Estimated Pass Through Payments 
Estimated cost of soft services FM 

 
1,178 
108 
180 
 

 
39,283 
3,642 
6,069 

 1,466 48,994 

   
Financed from:   
   
PFI Revenue Support Grant  (£11.7m of PFI 
Credits) 

 
( 938 ) 

 
( 23,673 ) 

   
Revenue savings – existing service users ( 132 ) ( 4,474 ) 
   

Total Funding ( 1,070 ) ( 28,147 ) 

   
Total Deficit (s) 396 20,847 
   

 

7.7 This commitment from the Council will be offset by the benefits Council will receive 
from not having to meet the significant repayment costs associated with the Council 
itself taking on a borrowing commitment to finance its share of the of £17.7m capital 
investment for these two Joint Service Centres. In addition the PFI Contractor will be 
responsible for all building lifecycle maintenance during the life of the Contract, at a 
cost of £3.4m over the life of the Contract. Under a conventional procurement these 
costs would have to be met from the Council’s and the PCT’s own capital resources. 

8.0 Land receipts 

8.1 The sites at Harehills and Chapeltown are to be purchased by Leeds Lift at open 
market value from the Council as part of delivering the project. If it is financially 
advantageous to do so, a capital payment could be made to Leeds LIFT Ltd to 
reduce the sinking fund contribution.   

8.2 Leeds Lift Limited’s current outline assessment of land cost for both sites is a total of 
£1.1m. However the net figure received by the Council will be subject to the cost of 
site abnormals which will be agreed following site investigations by Leeds Lift and 
these costs could be considerable. It is proposed that the issue of a capital 
contribution is considered prior to seeking Stage 2 approval later in the year. 

9.0 Programme 

9.1 The current programme anticipates that Stage 2 financial close will occur by 
December 2008 with the occupation date of the Harehills building being March 2010 
and the Chapeltown building being May 2010. 

10.0 Risk 

Page 110



7 
L:FDU/Projects/JSC/2008-03-12 

10.1 A comprehensive Project Risk Register has been developed and is presented at 
each meeting of the Joint Service Centres Project Board. 

11.0 Implications for council policy and governance 

11.1 It is proposed that the management and decision making arrangements are in line 
with the Executive Board approval, on 9th March 2005, for Corporate Governance 
and Management arrangements for Public Private Partnership and Private Finance 
Initiative (PPP/PFI) Projects within the City Council.  In particular that a project 
board – the Joint Services Centres Board – will continue to be used as the Project 
Board for the Joint Service Centres Project. 

12.0  Legal and resource implications 

12.1 The table below illustrates the budgeted cost in 2008/09 for the procurement of the 
Joint Service Centres project. In addition, Environment and Neighbourhoods will 
also incur their own costs. It is likely that there will be an impact on the Council’s 
Revenue Budget beyond 2008/09 through to 2010/11 when procurement of the 
Kirkstall centre will be progressed subject to resolution of site issues and works on 
the centres are scheduled to be completed. There are also likely to be financial 
implications beyond 2010/2011 to ensure that effective Contract Management is in 
place when the Joint Service Centres become operational. 

 Budget for 
2008/09 

 £000 

Public Private Partnership Unit charges (includes strategic and 
project management, legal, financial, technical, governance, 
programming and performance support) 

 
168 

 

External adviser fees (legal, financial, technical, pension, 
insurance etc.) 
 

 
170 

 
  

  
Total 338 
  

 

13.0 Recommendations 

13.1 Executive Board is requested to: 

a) Accept the Offer as prepared by Leeds Lift Limited and authorize the Deputy 
Chief Executive to formally accept that offer on behalf of the Council 

b) Authorize the Deputy Chief Executive to submit the Offer to the Leeds Lift 
Strategic Partnering Board for Stage 1 Approval under the LIFT process 

c) Continue to delegate the relevant powers to the Joint Service Centre project 
Board to take the procurement of the project forward 

Page 111



Page 112

This page is intentionally left blank



LEEDS JOINT SERVICE CENTRES PROJECT

AFFORDABILITY OVER THE LIFE OF THE CONTRACT

LCC AREA 3,256 Square Metres (Total Area 6,311 Square Metres)

APPENDIX 1

ECONOMIC ASSUMPTIONS - SCENARIO 18 - 50 BASIS POINT HEDGE

NOTIONAL CREDIT APPROVAL £11.7m COMPOSITE INTEREST RATE 5.07%

DEPARTMENTAL REVENUE SAVINGS PER ANNUM AT APRIL 2007 PRICES (£120,000)

AMOUNT OF ACCOMMODATION AT CHAPELTOWN AND HAREHILLS - SQUARE METRES 3,256.00

LEEDS CITY COUNCIL CAPITAL CONTRIBUTION £0

GROSS LEASE PLUS PAYMENT PER SQ METRE (APRIL 2007 PRICES) £319.77

INCLUSIVE OF LIFECYCLE, HARD FM COSTS etc

GROSS REDUCTION IN LEASE PLUS PAYMENTS UTILISING CAPITAL RECEIPT AT APRIL 2007 PRICES £0

REDUCTION PER SQUARE METRE AT APRIL 2007 PRICES £0.00 SERVICE COMMENCEMENT:

CHAPELTOWN - 1st MARCH 2010

NET LEASE PLUS PAYMENT PER SQ METRE (APRIL 2007 PRICES) £319.77 HAREHILLS - 1st MAY 2010

ESTIMATED PASS THROUGH COST PER SQUARE METRE

FOR UTILITIES, INSURANCE, NNDR etc. £30.00

ESTIMATED GROSS COST OF PROVISION OF IN HOUSE SOFT SERVICES PER SQUARE METRE £50.00

PROPORTION OF LEASE PLUS PAYMENT SUBJECT TO ANNUAL INFLATION 100% CONTRACT COMPLETION 30th JUNE 2035

ANNUAL INFLATION RATE OF 2.50%

LAND COST CHAPELTOWN AND HAREHILLS £1,096,302

ASSUMED RESIDUAL VALUE AT CONTRACT COMPLETION (£13,870,578)

 

ANNUAL

DEFICIT

YEAR ENDED YEAR PFI DEPARTMENTAL TOTAL

31ST MARCH NUMBER REVENUE REVENUE FUNDING

SUPPORT SAVINGS SOURCES LEASE PLUS PASS THROUGH PROVISION TOTAL

GRANT PAYMENT PAYMENTS FOR SOFT

SERVICES

£ £ £ £ £ £ £

2010 1 (39,378) (5,253) (44,631) 112,500 4,276 7,127 123,903 79,272

2011 2 (937,564) (123,842) (1,061,406) 1,018,336 100,808 168,013 1,287,156 225,750

2012 3 (937,564) (132,458) (1,070,021) 1,178,148 107,820 179,701 1,465,669 395,647

2013 4 (937,564) (135,769) (1,073,333) 1,207,601 110,516 184,193 1,502,310 428,978

2014 5 (937,564) (139,163) (1,076,727) 1,237,791 113,279 188,798 1,539,868 463,141

2015 6 (937,564) (142,642) (1,080,206) 1,268,736 116,111 193,518 1,578,365 498,159

2016 7 (937,564) (146,208) (1,083,772) 1,300,454 119,014 198,356 1,617,824 534,052

2017 8 (937,564) (149,864) (1,087,427) 1,332,966 121,989 203,315 1,658,270 570,842

2018 9 (937,564) (153,610) (1,091,174) 1,366,290 125,039 208,398 1,699,726 608,552

2019 10 (937,564) (157,450) (1,095,014) 1,400,447 128,165 213,608 1,742,220 647,205

2020 11 (937,564) (161,387) (1,098,950) 1,435,458 131,369 218,948 1,785,775 686,825

2021 12 (937,564) (165,421) (1,102,985) 1,471,345 134,653 224,422 1,830,419 727,434

2022 13 (937,564) (169,557) (1,107,121) 1,508,128 138,019 230,032 1,876,180 769,059

2023 14 (937,564) (173,796) (1,111,360) 1,545,832 141,470 235,783 1,923,084 811,725

2024 15 (937,564) (178,141) (1,115,704) 1,584,477 145,007 241,678 1,971,161 855,457

2025 16 (937,564) (182,594) (1,120,158) 1,624,089 148,632 247,719 2,020,441 900,283

2026 17 (937,564) (187,159) (1,124,723) 1,664,692 152,347 253,912 2,070,952 946,229

2027 18 (937,564) (191,838) (1,129,402) 1,706,309 156,156 260,260 2,122,725 993,324

2028 19 (937,564) (196,634) (1,134,198) 1,748,967 160,060 266,767 2,175,793 1,041,596

2029 20 (937,564) (201,550) (1,139,114) 1,792,691 164,062 273,436 2,230,188 1,091,075

2030 21 (937,564) (206,589) (1,144,152) 1,837,508 168,163 280,272 2,285,943 1,141,791

2031 22 (937,564) (211,753) (1,149,317) 1,883,446 172,367 287,279 2,343,092 1,193,775

2032 23 (937,564) (217,047) (1,154,611) 1,930,532 176,676 294,461 2,401,669 1,247,058

2033 24 (937,564) (222,473) (1,160,037) 1,978,795 181,093 301,822 2,461,711 1,301,674

2034 25 (937,564) (228,035) (1,165,599) 2,028,265 185,621 309,368 2,523,253 1,357,654

2035 26 (937,564) (233,736) (1,171,300) 1,872,113 190,261 317,102 2,379,475 1,208,176

2036 27 (195,013) (59,895) (254,908) 247,058 48,754 81,257 377,070 122,162

(23,673,485) (4,473,865) (28,147,350) 39,282,975 3,641,726 6,069,543 48,994,244 20,846,894

(11,280,820) (1,970,987) (13,251,807) 17,416,650 1,604,383 2,673,972 21,695,006 8,443,199

CHAPELTOWN AND HAREHILLS

SOURCES OF FUNDING ANNUAL PROJECTED COSTS OF THE TWO JOINT SERVICE CENTRES

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\0\0\0\AI00012000\JointServiceCentresapp13mar0.xls 03/03/08     14:31
Page 113



Page 114

This page is intentionally left blank



 

Report of the Director of City Development  
 
Executive Board  
 
Date: 12 March 2008 
 
Subject: Deputation to Council – 16 January 2008 - regarding a request for the Council 
to buy the recreational and sports facilities on The Leeds Girls High School site. 
 
 

        
 
Eligible for Call In                                                 Not Eligible for Call In 
                                                                              (Details contained in the report) 
 
 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

 
This report follows the deputation to Council on 16 January 2008 by a group of residents from the 
Hyde Park area. The deputation argued that there was a shortage of playing fields and sports 
facilities in this part of inner Leeds and that, following the relocation of the Leeds Girl’s High School to 
the Alwoodley site in September 2008, the opportunity should be taken for the Council to acquire 
these facilities for the benefit of the local community. 
 
The issues raised by the deputation are not new. They were explored during discussions with the 
school and their advisers when the draft planning brief for the site was in preparation. The conclusion 
reached at that stage was that it was not financially viable for the Council to acquire the facilities. 
However, as the matter has been raised again at Full Council, it is considered that the prospect of the 
Council acquiring the playing fields and the sports facilities should be re-visited to determine whether 
a realistic and affordable way could found to bring any or all of the facilities into public ownership. 
 
To investigate such a possibility will take some time and it has not been possible to provide a full 
response for this meeting of the Executive Board. This is therefore a ‘holding’ response to allow 
sufficient time to thoroughly investigate the matters raised and to provide a full response at a future 
meeting of the Exec Board. 
 

Specific Implications For:  
 

Equality and Diversity 
  
Community Cohesion 
 
Narrowing the Gap 

Electoral Wards Affected:  

Headingley 
Hyde Park & Woodhouse 

Originator: Paul Gough  
 
Tel: 2478071  

X 

X 

X 

üüüü 
 

 

 Ward Members consulted 
  
  

 

Agenda Item 12

Page 115



1.0 PURPOSE OF THIS REPORT 
 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to highlight the issues raised in the deputation to the Council 
and to provide background information relating to the merger of Leeds Girls High School 
with Leeds Grammar School and factual information on the playing fields and sports 
facilities in question. It is an interim report and a full response to the issues raised in the 
deputation will presented to a future meeting of the Executive Board. 

2.0   BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 

2.1 In January 2004, the Governors of Leeds Girls High School (LGHS) and Leeds Grammar 
School (LGS) announced that the two schools were to merge to form the Grammar School 
at Leeds (GSL). The merger will result in the relocation of all pupils 7 years and above and 
staff at LGHS to the current LGS site at Alwoodley Gates, Leeds.  

 

2.2 As a consequence of the expansion of the Alwoodley Gates site, the current LGHS sites 
located on Victoria Rd./Headingley Lane will become surplus to requirements. The school 
will vacate the sites in July 2008; thereafter the land will be unoccupied, with the exception 
of Ford House which is being retained to provide accommodation for pre-school children, 
under 7 years of age. 

 

2.3 The school occupies four sites, comprising the main school bordered by Headingley Lane 
and Victoria Road; Ford House and its gardens/sports pitch on the northern side of Victoria 
Road; the swimming pool and gym and hockey field on the south side of Victoria Road; and 
the Elinor Lupton Centre on Headingley Lane/Richmond Road. With the exception of the 
Victoria Road site, all lie within the Headingley Conservation Area. The three sites 
(excluding the Elinor Lupton Centre) have protected playing pitches. 

 
2.4 Council planning officers have been involved in discussions about the future of the School’s 

Headingley site since 2006. The intention was to work towards agreeing a Planning Brief 
with the School, their advisors and the local community in order to guide the future re-use of 
the overall campus.  The aim of the Brief was to help bring about a comprehensive 
approach to the re-use and redevelopment of the whole school campus (excluding the 
Elinor Lupton Centre) on the basis for considering future planning applications. A key 
objective was to ensure that the site delivers a high quality scheme which respects its 
landscape setting and Conservation Area context and delivers lasting benefits to the local 
community. The brief was particularly intended to prevent the individual parts of the campus 
from being considered in isolation of each other and to balance potential community 
benefits with development options across the whole school site.  

 
2.5 However, the draft Planning Brief was withdrawn at the Council’s Executive Board on 22 

August 2007 and further discussions with the Girl’s School on the disposal and re-use of the 
Headingley site are yet to be resumed. 

 
2.6 The main reasons why the Planning Brief was withdrawn related to a proposal to allow 

development on part of the school playing fields, in particular the field to the rear of the 
sports hall off Victoria Road and, to a lesser extent, the tennis courts on the main campus. 

 
2.7 A plan is attached to this report which shows the different parts of the school campus and 

the playing fields which were the subject of the deputation to Council. 
 
 
3. PLANNING ISSUES 
 
3.1 All the playing fields and the sports hall/swimming pool are effectively in private ownership 

and have never, officially, been available for the public to use. It is well known that that there 
has been informal and unauthorised use of some of the playing field area at Victoria Road in 
particular. An ongoing objective is to bring at least some of the school facilities into public 
use and ownership as part of the school’s relocation plans.  

Page 116



 
The Sports Hall and Swimming pool 

 
3.2 This facility was built in the 1980’s and comprises of a large, multi-purpose sports hall, 

gymnasium, swimming pool and changing rooms. Following the announcement that the 
school was going to close, it was recognised that availability of the pool/gym presented an 
almost unique opportunity to provide such an important facility for the benefit of the local 
community. Officers are therefore investigating this possibility in discussions with the school 
and visited the premises on several occasions to examine its condition and potential.  

 
3.3 The prospect of this facility being passed to the Council at either no or minimal capital cost 

is appealing but careful consideration would need to be given to both any consequential 
additional capital costs and on-going revenue implications to support a new leisure facility in 
this location. 

 
3.4  An alternative to the City Council taking responsibility for this facility would be to try to 

identify a 3rd party to do so on the basis that there would have to be affordable and 
convenient access (i.e. opening times) to the range of activities available for the local 
community. A ‘Community Access Agreement’ could be drawn up to formalise such an 
arrangement.  
  

 Playing Fields 
 
3.5 The future of the playing fields was the most contentious issue when the draft brief was 

subject to public consultation in Spring 2007 and the need to protect greenspaces on the 
campus was highlighted in an earlier deputation to Council on 18 July 2007.  

 
3.6 The areas defined as Protected Playing Fields on the Leeds Unitary Development Plan 

(Policy N6) have been used by the school as follows: 
 

Main site: Two sets of tennis Courts (one set still in use and the other used for staff car 
parking), and an open grassed area used as informal recreation space by the School. 
 
Land south of Ford House: Used for summer athletics events, but only infrequently 
 
Land south of the Gym and Pool, off Victoria Road: Used as a practice pitch and occasional 
hockey pitch. 

      
3.7 In looking at the redevelopment potential of the school, the former Planning Brief (now 

withdrawn) proposed the following on each of the above sites: 
 

Main site: Removal of the tennis courts and allow the redevelopment of the site for family 
housing subject to the retention of a large central area of informal greenspace and the 
protection of important trees. 
 
Land south of Ford House: This is regarded as an important piece of open space and 
development proposals on this land were firmly resisted. In the draft Planning Brief, the Ford 
House playing field was proposed to be given by the school to the City Council, together 
with a capital sum to improve its quality and a further sum of money to maintain it thereafter, 
in order to create a new community park.  

 
Land south of the Gym and Pool, off Victoria Road: This site was proposed for residential 
development and was the subject of a large number of objections to the Brief from the local 
community. The proposal emerged from a careful consideration of the balance of 
development and community benefits over the whole school site. 

 
 
3.8 The proposals for the playing fields and sports facilities contained in the draft brief (since 

withdrawn) were contingent upon the school being able to demonstrate compliance with the 
guidance contained in Planning Policy Guidance Note 17 (PPG17) and satisfying Sport 

Page 117



England that, in the round, they would be providing replacement sports facilities of at least 
equal value. This assessment would include the additional facilities the school are providing 
at the Alwoodley site, together with the retained and improved (in terms of public access) 
greenspace and sports facilities in Headingley. 

 

3.9 However, the strength of feeling in the local community about these draft proposals, which 
led to the planning brief being withdrawn, together with the same issues subsequently being 
raised in the deputation to Council, necessitates a thorough re-consideration of the future of 
the playing fields and sports facilities at the Leeds Girls High School site.   

 

4.0 RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
4.1 Executive Board is recommended to note the interim response to the deputation to Council 

and request that a further report be brought back to Executive Board which examines the 
feasibility of bringing some or all of the playing pitches and sports facilities into public 
ownership.   

 

   

Page 118



Page 119



Page 120



THIS MAP (OR AN EXTRACT) IS AVAILABLEAT A LARGER SIZE
PRODUCED BY COMMUNICATIONS, GRAPHICS & GIS MAPPING, LEEDS CITY COUNCIL GIS 4098 Scale: 1/2600@ A4

Ford House Garden

Elinor Lupton Centre

Victoria Road Site

Main School Site

Pool / Sports Hall

P
a
g
e
 1

2
1



P
a
g
e
 1

2
2

T
h
is

 p
a

g
e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n

k



 

Report of the Director of City Development  
 
Executive Board  
 
Date: 12 March 2008 
 
Subject: Deputation to Council – 16 January 2008 regarding the future use of the 
Elinor Lupton Centre, Leeds Girl’s High School 
 
 

        
 
Eligible for Call In                                                 Not Eligible for Call In 
                                                                              (Details contained in the report) 
 
 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

 
This report follows the deputation to Council on 16 January 2008 by representatives of the 
Headingley Network. The deputation concerned fears in the local community about the future use of 
the Elinor Lupton Centre following the Leeds Girls High School’s re-location to the Alwoodley site in 
September 2008. In particular, the concern is that the building will be converted into a pub, thereby 
extending the anti-social behaviour and binge-drinking culture experienced in other parts of 
Headingley and Hyde Park into a quiet residential area. 
 
The report comments on the issues raised in the deputation and explains that, for planning and 
licensing reasons, such a proposal is considered to be inappropriate, contrary to planning policy and, 
therefore, most likely to be resisted in the event of a planning application being submitted. 
 

Specific Implications For:  
 

Equality and Diversity 
  
Community Cohesion 
 
Narrowing the Gap 

Electoral Wards Affected:  

Headingley 
Hyde Park & Woodhouse 

Originator: Paul Gough  
 
Tel: 2478071  

X 

X 

X 

üüüü 
 

 

 Ward Members consulted 
  
  

 

Agenda Item 13

Page 123



1.0 PURPOSE OF THIS REPORT 
 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to respond to the issues raised in the deputation to the Council 
and to outline the planning and related licensing issues which would be taken into account 
in assessing any proposals to convert the Elinor Lupton Centre into a public house. 

2.0   BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
2.1 The Elinor Lupton Centre (ELC), is a Grade II Listed Building which also lies within the 

Headingley Conservation Area. It forms part of the Leeds Girl’s High School Campus and is 
to become surplus to the School’s requirements following its relocation to the Alwoodley site 
in July 2008. 

 
2.2 There has been some speculation in the community that the ELC may be reused as a 

Public House, culminating in a deputation to Council in January 2008. This raises both 
planning and licensing issues. 

 

3.0 PLANNING ISSUES 
 
3.1 Council planning officers have been involved in discussions about the future of the School’s 

Headingley site since 2006. The intention was to work towards agreeing a Planning Brief* 
with the School, their advisors and the local community in order to guide the future re-use of 
the overall campus. The site contains valuable greenspace, playing fields, mature trees, 
listed buildings and other buildings which have a ‘positive’ effect on the character of the 
Headingley Conservation Area in which the School is located.  

 
3.2 However, with the Council’s agreement , the School proposed a separate disposal of the 

ELC in view of its freestanding location away from the main school campus, its particular 
architectural characteristics and a recognition that specialist marketing would be required to 
find an appropriate new use, a process which, as anticipated, is proving to be lengthy. For 
this reason the ELC was excluded from the draft Planning Brief.  

 
3.3  As soon as it became known that the ELC was surplus to school requirements planning 

officers consulted ward members and several representatives of the local community. Both 
ward members and local people expressed a strong view that the building should not 
become another drinking establishment, for reasons which are set out in the deputation to 
Council. The problems caused by the excessive numbers of drinking establishments were 
already well known and appreciated. The strong views of ward members and the local 
community have been passed on to both the School and their professional advisors on 
several occasions. Both parties understand the situation and the reasons why the 
community have such strongly held views. Working with their advisors, the School has been 
working hard to try to identify an occupier for the ELC which would be acceptable to the 
wider community.  

 

3.4  During discussions with the School, it has been made clear that a proposal to reuse the 
ELC as a Public House would not be supported by planning officers and that, should a 
planning application be submitted, the likelihood of it being recommended for approval 
would be remote. The ‘planning’ reasons for this view may be summarised as follows: 

 

• A ‘bar’ or ‘Public House’ is a town centre use and both national (Planning Policy 
Statement 6) and local policy (Leeds Unitary Development Plan) seek to resist ‘out of 
centre’ proposals such as this. 

 

 
* The Planning Brief was withdrawn at the Council’s Executive Board on 22 August 2007 and further 
discussions with the Girl’s School on the disposal and re-use of the Headingley site are yet to be resumed. 

 
 
 
 

Page 124



 
 
 

• The property lies very close to a well established residential area, well outside 
Headingley town centre and with no other commercial uses in the immediate vicinity. It 
is considered that there would be unacceptable effects on levels of amenity and the 
quality of life experienced by the local community due to the hours of operation and 
associated noise and disturbance. It would be extremely difficult for an applicant to 
demonstrate ‘no harm’ to the local community. 

 

• Traffic generation and car parking, including late night traffic movements, car doors 
slamming etc. 

 
3.5 It is of course recognised that the building is not easily converted for alternative uses unless 

an occupier can be found who would use it for educational purposes, in a similar way as the 
Girl’s High School currently use it.  However, such a prospect is unlikely to be realised and 
the Council will work with the School and the local community to explore suitable uses 
which would exclude a bar/public house. Any potential occupier will be responsible for 
submitting applications for planning permission and listed building consent. The Council 
would strongly encourage any such potential applicant to carry out public consultation prior 
to the actual submission of an application. 

 
 

4.0 LICENSING ISSUES 
 
4.1 As well as planning permission being required to change the use of this building into a bar, 

a premises licence for alcohol and entertainment would also be required from the council 
licensing authority under the Licensing Act 2003. 

 
4.2 As the ELC lies within a Cumulative Impact Policy area (Area 2 - covering the 

Headingley/Hyde Park corridor), where it is considered that there are sufficient bars, 
restaurants and takeaways, a potential bar operator would be made aware that it may be 
more difficult to secure a new premises licence in this location. The effect of the Headingley 
CIP is to create a rebuttable presumption that applications for new premises which are 
predominantly alcohol led will normally be refused, following relevant representations, 
unless the applicant can demonstrate in their operating schedule that there will be no 
negative cumulative impact on one or more of the licensing objectives. In this way, while the 
policy is not a blanket ban, and applicants are free to apply, it does place a positive 
requirement on the applicant to rebut the policy if relevant representations are received.  

 
4.3 Although planning permission is not formally required in order to apply for a Premises 

Licence, the Licensing Department would recommend that this is the right sequence and 
that permission is sought beforehand. In the past, licensing applications sought without prior 
planning permission have been told by Licensing Sub-Committee they are not permitted to 
trade until such permission is in place.   

 
4.4 It would therefore be a two-staged process (Planning and Licensing) and at each of these 

stages, anyone interested in converting the ELC into a bar/public house would be clearly 
advised that the likelihood of a successful application under each regulatory regimes would 
be remote. 

 
4.5 Importantly, any application for a license is subject to significant public scrutiny. First of all, 

there are several key agencies that would be consulted, including the Police, Fire Service, 
Environmental Health, Social Services and the Planning Department. In addition, a 
Licensing Bulletin is sent to all Councillors who may, in cases such as this, circulate it to 
their constituents for their comments. Any license application is also subject to a statutory 
newspaper advert. 

 
 
 

Page 125



 
5.0 CONCLUSIONS 
 
5.1 In the event of proposals coming forward to convert the Elinor Lupton Centre into a 

bar/public house, it is considered unlikely that they will achieve the necessary planning 
permission and premises license for the reasons set out in this report. 

6.0 RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
6.1 Executive Board is recommended to note the response to the deputation to Council.   
 

   

Page 126



Page 127



Page 128



Page 129



Page 130



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\1\5\5\AI00009551\CarParkingStrategyinTDCs26thFeb0.doc 

 
Report of the Director of City Development 
 
Executive Board  
 
Date: 12 March 2008 
 
Subject: CAR PARKING STRATEGY IN TOWN AND DISTRICT CENTRES 
 

     
 
Eligible for Call In                                                              Not Eligible for Call In 
                                                                           (Details contained in the report) 
 
 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
This report details the results of a study conducted to establish the basis for agreeing future 
priorities for investment in the development and delivery of parking strategies for the 28 town 
and district centres identified in the Unitary Development Plan (UDP). 

Details are provided about the ten centres which scored highest in the appraisal together 
with the assessment compiled for all the centres in the review. 

The report sets out proposals for taking the parking strategy development work to the next 
stage of targeting priorities for detailed strategy development and for consultation with Ward 
Members and local communities. 

 

Specific Implications For:  
 

Equality and Diversity 
  
Community Cohesion 
 
Narrowing the Gap 

Electoral Wards Affected:  

 
All  
 
 
 
 
 Ward Members Consulted 
 (referred to in report) 
 

Originator:    Andrew Hall 
 
Tel: 247 5296 

 

 

 

√  

 

Agenda Item 14

Page 131



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\1\5\5\AI00009551\CarParkingStrategyinTDCs26thFeb0.doc 

1.0 Purpose Of This Report 

1.1 This report summarises the findings from the town and district parking 
strategy overview studies previously approved by the Executive Board. 

 
2.0 Background Information 

2.1 The planning principles that influence car parking policy in Leeds’ town and 
district centres are set out in the Council’s adopted Unitary Development 
Plan and the West Yorkshire Local Transport Plan. 

2.2 Provision of car parking for long stay and short stay use is best planned as 
part of an overall integrated approach to transport which is set out in the 
Local Transport Plan.  Generally prime town centre space is allocated 
priority for the short stay spaces needed to benefit the economic vitality with 
the volume and location of long stay space being carefully managed in line 
with transport and planning policies. 

2.3 National, regional and local policy is supportive of promoting the vitality and 
viability of town centres.  Provision of long-stay car parking essentially to be 
used by car commuters is not supported, particularly as town centres 
generally have a relatively high level of public transport accessibility and 
large walk-in catchment.  Each town centre would, however, need to be 
considered separately as their situations vary considerably.  The character 
of towns and district centres varies widely between the inner suburban 
centres such as Headingley and Beeston and those out centre towns such 
as Morley and Wetherby. 

2.4 In developing and applying parking strategies, full account must be taken of 
compatibility with Local Transport Plan objectives, concerned with 
accessibility, congestion, safety, air quality and asset management. 

2.5 New development, especially in the larger towns, may provide opportunities 
to negotiate the provision of public car parking in private schemes. A firm 
strategy basis which is soundly rooted in policy will be required which can 
support such negotiations, and preferably retain such parking in Council 
control. Where such proposals are significant, a general strategy may need 
to be refined by in-depth local investigations to support the Council’s case. 

2.6 At present the 28 individual centres identified in the UDP do not have 
specific local parking strategies.  It is considered that a more integrated 
approach could provide a greater consistency when reviewing parking 
issues and considering developments in the future.  

2.7 A report to the Executive Board on the 20th September 2006 entitled Car 
Parking Strategy in Town and District Centres considered an approach to 
develop parking strategies for the UDP town and district centres in Leeds. 

2.8 Approval was given for work to be undertaken to establish appropriate 
parking assessment criteria and a framework for the development of parking 

Page 132



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\1\5\5\AI00009551\CarParkingStrategyinTDCs26thFeb0.doc 

strategies, together with an action list of town centres and an evaluation of 
costs. 

 

3.0 Main Issues 

3.1 Following the approval of the September 2006 report, consultants were 
commissioned in January 2007 to undertake the work which has comprised 
a review of the UDP town and district centres and the preparation of a 
strategy development and advisory framework. 

3.2 This report provides a summary of the study which was completed in 
September 2007 and makes recommendations for the progression of 
parking strategies in those centres which scored highly in the assessment. 

Town and district centres study 

3.3 The study has looked at all the 28 town and district centres identified in the 
UDP and summarises the main issues and problems associated with 
parking. 

3.4 A prioritisation matrix has been used to collate background information and 
in this each centre has been scored against a series of eleven criteria – 
covering the key factors for parking policy which are detailed in Appendix 1 - 
from which an overall weighted score is determined. The weighting gives 
greater priority to the most influential factors from a parking strategy 
viewpoint. This weighted score is used to rank each centre to inform the 
decision as to which centres should receive early priority for strategy 
development. 

3.5 The criteria were scored on the basis of site visits and the evaluation of  
factual data available to the study consultants together with input from 
Leeds City Council officers at an evaluation workshop.  The prioritisation 
process has resulted in a ranked list of all the 28 centres, with weighted 
scores ranging from 6 to 33.5. A number of centres achieved identical 
scores and were given equal ranking.  Full details of the scoring and ranking 
are provided in Appendix 2. 

3.6 Appendix 3 provides a more detailed analysis of the ten centres given the 
greatest scores.  Headingley is first, followed by Morley, Cross Gates and 
Harehills Corner which all achieved similar scores. The next five centres are 
very close together.  The sensitivity of the scoring process has been tested 
and this has showed the process to be robust, with the above four centres 
remaining consistently listed within the first five ranked sites. 

3.7 Following completion of the study the highest ranked sites have been 
reviewed to take on board the latest situation in terms of work already 
ongoing including where relevant investment is already planned through the 
town and district centres regeneration.  In relation to this, consideration has 
been given to which centres carry the strongest case for early intervention 

Page 133



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\1\5\5\AI00009551\CarParkingStrategyinTDCs26thFeb0.doc 

through a detailed and comprehensive assessment of their needs.  On this 
basis the centres of Headingley, Morley, Otley and Pudsey appear to carry 
the strongest case for early and comprehensive intervention. 

3.8 In terms of the remaining 6 centres within the highest ten sites, as Appendix 
3 indicates all these sites already have interventions or investigations of one 
kind or another underway.   It is therefore recommended that a more limited 
studies programme is the most appropriate approach at these locations, 
based on the preparation of parking capacity inventories supported by 
appropriate parking duration surveys to confirm usage levels and patterns of 
demand.  This information will be used to supplement and inform work 
already in progress and provide the basis for developing existing parking 
provision and management in the future. 

Parking strategy framework 

3.9 The Parking Strategy Framework has been developed to provide a 
consistent basis for the preparation of detailed local parking strategies once 
the priorities for action have been established.  It is based on the 
established Institution of Highways and Transportation (IHT) guidance on 
Parking Strategies and Management and provides detailed step by step 
guidance on the various issues to be considered when developing parking 
strategies. 

3.10 The framework is broken down into eleven stages (Appendix 4) covering 
everything from identifying the study area, through surveys, problem 
identification, interventions and public consultation.  It is capable of flexible 
application to meet the requirements of a range of centres in terms of scale 
and individual circumstances. 

3.11 The completion of a strategy will provide a set of detailed proposals to 
address the identified parking issues in the centre under consideration. 

Consultation 

3.12 The study work described in this report provides an initial overview of the 
main pressures and issues facing the main town and district centres as a 
basis for targeting further work.  As such no specific consultations have 
been carried out either with Ward Members or other stakeholders. 

3.13 Clearly parking provision and strategies are a key concern to local residents 
and businesses in the town and district centres.  As such all the next phases 
of parking strategy development and review will fully engage with Area 
Committees, Ward Members and local communities.  Detailed proposals for 
bespoke consultation will be prepared for each of the priority locations as 
the work programme is developed. 

3.14 As a first step, subject to the approval of this report, all Ward Members will 
be consulted on the outcomes of the study as detailed in the appendices to 
this report. 

Page 134



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\1\5\5\AI00009551\CarParkingStrategyinTDCs26thFeb0.doc 

 

4.0 Implications For Council Policy And Governance 

Compliance with Council Policies 
 
4.1 The development of proposals which support the more effective provision 

and management of car parking both on and off street are consistent with 
aims and objectives of the Local Transport Plan 2006-11 policies for 
managing the demand for travel. 

 
4.2 Improved parking management in town and district centres will also support 

better local environments and the objectives of the Environmental Policy and 
Regeneration Plan. 

 
4.3 This report has no implications under Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder 

Act 1998.  
 

5.0  Legal And Resource Implications 

5.1 This report does not have any specific legal implications. 

5.2 The consultant’s report has provided an indication of the likely costs for 
undertaking the development of comprehensive local parking strategies.  
For the largest centres these costs lie in the £30,000-£45,000 per study and 
will vary depending on the size and complexity of the location.  However, 
where work is already underway more local parking inventory and usage 
studies may be sufficient to allow the direction of further investment and the 
costs, which will again vary by location, are likely to lie within the range 
£4,000-£6,000 per centre. 

5.3 Budget provision for this work has been provided in 2007-08 totalling 
approximately £60,000. At present around £40,000 has been expended on 
the completion of the study described in this report. Further site specific 
expenditure will be subject to the agreement of this report and financial 
provision being prioritised within City Development to undertake an 
additional couple of studies per annum. There is currently no capital 
programme provision for work arising from the studies. 

5.4 In addition to the core funding, certain Area Committees have already 
funded specific pieces of work for their areas, for example Outer North West 
have funded a feasibility study for a park and ride car park at Netherfield 
Road in Guiseley.  Works being funded and undertaken as part of the town 
and district centres programme are also contributing to the overall aims of 
the parking study. 

5.5 Management of the future programme will be undertaken from within the 
staffing resources of the Transport Policy Section. 

 

Page 135



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\1\5\5\AI00009551\CarParkingStrategyinTDCs26thFeb0.doc 

6.0  Conclusions 

6.1 A process has been developed that will form an objective basis for the 
prioritisation and progression of parking strategies for the 28 town and 
district centres identified in the UDP. This report has identified the ten 
highest ranked locations and detailed where relevant planning work is 
already in process. 

6.2 Headingley, Morley, Otley and Pudsey are considered to present the 
strongest case for early and comprehensive strategy development, whilst six 
other centres have been identified as already having various programmes of 
work underway where more limited studies will be of benefit informing the 
future management of Council controlled on and off-street parking. 

6.3 Further progress of the parking strategy programme detailed in this report 
will be contingent on revenue funding allocations being made for 2008-09 
and future years to support the initial surveys and strategy development 
fees.  Implementation of the strategies will be subject to future capital 
programme funding which will be the subject of future specific reports. 

7.0 Recommendations 

7.1 Members of Executive Board are requested to: 
 

i. note the content of this report; 
ii. give approval to the continued development of the parking strategy 

programme focusing on the centres described in sections 3.7 and 3.8 
of this report (Appendix 3); and  

iii. give approval to further consultation with Ward Members on the 
outcomes of the study and future priorities including those not covered 
within recommendation (ii) above. 

 
 

Page 136



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\1\5\5\AI00009551\CarParkingStrategyinTDCs26thFeb0.doc 

 

APPENDIX 1 – TOWN AND DISTRICT CENTRES ASSESSMENT CRITERIA 

Each centre was scored against a series of eleven criteria from which an overall weighted 
score was determined. This weighted score was used to rank each centre. 

The criteria were scored on the basis of site visits, factual data and input from Leeds City 
Council officers at an evaluation workshop. 

The eleven criteria were: 

• size of retail centre – derived from floorspace surveys; 

• regeneration – scored according to regeneration programmes (Town and 
District Centres regeneration programme, Neighbourhood renewal areas, 
EASEL); 

• current parking management – derived from the number of parking tickets 
issued; 

• environmental sensitivity – scored with respect to noise issues, AQMAs and 
conservation area status; 

• proximity of attractors – scored with respect to the number of schools, 
colleges and hospitals nearby; 

• exceptional attractors – based on the presence of nearby stadiums, 
racecourses, universities and train stations (due to park and ride issues); 

• parking behaviour – based on site visits and workshop inputs including 
occurrences of inappropriate parking (both on and off street); 

• supply and demand - based on site visits and workshop inputs; 

• integration – derived from bus frequencies; 

• safety – based on parking related road traffic accidents; 

• public concerns – scored during the workshop with respect to 
correspondence levels. 

 

Page 137



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\1\5\5\AI00009551\CarParkingStrategyinTDCs26thFeb0.doc 

APPENDIX 2 :  TOWN AND DISTRICT CENTRES PRIORITY ASSESSMENT  

Priority 

Ranking

Size of 

Retail 

Centres

Regenerat

ion 

Current 

Parking 

Managem

ent 

Environm

ental 

Sensitivit

y

Proximity 

of 

Attractors

Exception

al 

Attractors 

Parking 

Behaviour

Supply & 

Demand 

Integratio

n

Safety 

Implicatio

ns

Public 

Concerns

Total 

Score

Total 

Weighted 

Score

Weighting 2 1.5 1 0.5 1 1.5 1 2 1 1 2 14.5
Headingley 1 2 1 3 2 2 2 3 3 1 3 3 23 33.5

Morley 2 3 1 3 2 3 0 1 2 1 3 3 22 29.5

Cross Gates 3 3 1 3 1 1 1 2 2 1 2 3 19 28.5

Harehills Corner 4 2 3 3 1 2 0 3 3 1 2 1 21 28

Armley 5 3 2 1 0 3 0 3 2 1 1 2 18 26

Guiseley (Otley Road) 5 3 0 1 1 3 1 2 2 1 1 3 17 26

Wetherby 5 2 1 3 2 3 1 1 2 2 1 2 19 26

Otley 8 3 1 3 2 2 0 1 2 2 3 1 20 25.5

Pudsey 8 2 1 3 2 3 0 3 2 1 1 2 20 25.5

Dewsbury Road 10 2 0 1 1 3 1 3 3 1 2 1 17 24

Hunslet 11 2 0 2 0 3 0 2 2 1 3 1 16 21

Yeadon 12 3 1 1 2 2 0 1 1 2 2 1 16 20.5

Garforth 13 2 1 1 0 1 1 1 2 1 1 2 12 20

Rothwell 14 2 1 1 2 3 0 1 1 2 2 1 16 19.5

Chapel Allerton 15 2 0 0 2 3 0 2 2 1 2 1 15 19

Horsforth (Town Street) 15 1 0 2 2 3 0 3 2 1 1 1 16 19

Bramley 17 1 2 0 0 3 0 1 2 1 0 1 11 16

Halton 17 1 1 0 1 1 0 3 2 1 1 1 12 16

Kirkstall 17 3 2 0 1 3 1 0 0 1 1 0 11 16

Farsley 20 1 1 1 2 2 0 0 1 1 1 2 12 15.5

Boston Spa 21 1 0 0 2 3 0 1 2 2 0 1 12 15

Kippax 22 2 1 0 0 2 0 1 1 2 1 0 10 13.5

Holt Park 23 1 0 1 0 3 0 0 2 1 0 1 9 13

Seacroft 24 2 3 0 0 3 0 0 0 1 0 0 9 12.5

Oakwood 25 2 1 0 2 2 0 1 0 1 0 0 9 10.5

Meanwood 26 2 0 0 2 2 0 1 0 1 1 0 9 10

Moor Allerton 27 2 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 5 6.5

Middleton (Ring Road) 28 1 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 4 6

P
a
g
e
 1

3
8



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\1\5\5\AI00009551\CarParkingStrategyinTDCs26thFeb0.doc 

APPENDIX 3 – TOWN AND DISTRICT CENTRES, HIGHEST RANKED SITES FROM ASSESSMENT PROCESS 

Centre Priority 
Ranking 

Total 
Weighted 
Score 

Council 
controlled off 
street public 
parking (spaces) 

Comments 

Headingley 1 33.5 0 The majority of problems are associated with on street parking, and although there are two off street parks neither is 
LCC controlled.  In view of the high pressure on parking in this location achieving a successful solution will be 
complex.   However, the  high ranking suggests that a study should be considered a priority.  

Morley 2 29.5 847 LCC has substantial control over public parking here, both on and off street. Given the high level of LCC parking 
control the potential for successful interventions is very good, and therefore taking the ranking in account would 
suggest that this location should be considered for a study at an early stage in the process. 

Cross 
Gates 

3 28.5 0 The bulk of public parking is associated with the Arndale Centre. On street TRO’s are currently being reviewed. In the 
light of this, and the limited LCC control of off street parking in Cross Gates, it may be more appropriate to consider 
any further work on parking as part of a later round of studies once the present work has been concluded. 

Harehills 
Corner 

4 28 0 The majority of problems are associated with on street parking – there are no off street public car parks. The potential 
for successful interventions is limited.  However, the primary issues relate to serving the main retail frontages on 
Roundhay Road.  A transportation study is currently in progress looking at public transport, traffic and road safety 
issues and therefore, by considering parking within the remit of this work, it may be more appropriate to consider any 
further work on parking as part of a later round of studies once the present work has been completed. 

Armley 5 26 0 The majority of problems are associated with on street parking, and although there are two off street parks neither is 
LCC controlled. The potential for successful interventions is fairly limited, furthermore investigations have previously 
been instigated and are already ongoing to look at the potential parking measures (which also takes account of the 
proposals for the replacement sports centre and parking).  On this basis it may be more appropriate to consider any 
further work on parking as part of a later round of studies once the present work has been completed. 

Guiseley 
(Otley 
Road) 

5 26 31 The bulk of public parking is associated with Morrisons supermarket. Work is ongoing to provide additional station 
parking on Netherfield Road which, together with proposals for Traffic Regulation, should address issues with 
commuter parking at the station. In the light of this, and the limited LCC control of off street parking, further work for 
Guiseley may appropriately form part of a later round of studies. 

Wetherby 5 26 293 LCC has control over a significant proportion of off street public parking, with the Horsefair Centre providing the 
remainder. The potential for successful interventions is fairly good and significant studies have been undertaken in 
recent years.  Therefore taking account of work that is ongoing it may not be necessary to consider a study within the 
initial rounds of work. 

Otley 8 25.5 349 LCC has substantial control over public parking here, both on and off street. Given this high level of LCC parking 
control the potential for successful interventions is good. Given that the town is large and has not received recent 
attention in terms of parking review it may be appropriate to plan a study at an early stage in the process. 

Pudsey 8 25.5 299 LCC has substantial control over public parking here, both on and off street. Given the high level of LCC parking 
control the potential for successful interventions is good, and consequently it may be appropriate to plan a study at an 
early stage in the process. 

Dewsbury 
Road 

10 24 0 The majority of problems are associated with on street parking – there are no off street public car parks. Given the 
relatively low ranking and the limited potential for successful interventions, it may be more appropriate to consider 
Dewsbury Road as part of a later round of studies.  

P
a
g
e
 1

3
9



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\1\5\5\AI00009551\CarParkingStrategyinTDCs26thFeb0.doc 

APPENDIX 4 – PARKING STRATEGY FRAMEWORK, KEY STAGES 

The Parking Strategy Framework is based on the Institution of Highways and Transportation guidance on Parking Strategies and Management and 
provides detailed step by step guidance on the various issues to be considered when developing parking strategies. 

The framework is broken down into eleven stages:. 

1 – identifying and agreeing the strategy area; 

2 – community involvement; 

3 – data collection; 

4 – presentation of results; 

5 – issue and problem identification; 

6 – objectives and targets; 

7 – devise potential schemes and policies; 

8 – assessing impacts; 

9 – preparation of a financial business plan; 

10 – intervention and implementation programmes; 

11 – monitoring regime. 

P
a
g
e
 1

4
0



 

Not for Publication:  
 
 
Report of the Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods  
To Executive Board  
 
Date: 12 March, 2008 
 
Subject: RHB Funded Clearance sites and the Affordable Housing Strategic Partnership 
 

        
 
Eligible for Call In                                                 Not Eligible for Call In 
                                                                              (Details contained in the report) 
 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
This report sets out details of the sites which are currently being acquired and are to be 
cleared of pre 1919 obsolete housing by the utilisation of Regional Housing Board (RHB) 
funding allocations.  It considers 2 options for the redevelopment of sites once cleared and 
recommends that the sites are incorporated into the pool of Council owned land set aside for 
the provision of affordable housing via the Affordable Housing Strategic Partnership so that a 
Strategic approach to redevelopment can be achieved.  
 
1.0 Purpose Of This Report 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to:- 

•••• Consider the options for the redevelopment of the RHB funded clearance sites 

•••• Seek approval to incorporate the cleared sites into the pool of Council owned 
land, currently 77 acres, which has been set aside for the development of 
affordable housing via the Affordable Housing Strategic Partnership. 

 

2.0 Background Information 

2.1 Over the period 2005-2008 a total of £16m from the Single Regional Housing Pot 
(SRHP) and Housing Market Renewal Fund (HMRF) has been made available to the 
city to carry out a number of acquisition and demolition schemes. In line with the 

Specific Implications For:  
 

Equality and Diversity 
  
Community Cohesion 
 
Narrowing the Gap  
 

Electoral Wards Affected:  

Beeston and Holbeck 
Burmantofts and Richmond Hill 
City and Hunslet 
Gipton and Harehills 

Originator: Sue Morse 
 
Tel: 3951398 

 

 

 

Yes  

Not for Publication: Report exempt from Access to Information Procedure Rules by reason of 

10.4(3)-Appendix 5 only 

Agenda Item 15

Page 141



objectives of the Vision for Leeds 2004-2020 and the Leeds Housing Strategy these 
schemes aim to reduce the number of obsolete pre 1919 houses. 

 
2.2 The funding available in 2005/8 has enabled the commencement of acquisitions for 

demolition on the following sites. 
 

• The Beverley’s - Acquisition and Clearance of 132 properties, 

• Holbeck Phase 1, 2 & 3 – Acquisition and Clearance of 103 properties 

• Cross Green Phase 1 & 2 - Acquisition and Clearance of 73 properties, 

• Harehills phase1 & 2- Acquisition and Clearance of 59 properties (including Scarth 
Ave), 

 
2.3 Demolition of the Harehills site (Phase 2) is programmed to commence mid February 

2008 and demolition contractors are already on site at Cross Green (Phase 1). The 
aim is to commence phased demolition on all other sites as blocks of properties are 
acquired and vacated to facilitate a phased demolition programme during 2008.  
Plans of each site are available at appendices 1-4. A summary of the details of each 
site may be found at appendix 5.  
 

2.4 For the 2008/11 programme at this stage it is anticipated that approximately £21m will 
be made available to Leeds to fund further phases of acquisition and demolition and 
private sector home improvements including group repair, Decency work, Energy 
Efficiency etc.  Confirmation of the level of funding is expected imminently.  

  
3 Affordable Housing 

3.1 At its meeting of the 7th March 2007 the Councils Executive Board approved a 
proposal to establish the Affordable Housing Strategic Partnership which would 
use 77 acres of Council land to make a significant contribution to the increase 
in supply of affordable housing in the City.   

 
3.2 A Partnership Board has been established to oversee the work of the Affordable 

Housing Strategic Partnership.  Represented on the Board are senior politicians, key 
Council officers and influential external partners such as English Partnerships.  This 
means that any site which takes this route to redevelopment will be subject to a 
holistic view of its potential to increase the development of affordable housing 
alongside the delivery of the Councils strategic aims.     

 
3.3 The RHB funded acquisition and demolition schemes are located within the 

Regeneration Priority areas of Beeston Hill and Holbeck, Harehills and Cross Green, 
areas which experience some of the most severe levels of deprivation in the country. 
In addition these areas contain some of the lowest value properties within the City.  
Although demolition of these properties is in line with The Vision for Leeds 2004 to 
2020 by  reducing the amount of housing that is unpopular or unfit a side effect is the 
loss of some of the most affordable housing (i.e. the lowest value).  The reprovision of 
affordable housing on these sites would create potential opportunities for displaced 
residents and neighbouring residents who may be displaced by future phases of 
acquisition and demolition. 
 

4 Options for Redevelopment of RHB funded sites 
 
4.1 It is important that any development process runs in parallel with the proposed 

acquisition and demolition programmes.  Having a clear plan for reprovision of 
housing on these sites brings a number of benefits to the clearance programme:- 

 
Page 142



• Enables all stakeholders to understand the case for clearance hence the 
likelihood of their support is increased. 

•     Gives confidence to local residents that the Councils regeneration objectives 
will be met. 

•     Gives confidence to potential new residents who are considering moving into 
the area. 

• Gives private investors confidence in the area thus accelerating the 
regeneration of the area. 

• Gives confidence to Local Ward Members that decent affordable housing will 
be provided within their ward. 

• Counteracts the negative regeneration effects of an increase in the number of 
empty properties in an area awaiting demolition. 

• Forms an essential element of the requirements for a Compulsory Purchase 
Order to be issued, in the event of a failure to secure the agreement of an 
owner(s) to sell voluntarily to the Council.  

 
4.2 It is therefore considered essential that a strategic approach is developed as a basis 

for the future of these sites following their clearance. 
 

4.3 Two options have been considered for this strategic approach 
 
1. The sale of all the land sites with the capital receipts being made available for the 

Council’s capital programme. In this option affordable housing would be provided 
through the planning processes. 

2. The transfer of the sites to the Affordable Housing Strategic Partnership for the 
development of affordable housing schemes. 

 
4.4 A valuation exercise has been undertaken in order to establish the potential open 

market value of the sites in question once cleared for redevelopment.  The overall site 
value of all four sites, including the Stanley Road depot site, is £4.7m.  Details of the 
individual site values are available at appendix 5.  The Stanley Road Depot site which 
is adjacent to the Harehills site has been vacant for a number of years and has been 
declared as surplus by City Services. 

 
4.5 It is estimated that 280 new affordable housing units may be provided via option 2 as 

against only 40 through Section 106 planning agreements available via option 1.  All 
of those 40 units potentially provided as a result of Section 106 agreements would be 
available for purchase at sub market levels but no social rented provision would be 
made. 

 
4.6 An analysis of the strengths and weaknesses of both options has been carried out 

and is attached at appendix 6.  The main conclusions which may be drawn from this 
analysis is that although option 2 would mean that a potential capital receipt of £4.7m 
would be relinquished, this option would give the Council greater control over 

•  the number of affordable housing units provided 

•  the levels of public and private sector investment potentially attracted 

• the way in which these sites can contribute to wider regeneration initiatives, e.g. 
EASEL, PFI etc. 

• the potential of these sites to be explored for the redevelopment of new Council 
housing. 

 
 
 
 

Page 143



5 Implications For Council Policy And Governance 

5.1 The Leeds Housing Strategy has identified the regeneration and renewal of areas    
with frail housing market conditions, poor quality or obsolete housing and issues with 
multiple deprivation as a key priority.  This has also been identified as a key priority 
both in the Regional Housing Strategy and the West Yorkshire Housing Strategy.  

5.2 At a national level there is a requirement to increase the levels of affordable housing 
as set out in the ‘Homes for All’ strategy that was issued in 2003 and is further 
supported by the implications of the 2004 Housing Act. Recently, the government has 
identified the need for additional affordable housing as one of its top priorities.   

 
5.3 At a city wide level the amalgamation of these two approaches i.e. the reduction of 

poor quality obsolete housing types and replacement with additional affordable 
housing, produces benefits which support the Local Strategic Partnership in respect 
of delivering the ‘Vision For Leeds’ through the implementation of the Housing 
Strategy and the Regeneration Plan, as well as contributing to the City Growth 
Strategy. 

 
5.4 The public interest in maintaining the exemption in relation to appendix 5 attached to 

this report outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information by reason of the 
fact that commercially sensitive information concerning the individual site values.  
Copies of the exempt appendix will circulated to members of the Executive Board 
once members of the public have been excluded and will be collected in at the 
conclusion of the meeting.  
 

6       Consultation 

6.1 Local Ward Members of the affected wards have been consulted on the proposals 
contained within this report and are generally in favour of Option 2. 

7 Legal And Resource Implications 

7.1 As outlined in paragraph 4.4 above the sites have been valued at £4.7m in total. All 
decanting and demolition costs will be met from the RHB allocation. 

 
7.2  Any proposal to redevelop these sites through the Housing Corporation's, National 

Affordable Housing Programme would not attract the usual £5,000 per plot subsidy 
from the Housing Corporation as is the case with other sites which form part of the 77 
acres of Council land already allocated to the Affordable Housing Strategic 
Partnership.  As grant funding via the RHB has already been utilised to acquire the 
land, should the Housing Corporation make a further payment to the Council for the 
site this would represent a double subsidy, and is not allowed under current Housing 
Corporation regulations. 

 
7.3 A contractual obligation exists with Leeds Federated Housing Association in relation 

to the Beverleys site.  In exchange for the contribution of 22 properties at nil value to 
the scheme they will receive  

• A proportion of the net sale value of the site proportionate to their original stake 
holding of properties on the site (16.67%)  

• First refusal to purchase any affordable housing units provided on the site. 

• The right to consultation on the preparation of a development brief for the site.  

Page 144



• The right to consultation on the appointment of the preferred bidder for the site. 

This obligation is not anticipated to create any conflict of interest or detriment to the 
proposal to dedicate this site to the Affordable Housing Strategic Partnership. 
 

7.4 The ‘Little Comptons’ site is adjacent to a large area of Council owned land in 
Harehills, the site of the former Stanley Road Depot, which has been vacant for 
several years and which also abuts the recently demolished Scarth Ave. City Services 
have declared the Stanley Road Depot site surplus to requirements and the site 
currently sits with Directorate of City Development.  To incorporate these 3 sites in 
order to ensure that complementary development may take place would give the 
opportunity to maximise the regeneration impact and create a significant development 
site in an area with a paucity of development opportunities.  In order for the former 
depot site to be included within a comprehensive development scheme, it is 
recommended that its future contribution to the capital receipts programme be 
substituted by a land swap of equivalent value from the affordable housing land bank 
to enable an equivalent sale within 2009/10. 

 
7.5    The anticipated Capital receipt from these sites has not been included within the 

Councils Capital Receipts Programme.  If the recommendation contained within this 
report is approved there would, therefore, be no specific impact upon the Capital 
Receipts programme other than that the default position is generally that all Capital 
Receipts will be assigned to that programme unless Executive Board approval is 
given to some alternative use.   
 

8 Conclusions 

8.1 Since 2005 Leeds has received funding of, in total, £16m from the RHB to clear 
obsolete pre 1919 houses.  A strategic approach is needed for the redevelopment of 
these sites. Two options have been considered as set out in paragraph 4.4 above.  
Whilst option 1 would potentially deliver the Council a capital receipt of £4.7m it would 
not maximize affordable housing provision in areas with significant need. Only around 
40 affordable housing units would be provided via option 1 and up to 280 via option 2. 
An opportunity to explore the potential of these sites for the development of new 
Council housing would be lost if the land is sold rather than transferred to the 
Affordable Housing Strategic Partnership.  

 
8.2 It is considered that option 2 would make the most significant contribution to the 

Councils strategic priorities whilst also giving sufficient flexibility to maximise the 
benefits arising from each sites characteristics and local regeneration opportunities.  

 

9 Recommendations 

9.1 Executive Board is recommended to agree to transfer the RHB funded clearance sites 
as outlined in paragraph 2.2 and in appendix 5, to the Affordable Housing Strategic 
Partnership for the purpose of developing affordable housing schemes in these 
locations, subject to land swap arrangements for the Stanley Road site from the 
affordable housing land bank to enable a contribution of equivalent value to the capital 
programme within 2009/10. 

 
Appendices 

1. Beverleys site plan 
2. Holbeck site plan 

Page 145



3. Cross Green site plan 
4. Harehills site plan 
5. Details of Sites for Redevelopment  
6. Options for the use of cleared RHB funded sites 

Page 146



PRODUCED BY THE STRATEGY TEAM, NEIGHBOURHOODS AND HOUSING DEPT, LEEDS CITY COUNCIL

This map is based upon the Ordnance Survey's Digital Data with the permission of the Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office
© Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings
© Crown Copyright. All rights reserved. Leeds City Council O.S. Licence No. 100019567 (2006)

Beverleys Target Area

REF : 2006 : 038 : 003 ±
Legend

Target area

New Commercial
Properties

P
a
g
e
 1

4
7



P
a
g
e
 1

4
8

T
h
is

 p
a

g
e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n

k



PRODUCED BY THE REGENERATION SERVICE

This map is based upon the Ordnance Survey's Digital Data with the permission of the Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office
© Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings

© Crown Copyright. All rights reserved. Leeds City Council O.S. Licence No. 100019567 (2007)

Holbeck
Phase 1, 2 & 3

REF : 2006 : 038 : 004b ±

Legend

Holbeck Area - Phase 1

Holbeck Area - Phase 2

Holbeck Area - Phase 3

Page 149



Page 150

This page is intentionally left blank



PRODUCED BY THE STRATEGY TEAM, NEIGHBOURHOODS AND HOUSING DEPT, LEEDS CITY COUNCIL

This map is based upon the Ordnance Survey's Digital Data with the permission of the Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office
© Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings
© Crown Copyright. All rights reserved. Leeds City Council O.S. Licence No. 100019567 (2006)

Cross Green Target Area - Phase 2

REF : 2006 : 038 : 001a ±
Legend

Target area - phase 2

Target area - phase 1

Cross Green Housing Area

P
a
g
e
 1

5
1



P
a
g
e
 1

5
2

T
h
is

 p
a

g
e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n

k



PRODUCED BY THE STRATEGY TEAM, NEIGHBOURHOODS AND HOUSING DEPT, LEEDS CITY COUNCIL

This map is based upon the Ordnance Survey's Digital Data with the permission of the Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office
© Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings
© Crown Copyright. All rights reserved. Leeds City Council O.S. Licence No. 100019567 (2006)

Stanley Road Area

REF : 2006 : 038 : 002

Vacant Site
Formally Stanley

Road Depot Target
Area

Recently
Demolished
Ashley Rd.

±
P

a
g
e
 1

5
3



P
a
g
e
 1

5
4

T
h
is

 p
a

g
e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n

k



 

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 6
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 O

p
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
 u
s
e
 o
f 
 c
le
a
re
d
 R

H
B
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 s
it
e
s
  

 O
p
ti
o
n
 1
  

 
S
tr
e
n
g
th
s
  

W
e
a
k
n
e
s
s
e
s
 

W
ill
 n
o
t 
b
e
 a
b
le
 t
o
 m

a
x
im

is
e
 t
h
e
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 
a
ff
o
rd
a
b
le
 

h
o
u
s
in
g
. 
(D

e
v
e
lo
p
e
rs
 m

a
y
 t
ry
 t
o
 n
e
g
o
ti
a
te
 o
u
t 
o
f 
p
ro
v
id
in
g
 

a
ff
o
rd
a
b
le
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 o
n
 t
h
e
 s
it
e
s
) 

 

P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
to
 p
ro
d
u
c
e
 a
 C
a
p
it
a
l 
re
c
e
ip
t 

H
M
R
 g
ra
n
t 
c
o
n
d
it
io
n
s
 s
p
e
c
if
y
 t
h
a
t 
a
n
y
 c
a
p
it
a
l 
re
c
e
ip
t 
m
a
y
 

o
n
ly
 b
e
 r
e
ta
in
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
if
 i
t 
is
 r
e
c
y
c
le
d
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 

d
is
tr
ic
t 
fo
r 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 i
n
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 o
f 
re
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
. 

 T
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
w
o
u
ld
 h
a
v
e
 m

in
im

a
l 
c
o
n
tr
o
l/
in
fl
u
e
n
c
e
 o
v
e
r 
th
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 
a
ff
o
rd
a
b
le
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 o
n
 t
h
e
s
e
 

s
it
e
s
 

 D
o
e
s
 n
o
t 
m
a
x
im

iz
e
 t
h
e
 i
n
je
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
p
u
b
lic
 a
n
d
 p
ri
v
a
te
 

s
e
c
to
r 
fu
n
d
in
g
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
a
ff
o
rd
a
b
le
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 (
i.
e
. 
H
o
u
s
in
g
 

C
o
rp
o
ra
ti
o
n
 G

ra
n
t 
fu
n
d
in
g
 a
n
d
 R
S
L
 r
e
s
e
rv
e
s
 a
n
d
 r
e
c
y
c
le
d
 

g
ra
n
ts
).
 

 S
a
le
 o
f 
s
it
e
s
 o
n
 a
n
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
b
a
s
is
 w
o
u
ld
 p
ro
v
id
e
 a
n
 a
d
 

h
o
c
 r
a
th
e
r 
th
a
n
 s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 f
o
r 
re
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 

s
it
e
s
 l
e
a
d
in
g
 t
o
 d
e
la
y
s
 a
n
d
 u
n
c
e
rt
a
in
ty
. 

 

P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
to
 c
o
n
tr
ib
u
te
 t
o
 w

id
e
r 
re
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 i
n
it
ia
ti
v
e
s
 

(e
.g
. 
E
A
S
E
L
, 
P
F
I 
e
tc
) 

P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
d
if
fi
c
u
lt
y
 i
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
in
g
 p
ri
v
a
te
 s
e
c
to
r 
in
te
re
s
t 
in
 

s
o
m
e
 s
it
e
s
. 

 S
a
le
 o
f 
s
it
e
s
 o
n
 a
 c
o
lle
c
ti
v
e
 b
a
s
is
 w
o
u
ld
 c
re
a
te
 d
e
la
y
s
 f
o
r 

s
o
m
e
 s
it
e
s
 a
s
 t
h
e
y
 a
re
 a
t 
d
if
fe
re
n
t 
s
ta
g
e
s
 o
f 
a
c
q
u
is
it
io
n
 

a
n
d
 c
le
a
ra
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 w
o
u
ld
 f
a
il 
to
 f
it
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
 

ti
m
e
s
c
a
le
s
 f
o
r 
fu
n
d
in
g
. 

 

  T
h
e
 s
a
le
 o
f 
a
ll 
th
e
 R
H
B
 

fu
n
d
e
d
 c
le
a
re
d
 l
a
n
d
 s
it
e
s
 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 c
a
p
it
a
l 
re
c
e
ip
ts
 

b
e
in
g
 m

a
d
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
o
r 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’
s
 c
a
p
it
a
l 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 w
it
h
 a
ff
o
rd
a
b
le
 

h
o
u
s
in
g
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 

th
e
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
. 

P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
to
 
p
a
c
k
a
g
e
 
a
ll 

s
it
e
s
 
to
g
e
th
e
r 
to
 
p
ro
v
id
e
 
a
 

s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 
a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 
to
 
e
n
s
u
re
 
th
a
t 
 
th
e
 
le
s
s
 
a
tt
ra
c
ti
v
e
 

s
it
e
s
 a
re
 a
ls
o
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 a
tt
ra
c
ti
v
e
 s
it
e
s
 a
s
 a
n
 

in
c
e
n
ti
v
e
. 

S
a
le
 o
f 
s
it
e
s
 o
n
 a
 c
o
lle
c
ti
v
e
 b
a
s
is
 c
o
u
ld
 d
ri
v
e
 d
o
w
n
 t
h
e
 

v
a
lu
e
 o
f 
th
e
 p
a
c
k
a
g
e
 d
u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 i
n
c
lu
s
io
n
 o
f 
le
s
s
 a
tt
ra
c
ti
v
e
 

s
it
e
s
. 

   

Page 155



O
p
ti
o
n
 2
 

 
S
tr
e
n
g
th
s
  

W
e
a
k
n
e
s
s
e
s
 

G
re
a
te
r 
le
v
e
l 
o
f 
a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
a
ff
o
rd
a
b
le
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 u
n
it
s
 

p
ro
v
id
e
d
 t
h
a
n
 t
h
e
 l
e
v
e
ls
 d
e
liv
e
re
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 

p
ro
c
e
s
s
. 

 W
o
u
ld
 c
o
n
tr
ib
u
te
 t
o
w
a
rd
s
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 2
0
0
6
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 

M
a
rk
e
t 
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
re
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
 

 W
o
u
ld
 c
o
n
tr
ib
u
te
 t
o
w
a
rd
s
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 R

e
g
io
n
a
l 
S
p
a
ti
a
l 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
p
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 
a
ff
o
rd
a
b
le
 

h
o
u
s
in
g
 u
n
it
s
. 

 C
o
u
n
c
ils
 s
tr
o
n
g
 i
n
fl
u
e
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
tr
o
l 
o
f 
fu
tu
re
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
ts
 c
o
u
ld
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 t
h
e
 l
e
v
e
ls
 o
f 
P
u
b
lic
 a
n
d
 

P
ri
v
a
te
 S
e
c
to
r 
in
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t.
 

 W
o
u
ld
 c
o
n
tr
ib
u
te
 t
o
w
a
rd
s
 c
re
a
ti
n
g
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 r
o
u
te
s
 f
o
r 

n
e
w
 a
n
d
 e
m
e
rg
in
g
 h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
s
. 

 P
ro
v
id
e
s
 p
h
a
s
e
 2
 s
it
e
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
 A
ff
o
rd
a
b
le
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
’s
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t.
 

 K
u
d
o
s
 a
n
d
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
fu
n
d
in
g
 l
in
k
e
d
 t
o
 c
e
n
tr
a
l 

g
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
ts
 d
ri
v
e
 t
o
w
a
rd
 L
o
c
a
l 
H
o
u
s
in
g
 C
o
m
p
a
n
ie
s
 

 M
o
re
 c
o
n
tr
o
l 
o
f 
th
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
to
 c
o
n
tr
ib
u
te
 t
o
 w
id
e
r 

re
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 i
n
it
ia
ti
v
e
s
 (
e
.g
 E
A
S
E
L
, 
P
F
I 
e
tc
) 

 

  T
h
e
 t
ra
n
s
fe
r 
o
f 
th
e
 s
it
e
s
 t
o
 

th
e
 A
ff
o
rd
a
b
le
 H

o
u
s
in
g
 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 f
o
r 

th
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 

a
ff
o
rd
a
b
le
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 

s
c
h
e
m
e
s
  

 

P
ro
v
id
e
 a
n
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
 t
o
 e
x
p
lo
re
 t
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
o
f 
th
e
s
e
 

s
it
e
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
n
e
w
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
h
o
u
s
in
g
  

 

P
o
te
n
ti
a
lly
 n
o
 c
a
p
it
a
l 
re
c
e
ip
t 

A
n
y
 b
id
 t
o
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 C
o
rp
o
ra
ti
o
n
 u
n
lik
e
ly
 t
o
 a
tt
ra
c
t 
fu
n
d
in
g
 

fo
r 
la
n
d
 (
u
s
u
a
lly
 £
5
0
0
0
 p
e
r 
p
lo
t)
 b
u
ild
 c
o
s
ts
 o
n
ly
. 

 

Page 156



 

 
Report of the Report of  Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods 
 
Executive Board     12th March 2008 
 
Subject:                      Development and Hardware costs for the Housing ICT Project   
                                    Capital Scheme Number   14293/000/000 
 
 

        
 
Eligible for Call In                                                 Not Eligible for Call In 
                                                                              (Details contained in the report) 
 
 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
Executive Board are requested to inject £1.15m and authorise scheme expenditure of 
£1.15m as outlined within this report for the Housing IT Project Phase 2. The funding will be 
through unsupported borrowing and provision has been made within the Environment & 
Neighbourhoods Housing Rents Account base budgets; the majority of this cost will fall in 
2008/09. 
 
 

1.0 Purpose of this Report 
 
1.1 This report seeks injection and authorisation to spend the  £1.15m from Executive 

Board necessary to complete this project, £0.2m in 2007/08 and £0.95m in 2008/09.  
 
2.0 Background Information 
 
2.1 The Environment and Neighbourhoods Directorate is supported by many computer 

systems. This project is seeking to replace some older systems, some are so old 
that they can no longer be supported or accessed via the current network and also to 
reduce the number of separate systems. Some older systems were created in pre 
ALMO days within the Housing Department and require upgrading to meet current 
requirements including legislative changes. 

 
2.2 The proposed systems will improve Environment and Neighbourhoods Directorate in 

conjunction with its ALMOs in the delivery of the extensive programme of work to 

Specific Implications For:  
 

Equality and Diversity 
  
Community Cohesion 
 
Narrowing the Gap 

Electoral Wards Affected:  

 

Originator:Moya McGlynn 
 
Tel: 24 76630  

 

 

 

�  

 Ward Members consulted 
 (referred to in report) 
  

ALL 

Agenda Item 16

Page 157



deliver capital investment action and planned maintenance action across the City. 
Capital investment action amounts to over £100m a year currently and planned 
maintenance action amounts to over £15m a year. 

 
2.3 Managing a program of this magnitude requires close working with a wide range of 

partners and contractors. For example there are 56 contracting partners currently 
undertaking works on council houses across the 60,000 Council homes in the city.      

 
3.0 Main Issues  
 
3.1 The systems proposed are: 

- a comprehensive Asset Management system 
- a contract management system 
- a linked performance reporting system 
 

4.0 Scheme Description 
 

4.1 Asset Management system – £250k 
 

To deliver the second phase of development of a comprehensive Asset 
Management system. Phase 2 covers the necessary linkages between the contract 
management system, the servicing and inspection system and the existing 
arcHouse housing management system. Phase 2 also ensures that all housing 
assets are included into the system including dwellings, estate shops and garages. 
 

4.1 Contract Management  systems - £500k 
 
4.2.1 Two contract management systems are proposed to be implemented, based on the 

same underlying computer software. 
 
4.2.3 One system will allow for the detailed management of all housing contracts, 

including all capital contracts and all revenue contracts (planned maintenance). This 
system replaces the current in-house software that was provided as an interim 
solution in 2003 when the ALMOs were created. 

 
4.2.4 The second system will allow for the detailed management of all servicing and 

inspection works on housing assets, including gas servicing, electrical testing and 
servicing, lift servicing, CCTV and controlled entry servicing.This system is new and 
will provide for the first time a comprehensive approach to all servicing and 
inspection works, and compliance with legal responsibilities replacing a number of 
separate and obsolete software systems. 

 
4.2.5 The two systems will be linked back to the Asset Management system, and will hold 

data on all works completed and all service and inspection dates. 
 
4.2.6 From a customer Tenant/Resident perspective, with information more easily 

available to everyone there are less ‘investigation chains’ required when handling 
complaints and/or enquiries from Tenants.  Tenants/Residents are better informed, 
‘closer’ to the programme in terms of actual start and finish dates to work in their 
homes.  This improved provision of information contributes to increased customer 
satisfaction and meeting benchmark targets set out within the current performance 
management framework.  
 
 
 

Page 158



4.2 Performance Management system - £400k. 
 
4.3.1 The Directorate lacks a comprehensive performance management system, relying 

on a range of separate reporting tools and approaches. 
4.3.2 This system will not only allow for performance reporting on the new Asset 

Management and contract management systems, but will allow for reporting from 
the existing Housing Management system and provide a single tool for overall 
performance reporting. 

 
4.3.3 The solution will provide a flexible, user friendly reporting tool which accommodates 

flexible reporting and clear executive summaries. This will reduce the time taken by 
the users to obtain  accurate and timely information and make better informed 
business decisions. 

 
5.0 Consultations            

 
Consultations have been carried out with all Leeds Arms Length Management 
Organisations (ALMOs) and Belle Isle Tenant Management Organisation (BITMO). 

 
6.0 Programme     

 
Expected project completion times are: 
  Asset Management phase 2 - April 2008 
  Contract Management -      July 2008 
  Service and Inspection -     August 2008 
  Performance Reporting -         September 2008 
 

7.0 Implications for Council Policy and Governance  
 
7.1 How does this change deliver the Vision for Leeds? 
 
7.1.1 The new system will lead to efficiency improvements, improved financial 

management and improved performance reporting. 
 
7.1.2 The systems will allow for detailed monitoring of housing actions and condition  

across the City, including analysis at Neighbourhood level. Improving the detailed 
analysis of the outcomes of investment actionsin seeking to narrow the gap between 
communities. 

 
7.2 How does this change meet the Best Value Performance Plan? 
 
7.2.1  These systems will better contribute to our KPI (BV184a+b) and thus contribute to 

the CPA rating for the authority. 
 

Since these systems are generic rather than bespoke, they will require no  
customisation for Leeds. This will result in a reduction in the development, support 
and the maintenance costs. 
 
By ensuring that the systems are integrated and that they are utilised by all of the 
ALMOs, this will reduce the cost of duplicating work and disparate systems. 
 
These systems will advance greater collaborative working between the ALMOs, 
Property Management Services, Capital contractors, Strategic Landlord. 

 

Page 159



7.3 How does this change deliver e-Government ? 
 
7.3.1 The systems are compliant with the Council’s approach to e-government and mobile 

working. 
 
8.0 Council Constitution 
 

This report is not exempt from the Call-In of Key and / or Major Decisions 
procedure. 

 
9.0 Community Safety 
 

The proposals contained in the report do not have implications under Section 17 of 
the Crime and Disorder Act 1998. 

10.0 Capital Funding and Cashflow 
 
Previous total Authority TOTAL TO MARCH

to Spend on this scheme 2008 2007/08 2008/09 2009/10 2001/11 2011 on

£000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's

FURN & EQPT (5) 0.0

DESIGN FEES (6) 0.0

OTHER COSTS (7) 0.0

TOTALS 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Authority to Spend TOTAL TO MARCH

required for this Approval 2008 2007/08 2008/09 2009/10 2001/11 2011 on

£000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's

FURN & EQPT (5) 150.0 0.0 150.0

DESIGN FEES (6) 350.0 100.0 250.0

OTHER COSTS (7) 650.0 100.0 550.0

TOTALS 1150.0 0.0 200.0 950.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Total overall Funding TOTAL TO MARCH

(As per latest Capital 2008 2007/08 2008/09 2009/10 2001/11 2011 on

Programme) £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's

Unsupported Borrowing (HRA) 1150.0 200.0 950.0

Total Funding 1150.0 0.0 200.0 950.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

FORECAST

FORECAST

FORECAST

 
            

Revenue Effects  
                
The following table illustrates the alterations which will be necessary to the directorate’s 
revenue budget:       
                                                                                               
REVENUE EFFECTS 2007/08 2008/09 and

SUBSEQUENT 

YEARS

£000's £000'S

EMPLOYEES

PREMISES COSTS

SUPPLIES & SERVICES 200.0

ICT DEVELOPMENT RECHARGE 46.0 1274.0  
 

The interest and repayment costs of the £1.15m HRA unsupported capital expenditure will 
be recharged to the HRA through the ICT Development central recharge and have been 
incorporated into the Directorate’s HRA budget.  
 

Page 160



11.0  Risk Assessments 
 
11.1 Anticipated Risk to the business if change is made 
 
11.1.1 Lack of commitment to ALMO resources to implement the system. 
 
11.1.2 The chosen systems may not deliver all of the signed off  requirements – this would 

cause disappointment and fail to realise some benefits. 
 
11.1.3 The ALMOs may have created additional computer systems to compensate for the 

lack of functionality with existing systems. These may be in the form of access 
databases, spreadsheets etc; and may be undocumented or poorly communicated 
as possible requirements for Phase 2.  

 
11.1.4 Information is not disseminated within the ALMOs which may result in a resistance 

to change. 
 
11.2 Anticipated Risk to the business if change is NOT made 
 
11.2.1 Poor measurement of decency, less accurate Capital spend forecasting. 
 
11.2.2 Inability to increase the capacity and usability of the existing system known as  

Manifold. 
11.2.3 Existing systems are not auditable because there is no audit trail. 
 
11.2.4 No system integration, stand alone systems will continue to exist, multiple 

unsynchronized data sources, double entry of data, poor management decisions 
because of inaccurate data and out of date reports. 

 
11.2.5 Previous Audit Commission recommendations for LCC ALMOs  will not have been 

fulfilled. 
 
12.0  Conclusions 
 

If Phase 2 is not implemented, Environment and Neighbourhoods, and its ALMOs, 
will not realise the following benefits: 

 
12.1 Increased efficiency and cost savings: by eliminating double entry inputting, 

delivered by integrated systems which will improve accuracy and tracking of real 
time processes, reduce reconciliation across several products/systems by using a 
single source of data.  

 
12.2 Increased efficiency and improved resource management:  by implementing 

mobile working using PDA technology with in built validation. 
 
12.3 More accurate Decency Reporting and improved Management decisions: - 

BVPI 184A and BVPI 184B will be more accurately reported because more accurate 
data will be recorded e.g. using PDAs and completion by property rather than by 
scheme and collaborative tool allowing all partners to see the most upto date data 
and reports. 

 
12.4  Supplier Support for Changes: for changes in DCLG guidelines, ability to use 

business rules in the software to support changes to the business structure and 
customer demands. 

   
Page 161



13.0 Recommendations 
 
13.1  Executive Board is requested to :- 
 
13.2 Inject unsupported borrowing of £1.15m into the Environment and Neighbourhoods 

HRA capital Programme.  
 
13.3 Authorise expenditure of £1.15m on this scheme. 

Page 162



APPENDIX 1 NOT FOR PUBLICATION 
Exempt/Confidential under Rule 10.4 (3) Financial and Business Affairs 

Report of: The Chief Executive of Education Leeds 

To:   Executive Board  

Date:  12 March 2008 

Subject: FOUNTAIN PRIMARY SCHOOL –  RATIONALISATION ONTO ONE SITE

Executive Summary 

1. Purpose 

This report seeks the approval of the Executive Board to access 100% of the capital receipt 
arising from the sale of Fountain Primary School Annex (formerly Cross Hall Infant School) in 
order to invest in the scheme to rationalize the accommodation at Fountain Primary School 
onto one site. This report also seeks approval to proceed with Phase Two of the works (to 
extend the former Junior School building) and to incur the necessary capital expenditure. 

The Appendix1 is confidential because publication could prejudice the City Council’s 
commercial interests as it includes financial information relating to land and property.  In these 
circumstances it is considered that the public interest in not disclosing this commercial 
information outweighs  the interests of disclosure. 

2. Main Issues and Options 

Fountain Primary School opened in September 2005 following the closure of Cross Hall Junior 
and Infant schools and Elmfield Infant School.  The School is currently located on the former 
Cross Hall Junior and Infant sites.  The long term plan to consolidate accommodation into one 
building was part of the formal public consultation on amalgamation proposals that Education 
Leeds undertook on behalf of the Council between September and October 2004. 

It is proposed that the scheme to rationalize the accommodation onto one site will be 
completed in three phases, funded from the capital receipt arising from the sale of Fountain 
Primary School Annex. Phase One, completed in Summer 2007, included a package of internal 
alteration and refurbishment works to staff accommodation. Phase Three will consist of the 
provision of a foundation unit. 

Phase Two of the works, the subject of this report, will allow the Annex to be released for sale 
by providing alternative accommodation through a number of extensions to the main Fountain 
Primary School building, to include five classrooms, an extension to the existing hall and a new 
entrance and reception area. It is proposed that these works are initially funded from the 
Education Capital Programme in advance of the capital receipt being realized. This is in line 
with the existing capital receipts policy where the first call on the future capital receipt will be 
the reimbursement of agreed costs incurred in reproviding new facilities. 

3. Recommendations 

Members of the Executive Board are requested to: 

a) Approve the access of 100% of the capital receipt arising from the sale of Fountain Primary 
School Annex (formerly Cross Hall Infant School) to be invested in Fountain Primary; 

b) Approve the design proposals in respect of Phase Two of the scheme to rationalize the 

Agenda Item: 

Originator: T Palmer  

Tel: 24 75342 

Agenda Item 17

Page 163



school onto one site by providing extensions to the former Junior building; 

c) Authorise expenditure of £1,844,300 from capital scheme 14095 EXT; and 

d) Approve the reimbursement of the incurred scheme expenditure from the realisation of a 
future capital receipt from the sale of the former Cross Hall Infant School site, to be injected 
into the Education Capital Programme for reinvestment in the Education estate. 

Page 164



Report of: The Chief Executive of Education Leeds 

To:   Executive Board  

Date:  12 March 2008 

Subject: Design & Cost Report

Scheme Title  FOUNTAIN PRIMARY SCHOOL – RATIONALISATION ONTO 
ONE SITE 

                  Capital Scheme Number       14095 EXT 

        
Eligible for Call In                                                 Not Eligible for Call In 
                                                                              (Details contained in the report)

1.00 Purpose of this Report 

1.01 The purpose of this report is to: 

a) Seek approval for the access of 100% of the capital receipt arising from the 
sale of Fountain Primary School Annex (formerly Cross Hall Infant School) 
to be invested in Fountain Primary; 

b) Seek approval for the design proposals in respect of Phase Two of the 
scheme to rationalize the school onto one site by providing extensions to 
the former Junior building; 

c) Authorise expenditure of £1,844,300 from capital scheme 14095 EXT; and 

d) Approve the reimbursement of the incurred expenditure against this 
scheme from the realisation of a future capital receipt from the sale of the 
former Cross Hall Infant School site, to be injected into the Education 
Capital Programme for reinvestment in the Education estate. 

Specific Implications For:  

Equality and Diversity 

Community Cohesion 

Narrowing the Gap 

Electoral Wards Affected:  

Morley South 

Agenda Item: 

Originator: T Palmer  

Tel: 24 75342 

Page 165



2.00 Background Information 

2.01 Fountain Primary School opened in September 2005 as a result of the review of 
pupil provision in the Morley Central Planning Area and by the amalgamation of 
the former Cross Hall Junior School, Cross Hall Infant School and Elmfield 
Infant School.  This resulted in the closure of the Elmfield Infant School building 
and the housing of the new split site primary school in the former Cross Hall 
Junior and Infant buildings. 

2.02 A recent Ofsted review (July 2007) has recognized the considerable progress 
made by the school during the previous two terms: “However the difficulties 
of a split site continue to be the biggest barrier to ensuring that the school 
functions and ‘feels like’ one school”.

2.03 In order to facilitate the consolidation of all school accommodation onto one 
site, a scheme of works has been developed, to comprise three phases. Phase 
One of the works (Capital Scheme number 14003) was completed in Summer 
2007 and comprised a package of internal alteration and refurbishment works to 
create a larger staff room together with the refurbishment of staff toilet facilities 
and alterations to office space in the main building. This was the subject of a 
report approved by the Deputy Director (Commissioning and Partnerships) in 
July 2007. Phase Three will consist of provision of a separate foundation unit, 
including a 39 place nursery and two reception classrooms, and will be the 
subject of a future report.

2.04 The purpose of this report is to seek approval to Phase Two of the works which 
will allow for the amalgamation of the school onto one site. These works will 
consist of a number of extensions to the main Fountain Primary School Building 
(the former Cross Hall Junior School building) to provide a larger school hall, 
additional classroom accommodation and a new entrance and reception area. 
This would allow for the sale of the Fountain Primary School Annex (the former 
Cross Hall Infant School).

2.05 It is proposed that the capital receipt from the sale of the Annex be accessed to 
fund all phases of these works. However, as this will not be realized until after 
the works have been completed, Education Leeds Capital Projects Board has 
approved temporarily funding these works from the Education Capital 
Programme. When the capital receipt is realized, this will be injected into the 
Education capital programme for reinvestment in the Education estate. Should a 
surplus of funds arise as a result of the investment requirements of Fountain 
Primary costing less than the value of the capital receipt, this will be retained by 
the City Council in accordance with the Council’s current capital receipts policy. 

3.00 Design Proposals / Scheme Description 

3.01 Phase Two of the works at Fountain Primary consists of a number of extensions 
to the main building to provide the necessary accommodation to house all the 
children on the one site.

3.02 The scheme will consist of four separate extensions to the main building to 
allow the continued zoning of key stages within the school. To allow for the 
continued use of the school with the minimum disruption and prevent the need 
to decant students to temporary accommodation while the works are being 

Page 166



completed, each of the four extensions will be treated as a separate sub –
scheme, or zone, and completed consecutively.  

 Zone 1
4 key stage 2 classrooms each having storage, cloakroom and toilets, and 
a dedicated external entrance. 

 Zone 2
1 key stage 1 classroom having storage, cloakroom and toilets, and a 
dedicated external entrance. 

 Zone 3
An extension to the main hall to accommodate the increased number of 
pupils as a result of the amalgamation of the three schools.

 Zone 4
A new main entrance, reception and waiting area. Office accommodation 
will be provided to enable the reception area to be permanently staffed by 
a receptionist. The Main Hall, reception, kitchen and toilets are being 
designed to allow the area to be zoned off for out of school activities. New 
ramping and handrails will be provided to ensure that the school is fully 
accessible in accordance with current DDA regulations. 

3.03 This accommodation will all be of traditional construction with a steel frame and 
brick/block walls under a shallow pitch roof. The design of the building and 
materials used will be similar to those in the current building to ensure a 
seamless join between new and old accommodation. 

3.04 The City Council's Strategic Design Alliance has been appointed to carry out all 
pre and post tender design and supervision works and it is proposed to tender 
the scheme on a design and build basis. 

4.00 Consultations 

4.01 As part of the statutory consultation process undertaken relating to the 
reorganisation of primary provision in Morley Central, local ward members, 
parents, staff and governors were asked to comment on the proposal to close 
Morley Elmfield Infant School, Cross Hall Infant School and Cross Hall Junior 
School. The proposals indicated that a new primary school would be 
established, initially operating from both existing Cross Hall sites, however a 
permanent building solution to consolidate the new primary school on a single 
site would be developed as soon as funding became available through the 
Capital Programme. These proposals were fully documented in a meeting of the 
South Area Committee on 13 September 2004, and Executive Boards of 17 
November 2004 and 11 February 2005. 

4.02 As funding has now become available, detailed scheme proposals have been 
the subject of consultations with Education Leeds officers, the school and the 
governing body. The scheme proposals have been approved by the Education 
Leeds Capital Projects Board.

5.00 Implications for Council Policy and Governance 

These works will contribute to the following themes outlined in the Vision for Leeds 
2004-2020.

Cultural Life: 
To enhance and increase cultural opportunities for everyone. 

Page 167



To develop talent. 
Enterprise and the Economy
To contribute to the development of a future healthy skilled workforce. 

Environment City
Provide a better quality environment for our children. 

Harmonious Communities 
Contribute to tackling social, economic and environmental discrimination and 
inequality.  To make sure that children and young people have a healthy start to 
life.

Health and Wellbeing
Contributing to the protection of people’s health and support people to stay 
healthy.

Learning:
Contribute to the development of equal educational achievement between 
different ethnic and social groups. 
Improving numeracy, literacy and levels of achievement by young people 
throughout the city. 
Make sure that strong and effective schools are at the heart of communities. 
Promote lifelong learning to encourage economic success, achieve personal 
satisfaction and promote unity in communities. 

Thriving Places
Actively involve the community. 
Improve public services in all neighbourhoods 
Regenerate and restore confidence in every part of the city. 

6.00 Legal and Resource Implications 

6.01 Programme 

6.02 The strategic programme for the proposed scheme is as follows: 

Tenders out:  25 July 2008 
Tenders in  25 August 2008 
Start on Site  29 September 2008 
Practical Completion 28 September 2009 

6.03       Scheme Design Estimate 

6.03 Estimated costs for this scheme have been determined by qualified quantity 
surveyors based on an approved costing system, using the first quarter of 2008 
as the base date for the cost estimate 

6.04 The estimated construction cost of Phase Two of the project is £1,630,000 
which equates to approximately £1442 per m2 on average. Design fees and 
associated planning and building regulation costs are estimated at £214,300. 
This report seeks approval to expend these amounts. 

6.05 Capital Funding and Cash Flow 

Page 168



P revious to tal Authority TO TAL TO  M AR

to  S pend on  th is schem e 2007 2007/08 2008/09 2009/10 2010/11

£000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's

LA N D  (1) 0.0

C O N S TR U C TIO N  (3) 60.5 60.5

FU R N  &  E Q P T (5) 0.0

D E S IG N  FE E S  (6) 10.0 10.0

O TH E R  C O S TS  (7) 0.0

TO TA LS 70.5 0.0 70.5 0.0 0.0 0.0

Authority to  S pend TO TAL TO  M AR

requ ired  for th is Approval 2007 2007/08 2008/09 2009/10 2010/11

£000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's

LA N D  (1) 0.0

C O N S TR U C TIO N  (3) 1630.0 662.0 927.0 41.0

FU R N  &  E Q P T (5) 0.0

D E S IG N  FE E S  (6) 214.3 50.0 66.2 92.7 5.4

O TH E R  C O S TS  (7) 0.0

TO TA LS 1844.3 0.0 50.0 728.2 1019.7 46.4

Total overall Fund ing TO TAL TO  M AR

(As per latest C apital 2007 2007/08 2008/09 2009/10 2010/11

P rogram m e) £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's

M odern isation A ll S chools 1914.8 120.5 728.2 1019.7 46.4

S C E  (R ) (in  advance of C ap R ec)

Tota l Funding 1914.8 0.0 120.5 728.2 1019.7 46.4

B alance / Shortfa ll = 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

FO R E C AS T

FO R E C AS T

FO R E C AS T

Parent Scheme Number : 14095 
Title : Fountain Primary – Rationalisation onto one Site 

6.06 In the long term this scheme will be funded from the capital receipt arising from 
the sale of Fountain Primary School Annex (the former Cross Hall Infant School 
building). In advance of the capital receipt being realized, it will be funded 
temporarily from Modernisation All Schools 2004/05 SCE R - Scheme 1001. 

7.00 Revenue Effects

7.01 Any additional revenue costs arising from the proposed scheme will be 
managed within the school budget share. 

Page 169



8.00 Risk Assessments 

8.01 Operational risks will be addressed by effective use of CDM regulations, close 
supervision with the contractors and continual liaison with the school. 

9.00 Recommendations 

9.01 The Executive Board is requested to: 

a) Approve the access of 100% of the capital receipt arising from the sale of 
Fountain Primary School Annex (formerly Cross Hall Infant School) to be 
invested in Fountain Primary; 

b) Approve the design proposals in respect of Phase Two of the scheme to 
rationalize the school onto one site by providing an extension to the former 
Junior building; 

c) Authorise expenditure of £1,844,300 from capital scheme 14095 EXT; and 

d) Approve the reimbursement of the incurred expenditure against this 
scheme from the realisation of a future capital receipt from the sale of the 
former Cross Hall Infant School site, to be injected into the Education 
Capital Programme for reinvestment in the Education estate. 

Page 170



Page 171

Exempt / Confidential Under Access to 
Information Procedure Rules 10.4 (3)

Document is Restricted



Page 172

This page is intentionally left blank



 

Report of the Director of Children’s Services 
 
Executive Board  
 
Date:   12th March 2008 
 
Subject:     Prescribed Alteration  and change of lower Age Range of Hollybush  
 Primary School 
 

        
 
Eligible for Call In                                                 Not Eligible for Call In 
                                                                              (Details contained in the report) 
 
 
 
Executive Summary 
1.    The Early Years Service delivers children’s centres on the site of 15 primary schools.  Eight of 

those schools have already altered the lower age limit by statutory notice as primary schools for 
children aged 4 to 11 years with an attached children’s centre for children aged 0 to 4.  An 
additional primary school is now seeking to transfer full management of the children’s centre and 
service provision for pre fives to the Early Years Service. The school concerned will now provide 
education for children aged 4 to 11 years and the attached children’s centre will provide fully 
integrated and inclusive early education services for children aged 3 to 4.  

 
2.    Schools choosing to transfer the management of early education to the children’s centre need to 

formally seek an alteration to the lower age limit to a primary school for children aged 4 to 11.  
The Secretary of State requires the publication of a Statutory Notice. 

 
3.   This report seeks approval to publish a Statutory Notice for a prescribed alteration and change to  

the lower age range in Hollybush Primary School and to note the establishment of a school 
based children’s centre. 
 

1 Purpose Of This Report 
 
1.1 The Early Years Service and Education Leeds seek the approval of Executive Board to publish 

a statutory notice to formally alter the lower age limit for which education services are provided 
in Hollybush Primary School in order to facilitate the delivery of children’s centre and extended 
school services on these sites. 

 
 
 

Specific Implications For:  
 

Equality and Diversity 
  
Community Cohesion 
 
Narrowing the Gap 

Electoral Wards Affected:  

 

Originator: Sally Threlfall 
 
Tel: 74334 

 

 

 

üüüü 
 

 

 Ward Members consulted 
 (referred to in report) 
  

 

Agenda Item 18

Page 173



2 Background Information 
 
2.1 The Early Years Service has managed the early education provision as an integral part of a 

children’s centre on eight primary school sites since 2000.  These eight schools have altered   
the lower age limit of the school from 3 to 11 years to 4 to 11 years.  A fully integrated 
children’s centre on the school site, or adjacent to it, provides early education services for 
children aged 0 to 4.  The nursery classes in these schools have been integrated into the 
children’s centre and represent no loss of service on the school site.  The children’s centres 
can offer a wider range of more flexible services throughout the year, including family support, 
health and social care.  They are a key element in the schools extended service provision. 
Governance arrangements are mutually beneficial and the schools and children’s centres 
concerned are considered models of best practice. 

 
2.2 The Governing Body of Hollybush Primary School is now seeking to transfer the management 

of early education to the Early Years Service as part of the phase 1 children’s centre 
programme.  The Early Years service will deliver fully integrated and inclusive services for 
children aged 3 to 4 years of age on behalf of Hollybush Primary School. Provision for children 
for children aged 0 to 3 will made in partnership with a voluntary sector provider in the adjacent 
Neighbourhood Nursery, Copperbeech.  

 
2.3 The Governing Body of Hollybush Primary School is requesting an alteration  to the lower  age 

limit of pupils they provide services for.  Currently the school delivers services for children aged 
3 to11.  This will change to 4 to 11 years of age with a children’s centre for children aged 0 to 4. 

 
 
3 Main issues 
 
3.1 The Secretary of State in the School Organisation (Prescibed Alterations to Maintained 

Schools) (England) Regulations  Act 2007 sets out the arrangements for making prescribed 
alterations to lower age limits in schools.  Executive Board approval is required to issue a 
statutory notice, consider all issues raised in the period of notice and determine whether to 
confirm the request for alteration of the lower age limit made jointly by Education Leeds and the 
Early Years Service on behalf of the primary school. 

 
 
4 Implications For Council Policy And Governance 
 
4.1 When the lower age limit of a school is altered to children aged 4 to 11 years the Governing 

Body is no longer responsible for the delivery of early education to children aged 3 and 4.  The 
responsibility is passed to the children’s centre which must undertake to meet regulations laid 
down by the DCSF and OfSTED on issues of curriculum and staffing.  The Early Years Service 
will meet all regulations regarding the provision of early education for children aged 3 and 4.  

 
4.2 There is no change to the nature or quality of the service provided. The children’s centres 

employ qualified teachers, nursery nurses and ancillary staff.  The staff – child ratio in 
children’s centres is set higher than for schools.  The children’s centre can offer wider and 
more flexible services that support schools with their extended services aspirations.  Whilst 
responsibility has transferred the headteacher and Governing Body retain an influence on the 
management of the children’s centre. The school and the children’s centre are jointly inspected 
by OfSTED. 

 
4.3 The location of children’s centres and the management and governance of centres on school 

sites is the subject of full and lengthy consultation.  Full implications are considered and 
appropriate arrangements put in place for day to day site management, governance and mutual 
support and partnership.  Schools and children’s centre have trial periods for arrangements 
before any statutory changes are sought or community facilities powers invoked.  Hollybush 
Children’s Centre has been successfully managed under partnership arrangements for a year 
and a half prior to the decision made by the school Governing Body to seek an alteration to the 
lower age limit.  An Advisory Board, linked directly to the School Governing Body will secure 

Page 174



continuity of policy and practice across the children’s centre and primary school, particularly 
with regard to transition to the reception class. 

 
 
5 Legal And Resource Implications 
 
5.1 The Education and Inspections Act 2006 and the School Organisation (Prescribed Alterations 

to Maintained Schools) Regulations 2007 establishes the legal basis for alteration to  the lower 
age limit by a year or more in a school.  Guidance is also  issued by the Secretary of State 
relating to chidren’s centre governance and delivery of services by children’s centres . 

 
5.2 The establishment of a children’s centre places no pressure on a school budget and in most 

cases relieves pressures on staffing and other budgets in schools where there are surplus 
nursery class places.  Where centres are managed fully by the Early Years Service on behalf of 
the school the pupil funding for children aged 3 and 4 transfers to the children’s centre with all 
of the subsequent staffing and resource costs of providing the education service.  The staff 
employed by the school transfer to the Early Years Service on their current terms and 
conditions  The children’s centre will have a service level agreement with the school, 
negotiated annually, to cover all soft facilities management and ensure the centre presents no 
pressure to the school budget. 

 
 
6 Conclusions 
 
6.1 An alteration  to the lower age limit of Hollybush Primary School from a 3 to 11 primary school 

to a school providing education for children aged 4 to 11 is the chosen option of the Governing 
Body of the school and children’s centre and is the option recommended by Education Leeds 
and the Early Years Service. 

 
 
7 Recommendations 
 
7.1 Executive Board is asked to approve the publication of statutory notices to alter the lower age 

limit for Hollybush Primary School from 3 to 11 years of age to 4 to 11 years of age and note 
the provision on site by Early Years  of a children’s centre for children aged 0 to 4. 

 

Page 175



Page 176

This page is intentionally left blank



1

REPORT OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OF EDUCATION LEEDS 

EXECUTIVE BOARD: 12 March 2008

SUBJECT: Annual Consultation on Admission arrangements for 2009

Executive Summary 

1. Executive Summary 

1.1  Introduction

1.2

1.3

The 1998 School Standards and Framework Act, section 84, and the Admissions 
Code requires the Local Authority to consult neighbouring Local Authorities and all 
maintained schools in Leeds on admission arrangements each year. This includes 
consultation on proposed admission numbers, the admission policy as well as the 
arrangements.

A consultation document was sent out on 9 November 2007 with a closing date of 31 
January 2008 to all schools in Leeds, all neighbouring Local Authorities, the Church of 
England and Catholic Diocesan Boards. 

2. Background Information 

2.1

2.2

2.3

The consultation included the co-ordinated admission scheme which lays down the 
process and timetable for information sharing with schools who are their own 
admission authority as well as the other local Authorities.  Other than amendments to 
the timetable there were no other significant changes to the co-ordinated scheme. 

The proposals for change to the community admissions policy include changing the 
sibling link criterion when the older child would be in the sixth form, giving priority to 
children in an infant school for a place in the linked junior school, asking parents to 
confirm acceptance of an offered place and asking academies and foundation schools 
to adopt the ‘nearest’ criteria within their admissions policy. 

Changes to admission numbers consulted on were: 
Barwick in Elmet CE Primary 25 to 30 
Swillington Primary   40 to 30 
Haigh Road Infants    60 to 45 
Guiseley Infant   80 to 90 
Mill Field Primary   45 to 30 
Farnley Park High    150 to 210 
Roundhay High    240 to 250 

Agenda Item:

Originator: Viv Buckland 

Telephone: 247 4956

Agenda Item 19

Page 177



2

2.4 There were 31 responses received from school governing bodies. There were no 
responses from neighbouring Local Authorities or Diocesan Boards. The Admission 
Forum discussed the consultation responses at their meeting in February 2007. They 
accepted that the proposals above should be supported.  

3 Recommendations

3.1

3.2

Executive Board is asked to approve the following proposals for implementation in 
the 2009 admission round: 

 Primary and secondary school co-ordinated admission arrangements. 

 Changing the sibling link criterion when the older child is in the sixth form in 
accordance with either paragraph 3.2 or paragraph 3.5 of the main report. 

 Asking academies and foundation schools to adopt the ‘nearest’ criteria within 
their policies. 

 Asking parents to confirm acceptance of the offer of a school place 

 Giving priority to pupils in the infant schools when transferring to their linked 
junior school. 

 Changes to school admission numbers. 
   Barwick in Elmet CE Primary 25 to 30 

Swillington Primary   40 to 30 
Haigh Road Infants    60 to 45 
Guiseley Infant   80 to 90 
Mill Field Primary   45 to 30 
Farnley Park High    150 to 210 
Roundhay High    240 to 250 

Page 178



3

REPORT OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OF EDUCATION LEEDS 

EXECUTIVE BOARD: 12 March 2008

SUBJECT: Annual Consultation on Admission arrangements for 2009

Electoral Wards Affected: 
ALL

Ward Members consulted 
  (referred to in report) 

Specific Implications For: 

Equality & Diversity 

Community Cohesion 

Narrowing the Gap 

 Eligible for Call-in                       Not Eligible for Call-in   
        (Details contained in the Report)      

1.0 PURPOSE OF THIS REPORT 

1.1

1.2

Education Leeds is responsible for allocating children to primary, infant, junior and 
secondary schools and defending admission appeal for community and voluntary 
controlled schools. The company is also responsible for co-ordinating admissions 
between the 50 voluntary-aided schools, the four neighbouring LEAs and the David 
Young Community Academy. 

This report gives statistical information about the process and highlights issues that 
need to be addressed for the 2008 admission round. 

2.0 BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

2.1 The consultation included the co-ordinated admission scheme which lays down the 
process and timetable for information sharing with schools who are their own 
admission authority as well as the other local Authorities.  Other than amendments 
to the timetable there were no other significant changes to the co-ordinated 
scheme.

Agenda Item:

Originator: Viv Buckland 

Telephone: 247 4956

Page 179



4

2.2

2.3

2.4

The proposals for change to the community admissions policy include breaking the 
sibling link when the older child would be in the sixth form, giving priority to children 
in an infant school for a place in the linked junior school, asking parents to confirm 
acceptance of an offered place and asking academies and foundation schools to 
adopt the ‘nearest’ criteria within their admissions policy. 

Changes to admission numbers consulted on were: 
Barwick in Elmet CE Primary 25 to 30 
Swillington Primary   40 to 30 
Haigh Road Infants    60 to 45 
Guiseley Infant   80 to 90 
Mill Field Primary   45 to 30 
Farnley Park High    150 to 210 
Roundhay High    240 to 250 

There were 31 responses received from school governing bodies. There were no 
responses from neighbouring Local Authorities or Diocesan Boards. The Admission 
Forum discussed the consultation responses at their meeting in February 2007. 
They accepted that the proposals above should be supported.

3.0 MAIN ISSUES 

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

The consultation included the co-ordinated admission scheme which lays down the 
process and timetable for information sharing with schools who are their own 
admission authority as well as the other local Authorities.  Other than amendments 
to the timetable there were no other significant changes to the co-ordinated 
scheme.

Changing the Sixth Form sibling link criterion 
We have consulted again on a proposal to change the sibling link criterion where it 
applies through the older sibling’s place in a sixth form.  The proposal is to cease to 
apply the sibling criterion where the link exists solely as a result of having at the 
relevant school an older sibling in year 12 or year 13 at the September admission 
date. This has been supported by a majority of parents, headteachers and the 
Admission Forum.  With the emerging 14-19 agenda young people undertaking 
post-16 qualifications may in many cases find themselves on the roll of one 
institution but attending elsewhere for at least some of the time to complete their 
diplomas.  The new Schools Admission Code introduced in February 2007 is much 
strengthened and prohibits priority being given to a child on the basis of a former 
pupil.

Section 2.13 of the Code states that ‘In setting oversubscription criteria the 
admission authorities for all maintained school MUST NOT:  h) allocate places as a 
school on the basis that a sibling or other relative is a former pupil, including 
siblings who were on the roll at the time of application but will have left by the time 
that the child starts school.’  This is a mandatory item in the Code. 

The reasons for the proposal are that when parents apply for a place in year 7 in 
September quoting the sibling rule the decisions for entry into the 6th form have not 
been made. The decision often relies on GCSE results, which are not known until 
August, which is after the offer letters are sent out in March. It is possible for us to 
offer a place based on the sibling rule and the older child then not progress onto 
year 12. This would have the potential for a claim of maladministration as we have 

Page 180



5

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

3.10

3.11

discussed with the legal team. There were 45 children last year and 20 in this most 
recent whom this proposal would have directly affected. 

Parents occasionally seek a place for their older child in a different sixth form with 
the intention of using the sibling link to gain a place for their younger child.  
Executive Board may wish to consider the option of addressing only this concern 
with the current sixth form sibling link.  In this case, the new criterion would be to
recognise a sixth form sibling link only where the older sibling has not moved 
schools.

Executive Board may wish to consider a lesser change breaking any link with older 
siblings who are transferring into a sixth form from another school.  Parents 
occasionally seek a place for their older child in a different sixth form with the 
intention of using the sibling link to gain a place for their younger child.  This is a 
clear manipulation of the admission priorities, however is not one open to abuse at 
the time of preferencing in the autumn term.  It should be made clear that breaking 
this link with those transferring in would not mitigate against the potential for 
maladministration as this arises where a place might be offered on the basis of a 
sibling who subsequently leaves, and does not remain on into sixth form. 

Asking Academies and Foundation schools to adopt the ‘nearest’ criteria 
As we can expect more academies and foundation schools in Leeds who will be 
responsible for setting their own admission arrangements we have put forward a 
recommendation to the Admission Forum to ensure that as far as possible any new 
admission policy dovetails into the existing Council admission policy. 

 We have asked the David Young Community Academy to adopt the ‘nearest’ 
criteria that we use for community and controlled schools, within its admission 
policy. This means that we would apply the ‘nearest’ criteria to the DYCA which 
would in turn reduce the ‘nearest’ area for the adjacent schools - Roundhay, John 
Smeaton and Primrose High Schools, (it does not affect Parklands Girls’ or Corpus 
Christi Catholic School). 

The governors of the DYCA have agreed to this proposal and revised their 
admissions policy accordingly, which means that their admission policy prioritizes 
applications nearest the school before those outside the nearest area.  The 
Admission Forum has supported this as a model for future foundation schools or 
academies. It would ensure that local children are prioritized in any new admission 
policies.  Garforth Community College has also adopted this principle, as have the 
Garforth Primary schools who will all be operating their own admission policies 
from September 2009.

Linking infant and junior schools in the admission arrangements 
The effect of this proposal would be to give priority to children attending the linked 
infant school if the junior school were to be oversubscribed.  This would give 
parents who wish to choose an infant school a greater degree of confidence that 
their children could progress with the established friendship group into the junior 
school.

As well as consulting schools on this proposal we consulted parents who would be 
in the first year affected, and 100% of parents who replied agreed with the 
proposal.  Priority for attendance at the infant school would fall after the sibling 
priority and before the nearest and distance priorities.

Page 181



6

3.12

3.13

3.14

3.15

3.16

3.17

The proposal differs from the one put forward by Westroyd Infant school who 
requested that priority be given to children applying for the infant school who had 
an older sibling in the junior school.  This would be contrary to the Schools 
Admission Code which prohibits giving priority to a child based on the former 
attendance of a sibling at the school. 

Changes to Admission Numbers 
We received comments about changes to admission number at Guiseley Infant 
school.  It is proposed to raise the number from 80 to 90 to provide sufficient places 
to accommodate the projected increase in children in the area.  Two of the schools 
in the area raised concerns that the additional places were not necessary and may 
have a detrimental affect on demand for their schools. 

Education Leeds view is that the projections indicate the additional 10 places are 
needed in Guiseley, without which there would be a risk that local children would 
be unable to gain a place in their area. The uncertainty in the projections is 
acknowledged, particularly in an area on the Leeds border where there is 
significant movement. There is significant new housing in the Guiseley area which 
is not accounted for in the projections. Best estimates suggest this is likely to add 
ten or more primary aged children in this timeframe.  

We have looked carefully at the preference patterns, and are not persuaded that 
this expansion will unduly affect other schools. Guiseley Infants is not currently fully 
subscribed and as such parents could already gain a place there.  Raising the 
admission number will add capacity if required however there is no reason to 
believe it would have any impact on preferencing patterns. On balance, we feel the 
appropriate course of action is to proceed with this change. We will continue to 
monitor the situation closely. 

Asking parents to confirm acceptance of an offered place 
This is a proposed change to procedure rather than a change to the admission 
policy.  Most Aided schools already ask parents to confirm that they intend to take 
up a place once the offers are made.  This assists them in identifying any places 
that parents may not wish to take up and re-offer through the waiting list to other 
parents.  It is proposed that we ask all parents to confirm to schools that they will 
be taking up the offered place, or to contact us to request and appeal or to go onto 
other waiting lists. 

The benefit will be come through maximising places that can be re-offered through 
the waiting list, and for schools to plan effective inductions for their new pupils.  
Parents will not be disadvantaged through this as the intention is not to withdraw 
places.  The procedure has been introduced to allow us to work closely with 
schools during the summer term establishing where families have left the area or 
opted to take up private school places.  The aim is to support the reduction of 
avoidable absence figures on school rolls in September. 

4.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR COUNCIL POLICY AND GOVERNANCE 

4.1 If the proposal to link infant and junior schools were to proceed it would apply to all 
infant schools with a linked junior school and affect the order of priority within the 
oversubscription criteria, which would become: 

1a. Statemented children.
1b. Children in public care.

Page 182



7

4.2

4.3

2. Siblings. 
3a. If there are enough places left everyone will be offered a place. 
3b Children who attend the named infant school, (There would be a note 
giving details of the named infant and junior schools. The actual 
wording would be subject to approval by the legal section.) 
3b1 Parents who prefer their nearest school. 

           3b2 Parents to prefer a non nearest school.

The notes defining siblings connected with priority 2 would be amended to make it 
clear that only siblings currently in year 7 to 10 inclusive, for secondary 
applications, will be included. 

Priority 3b1 will be re-worded to give priority to those parents who put their nearest 
school, not including voluntary aided schools or single sex schools.  Currently this 
also excludes academies and foundation schools, but both Garforth and DYCA will 
be including the nearest criteria within their policies, as are the Garforth primary 
schools.

5.0 LEGAL AND RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

5.1 The local Admissions Policy in Leeds complies with the new Schools Admission 
Code.  The breaking of the sibling link with sixth form will reduce the potential for a 
claim of maladministration as we have discussed with the legal team 

6.0 CONCLUSIONS 

6.1 The Admission Forum has supported the proposals for change outlined in this 
report. The consultation exercise has indicated a large degree of support with few 
schools disagreeing.  A summary of the responses is included in Appendix 1.

7.0 RECOMMENDATIONS

7.1 Executive Board is asked to approve the following proposals for implementation 
in the 2009 admission round: 

 Primary and secondary school co-ordinated admission arrangements. 

 Changing the sibling link criterion when the older child is in the sixth form in 
accordance with either paragraph 3.2 or paragraph 3.5 of the report. 

 Asking academies and foundation schools to adopt the ‘nearest’ criteria 
within their policies. 

 Asking parents to confirm acceptance of the offer of a school place 

 Giving priority to pupils in the infant schools when transferring to their 
linked junior school. 

 Changes to school admission numbers. 
   Barwick in Elmet CE Primary 25 to 30 

Swillington Primary   40 to 30 
Haigh Road Infants    60 to 45 
Guiseley Infant   80 to 90 
Mill Field Primary   45 to 30 
Farnley Park High    150 to 210 
Roundhay High    240 to 250 

Page 183



8

Page 184



9

Appendix 1 

There were 31 responses from school governing bodies and the results of the consultation 
exercise are given below. There were no responses from other local authorities or 
Diocesan Boards. 

           Agree Disagree 

1. Do you agree with the proposal for the primary school co-ordinated  31  0 
admission scheme?   
We are required to consult on the coordinated scheme every year.    

2. Do you agree with the proposal for the secondary school co-ordinated  23  0 
admission scheme?           
We are required to consult on the coordinated scheme every year.    

3. Do you agree with the proposal for the relevant area in Leeds?  29  0 
We are required to consult on the relevant area every two years. 
There are technical regulations concerning the geographical area  
included in the annual consultation round. 

4. Do you agree with the proposal to change school admission   28  2 
numbers?

5. Do you agree with the proposal to ask all parents to accept the    29  1 
place offered?
We would give parents a reply slip for them to send to the school 
to accept the place or indicate they are moving away or appealing 
for a different school. 

6. Do you agree with the proposal for the Academy and any new   27  1 
admission authorities in Leeds to prioritise ‘nearest’ students in line
with the Leeds admission policy? 
This is to safeguard the Council’s admission policy in terms of the
‘nearest’ and ‘non-nearest’ criteria. 

7. Do you agree with breaking the sibling link where the 6th form  23  5 
is involved?  
This was a repeat of the consultation last year. The responses for  
both years from parents are given.        

For 2008 there were 1123 replies.      803        320 
           72%        28% 

For 2009 there were 1158 replies       808        350 
           70%        30% 

8. Children who attend the infant school should be given priority  37           0 
for admission to the junior school. Parents in infant schools were   100%           0% 
consulted on this proposal.   

Page 185



10

Page 186


	Agenda
	5 Minutes
	6 Deputation to Council - Tinshill Recreation De-fence Group regarding use of permitted development to fence off green space including Tinshill Recreation Ground
	Tinshill Recreation Ground Deputation Cover Report App 1 15th Feb
	speech  Tinshill

	7 Stage 1 Application for Parks for People Heritage Lottery Funding for Middleton Park
	HLF Middleton Park Report App 1 - 27th Feb EXEMPT
	HLF Middleton Park Report App 2 - 27th Feb

	8 Deputation to Council - Members of Relate Regarding the Organisation's Funding
	speech relate

	9 Roundhay Road Relocation Project
	Roundhay Road App 1 3mar EXEMPT
	Roundhay Road  App 2 3mar
	Roundhay Road App 3 3mar EXEMPT

	10 Leeds Strategic Plan 2008-2011
	Leeds Strategic Plan 3mar

	11 Joint Service Centres - Approval to Proceed to LIFT Stage 2 for Joint Service Centres at Chapeltown and Harehills
	Joint Service Centres app1 3mar

	12 Deputation to Council- Local Residents Requesting the Council to Purchase Sports Facilities at Leeds Girls High School for use by Primary Schools and the Local Community
	speech  re Leeds Girls High site
	LGHS Sports Facilities Deputation Cover Report App 1 15th Feb

	13 Deputation to Council - Headingley Network Regarding the Future Use of the Elinor Lupton Centre
	speech  Elinor Lupton Centre

	14 Town and District Centres Parking Strategy and Priorities
	15 Regional Housing Board Funded Clearance Sites and Their Inclusion in the Strategic Affordable Housing Partnership
	RHB Funded Clearance Sites Report App1 19th Feb
	RHB Funded Clearance Sites Report App 2 19th Feb
	RHB Funded Clearance Sites Report App 3 19th Feb
	RHB Funded Clearance Sites Report App 4 19th Feb
	RHB Funded Clearance Sites Report App 6 29th Feb

	16 Development and Hardware Costs for the Housing ICT Project
	17 Fountain Primary School - Rationalisation onto One Site
	Fountain Primary Report Appendix 1 25th Feb EXEMPT

	18 Prescribed Alteration and Change of Lower Age Range of Hollybush Primary School
	19 Annual Consultation on Admission Arrangements for 2009/2010

